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BY COURIER 
 
October 30, 2015 
 
Ms. Kirsten Walli 
Board Secretary 
Ontario Energy Board 
Suite 2700, 2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319 
Toronto, ON, M4P 1E4 
 
 
Dear Ms. Walli, 
 
EB-2015-0026 – B2M LP Cost of Service Application – Updated Evidence  

 
In support of B2M LP’s Cost of Service Application that was originally filed with the Board on 
March 30, 2015, Exhibit A-15-2 (Curriculum Vitae) has been updated and was submitted in the 
Oral Hearing today.   

A complete version of the merged evidence from both the March 30th and today’s filing has also 
been submitted using Ontario Energy Board’s Regulatory Electronic Submission System 

Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY ALLAN COWAN 
 
Allan Cowan 
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BY COURIER 
 
June 29, 2015 
 
Ms. Kirsten Walli 
Board Secretary 
Ontario Energy Board 
Suite 2700, 2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319 
Toronto, ON 
M4P 1E4 
 
Dear Ms. Walli, 
 
EB-2015-0026 – B2M Limited Partnership Transmission Cost of Service Application – 
Additional and Updated Evidence and Responses to Interrogatories 

 
In support of B2M Limited Partnership’s (B2M LP) five year Cost of Service Application that 
was originally filed with the Board on March 30, 2015 additional and updated evidence and 
interrogatory responses have been submitted using the Ontario Energy Board’s Regulatory 
Electronic Submission System.  A complete version of the merged evidence from both the March 
30th and today’s filing has also been submitted.  

The additional evidence includes: 

 Exhibit A, Tab 2, Schedule 1, Attachment 1; and 

 Exhibit C2, Tab 3, Schedule 2, 2014 Income Tax. Return 

Prefiled evidence has been updated to reflect the impact of the placement of a 5-year debt issue 
which has reduced the revenue requirement request for B2M LP for the 2015-2019 test years. 

The updated evidence includes: 

 Exhibit A, Tab 2, Schedule 1;  

 Exhibit A, Tab 3, Schedule 1; 

 Exhibit A, Tab 3, Schedule 2; 

 Exhibit B1, Tab 1, Schedule 1;  

 Exhibit B2, Tab 1, Schedule 1; 
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 Exhibit B2, Tab 1, Schedule 2; 

 Exhibit E1, Tab 1, Schedule 1; 

 Exhibit E2, Tab 1, Schedule 1; 

 Exhibit F1, Tab 1, Schedule 1; 

 Exhibit G1, Tab 1, Schedule 1; 

 Exhibit G1, Tab 2, Schedule 1; 

 Exhibit G2, Tab 2, Schedule 1; and 

 Exhibit G2, Tab 2, Schedule 2. 

 

Interrogatory responses to Ontario Energy Board staff and Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters 
are also included in this submission. 

Two (2) hard copies are attached. In addition, one copy of the complete written evidence will be 
provided for public access at the B2M LP office.  

 

Given the nature and the number of Interrogatory Questions and the fact that there are only 2 
intervenors, B2M LP requests the Board proceed with this application by way of a written 
process. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Oded Hubert 
 

Attach.   

 
cc:  Don Rogers, Rogers Partners LLP 
 Anita Varjacic, Rogers Partners LLP 
 Mike Penstone, B2M GP Inc. 

Colin Salter, Pape Salter Teillet LLP 
Intervenors (electronic) 
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Susan Frank 
Vice President and Chief Regulatory Officer 
Regulatory Affairs 

 
 
BY COURIER 
 
March 30, 2015 
 
Ms. Kirsten Walli 
Board Secretary 
Ontario Energy Board 
Suite 2700, 2300 Yonge Street 
P.O. Box 2319 
Toronto, ON 
M4P 1E4 
 
 
Dear Ms. Walli: 
 
EB-2015-0026 – B2M LP Cost of Service Application – Application and Evidence 

 
On behalf of B2M LP, I am attaching two (2) copies of the B2M LP Cost of Service Application and 
Evidence in support of a proposed transmission revenue requirement to be implemented on January 1, 
2015.  This application covers the years 2015 – 2019.  
 
An electronic copy of the complete application has been filed using the Board's Regulatory Electronic 
Submission System (RESS) and the proof of successful submission slip is attached. 
 
B2M LP’s contacts for service of documents associated with this Application are listed in 
Exhibit A, Tab 2, Schedule 1. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY SUSAN FRANK  
 
 
Susan Frank 
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EXHIBIT LIST 1 

 2 

Exhibit Tab Schedule Attachment Contents 
A    Administration 

     
A 1 1  Exhibit List 
     
 2 1  Application 
     
   Att. 1 Certification of Evidence 
     
 3 1  Summary of Application 
     
  2  Financial Summary 
     
 4 1  Summary of Application Framework  
     
 5 1  Summary of Transmission Business 
     
 6 1  Notices of Motion 
     

 7 1 
 Compliance with OEB Filing Requirements for Electricity 

Transmitters 
     
 8 1  Transmission System Map 
     
   Att. 1 Transmission System Map 
     
 9 1  Description of the Partnership 
     
   Att. 1 Organization Charts 
     
 10 1  Affiliate Service Agreements 
     

   
Att. 1 Agreement for B2M LP Operations and Management 

Services 
     
 11 1  Financial Statements – Historic Year (2014) 
     

 11 2 
 Pro Forma Statements of Income for Historic Year (2014) 

and the Test Years (2015 to 2019) 
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Exhibit Tab Schedule Attachment Contents 

A 12 1 
 Summary of Board Directives and Undertakings from 

Previous Proceedings 
     
 13 1  Procedural Orders/Correspondence/Notices 
     
 14 1  Draft Issues List 
     
 15 1  List of Witnesses  
     
  2  Curriculae Vitae  
     

B    Cost of Capital 
     

B1    Written Direct 
 1 1  Cost of Capital  
     

B2    Supporting Schedules 
 1 1  Debt and Equity Summary 
     
  2  Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital 
     

C    Cost of Service 
     

C1    Written Direct 
 1 1  Cost of Service Summary 
     
 2 1  Summary of OM&A Expenditures  
     
 3 1  Common Corporate Costs, Cost Allocation Methodology 
     
   Att. 1 Review of Common Corporate Cost Allocation 
     
   Att. 2 External Expert Evidence Statement 
     
 4 1  Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 
     
   Att. 1 Foster Associates Depreciation Study 
     
   Att. 2 External Expert Evidence Statement 
     
 5 1  Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes 
   Att. 1 Tax Rulings 
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Exhibit Tab Schedule Attachment Contents 

C2    Supporting Schedules
 1 1  Cost of Service  
     
 2 1  Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 
     
 3 1  Calculation of Utility Income Taxes 
     

   
Att. 1 Calculation of Utility Income Taxes Test Years (2015 to 

2019) 
     

   
Att. 2 Calculation of Capital Cost Allowance Test Years (2015 to 

2019) 
     
   Att. 3 Calculation of Utility Income Taxes (2014) 
     
   Att. 4 Calculation of Capital Cost Allowance (2014) 
     
  2  2014 Income Tax Return 
     

D    Rate Base 
     

D1    Written Direct 
 1 1  Rate Base  
     
  2  Working Capital 
     
   Att. 1 A Determination of the Working Capital Requirements 
     
   Att. 2 External Expert Evidence Statement 
     

 2 1 
 Summary of Capital Expenditures and In-Service 

Additions 
     

D2    Supporting Schedules 
 1 1  Statement of Utility Rate Base 
     
 2 1  Continuity of Property, Plant and Equipment 
     
  2  Continuity of Accumulated Depreciation 
     
 3 1  Statement of Working Capital 
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Exhibit Tab Schedule Attachment Contents 
E    Revenue Requirement 
     

E1    Written Direct 
 1 1  Revenue Requirement  
     
  2  Start-Up and Development Costs 
     

E2    Supporting Schedules 
 1 1  Calculation of Revenue Requirement 
     

F    Regulatory Assets 
     

F1    Written Direct 
 1 1  Regulatory Asset Accounts Requested 
     

G    Cost Allocation and Rate Design 
     

G1    Written Direct 
 1 1  Cost Allocation and Rate Design 
     
 2 1  Overview of Uniform Transmission System Rates 
     

G2    Supporting Schedules 
 1 1  Current 2015 Uniform Transmission Rate Schedules 
     
  2  Current 2015 Cost Allocation and Rate Pool Details 
     
 2 1  Proposed 2016 Uniform Transmission Rate Schedules 
     
  2  Proposed 2016 Cost Allocation and Rate Pool Details 
     

 1 
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SUMMARY OF APPLICATION1 

 2 

B2M Limited Partnership (“B2M LP”) is applying for an Order or Orders approving the 3 

revenue requirement, cost allocation and rates for B2M LP for the years 2015 through 4 

2019 (“test years”) under the assigned Docket Number EB-2015-0026.  This summary 5 

provides a brief description of the approvals being sought through this Application and a 6 

summary of the revenue requirement being requested.   7 

 8 

1.0 SCOPE OF APPLICATION 9 

 10 

The scope of this five year Application includes:  11 

 12 

• the review of B2M LP’s evidence in support of the revenue requirements for 2015 13 

through 2019, and 14 

• the review of the charge determinants for the Network pool to assist in the 15 

development of Uniform Transmission Rates. 16 

 17 

This submission reflects B2M LP’s plan to maintain its network assets to meet objectives 18 

regarding public and employee safety; regulatory and legislative compliance; 19 

maintenance of system security and reliability and system growth requirements.  No 20 

capital expenditures are forecast over the five year period covered by this application. 21 

 22 

B2M LP’s OM&A expenditures have been determined on the basis of an examination of 23 

required work programs to ensure the most appropriate, cost-effective solutions are 24 

undertaken to meet public and employee safety objectives, maintain transmission 25 

reliability at targeted performance levels, and to comply with regulatory requirements, 26 

environmental requirements and Government direction. These expenditures are itemized 27 

and discussed in written direct evidence in Exhibit C1, Tab 2, Schedule 1.  28 
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This Application by B2M LP is substantively consistent with the Filing Requirements for 1 

Transmission Applications (the “Filing Requirements”) issued by the Board on January 2, 2 

2014. Further details are provided at Exhibit A, Tab 7, Schedule 1. 3 

 4 

This Application addresses the Board Order of December 11, 2014, in proceeding EB-5 

2014-0330, for B2M LP to file a full cost of service rate application for final revenue 6 

requirement and rates, no later than April 1, 2015. 7 

 8 

B2M LP has entered into an Affiliate Service Agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc. 9 

(“HONI”), for the provision of services more thoroughly described at Exhibit A, Tab 10, 10 

Schedule 1. 11 

 12 

The Hydro One Corporate costs related to providing support to B2M LP were developed 13 

using the Corporate Cost Allocation Methodology as accepted by the Board in the most 14 

recent Hydro One Transmission Application (EB-2014-0140) and updated for this current 15 

filing, to allocate the common corporate costs to B2M LP. The study is filed as 16 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit C1, Tab 3, Schedule 1 and is described at Exhibit C1, Tab 3, 17 

Schedule 1. 18 

 19 

The calculation of working capital, filed at Exhibit D2, Tab 3, Schedule 1 reflects the 20 

results of a lead-lag study completed by Navigant Consulting Inc. and filed as 21 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit D1, Tab 1, Schedule 2. 22 

 23 

B2M LP has applied the deemed capital structure of 60% debt and 40% common equity, 24 

as affirmed by the Board in EB-2009-0084 proceeding issued on December 11, 2009, in 25 

determining its 2015 through 2019 revenue requirement. B2M LP is requesting an equity 26 

return of 9.30% for 2015, 9.68% for 2016, 9.93% for 2017, 10.03% for 2018 and 10.08% 27 

for 2019. The equity returns for 2015 reflect the Board’s approved equity return per its 28 
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November 20, 2014 guidance on cost of capital reflecting the September 2014 Consensus 1 

Forecast.  2 

 3 

The Company assumes that the return on equity (“ROE”) for the 2016 to 2019 test years 4 

will be updated in accordance with the Cost of Capital Report, upon the final decision in 5 

this case.  Specifically, the 2016 to 2019 ROE would be updated to reflect the September 6 

Consensus Forecasts and Bank of Canada data available in October of the preceding year 7 

as part of the Draft Rate Order for those test years. The derivation of the Cost of Capital 8 

is provided at Exhibit B1, Tab 1, Schedule 1. 9 

 10 

This Application provides information on B2M LP’s revenue requirement and charge 11 

determinants for the Network pool to assist in the development of provincial Uniform 12 

Transmission Rates at Exhibit G1. 13 

 14 

2.0 APPROVALS REQUESTED 15 

 16 

2.1 Revenue Requirement 17 

 18 

Respecting B2M LP’s revenue requirement in the years 2015 through 2019, the Company 19 

is seeking approvals for: 20 

 21 

1. B2M LP seeks approval of a revenue requirement of $38.7 million for 2015, $35.9 22 

million for 2016, $36.5 million for 2017, $38.2 million for 2018 and $37.3 million for 23 

2019.  After application of the recovery measures proposed in this Application related 24 

to the start-up costs of the entity and the recovery of the 2015 revenue shortfall, the 25 

estimated change to the Transmission portion of the average residential customer’s 26 

bill is 0.0% in 2015, -0.4% in 2016, 0.1% in 2017, 0.1% in 2018 and -0.1% in 2019.  27 
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2. This represents an impact of less than 0.01% on a customer’s Total Bill in any one of 1 

the years of this application.   2 

 3 

3. Recovery of initial start-up costs totalling $7.7 million over the 2016 to 2019 test 4 

years at a rate of $1.925 million per year as described in Exhibit E1, Tab 1, Schedule 5 

1. 6 

 7 

4. Proposed OM&A expenditures of $1.8 million for 2015 test year, $1.2 million for 8 

2016, $1.2 million for 2017, $2.5 million for 2018 and $1.5 million for the 2019 test 9 

year, all of which are discussed in Exhibit C1, Tab 2, Schedule 1.  10 

 11 

5. A rate base of $522.8 million for 2015, $516.0 million for 2016, $509.2 million for 12 

2017, $502.4 million for 2018 and $495.6 million for the 2019 test year, as described 13 

in Exhibit D1, Tab 1, Schedule 1. 14 

 15 

6. Depreciation and amortization expenses of $6.8 million per year for the 2015 through 16 

2019 period determined by applying the accepted Foster’s methodology and as 17 

described in Exhibit C1, Tab 4, Schedule 1 and further detailed in Exhibit C2, Tab 2, 18 

Schedule 1. 19 

 20 

2.2 Cost Allocation and Rates 21 

 22 

The Company is seeking approvals of: 23 

 24 

1. The cost allocation methodology, as described in Exhibit G1, Tab 1, Schedule 1 and 25 

supported by the remainder of Exhibit G.  26 

 27 
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2. The revenue is to be collected by the Network Pool as discussed in Exhibit G1, Tab 1, 1 

Schedule 1, since the only transmission assets that B2M LP owns and operates are 2 

deemed to be Network Pool assets within the Ontario context.  3 

 4 

3. The charge determinant application to the Network Pool as discussed in Exhibit G1, 5 

Tab 1, Schedule 1. 6 

 7 

4. B2M LP also requests that the Board amend future Uniform Transmission Rates for 8 

the Network pool to allow for recovery of the proposed revenue requirements for 9 

2015 through 2019, effective January 1st of each year and the declaration of final rates 10 

for 2015.   11 

 12 

2.3 Other Approvals 13 

 14 

1. B2M LP seeks Board approval to establish three new deferral/variance accounts 15 

effective January 1, 2015:  16 

• the Unplanned Capital Spending Account; 17 

• the Tax Rate Changes Account; and 18 

• the 2015 Revenue Requirement Reconciliation Account. 19 

 20 

Further details of these accounts are found in Exhibit F1, Tab 1, Schedule1. 21 

 22 

2. B2M LP also seeks approval of the following additional components of the 23 

Application: 24 

• the proposed Annual Adjustment Mechanisms; and 25 

• the proposed Annual Outcome Measurement Reporting. 26 

 27 

Further details can be found in Exhibit A, Tab 4, Schedule 1. 28 
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3.0 CAUSES OF THE CHANGE IN REVENUE REQUIREMENT 1 

 2 

The proposed annual revenue requirement over the five year period is less than the 2015 3 

revenue requirement underlying the interim Board Decision.  This decrease in total 4 

revenue requirement is a result of changes in cost of capital due to the issuance of new 5 

debt at a lower rate as described in the updated evidence at Exhibit B1, Tab 1, Schedule 6 

1.   7 

 8 

There are variations in the revenue requirement year over year; which are described in 9 

further detail in Exhibit E1, Tab 1, Schedule 1.  The most significant year over year 10 

increase in revenue requirement is in 2018 due to the need to complete vegetation 11 

management work along the right of way.  12 

 13 

The Application reflects B2M LP’s efforts to ensure that customers within the Province 14 

will continue to be supplied in a secure and reliable manner while supporting the 15 

Government’s energy initiatives, thereby contributing to the health and competitiveness 16 

of the Province’s economy.  17 
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

 4 

B2M Limited Partnership (“B2M LP”) is making this Application requesting approval of 5 

an appropriate revenue requirement in support of just and reasonable transmission rates 6 

for 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019. 7 

 8 

The proposed revenue requirement and rates included in this application have been 9 

prepared on the basis of forward-looking 2015 to 2019 test years. This submission also 10 

includes actual information for 2014. 11 

 12 

B2M LP is proposing to recover a revenue requirement of $38.7 million for the 2015 test 13 

year, $35.9 million for 2016, $36.5 million for 2017, $38.2 million for 2018 and $37.3 14 

million for 2019. On December 11, 2014, the Board issued its Decision and Interim 15 

Order in proceeding EB-2014-0330 approving an interim revenue requirement for 2015 16 

of $40.6 million. The revenue requirement calculation for all test years appears in the 17 

evidence at Exhibit E2, Tab 1, Schedule 1. 18 

 19 

B2M LP has applied the deemed capital structure of 60% debt and 40% common equity, 20 

as affirmed by the Board in EB-2009-0084 proceeding issued on December 11, 2009, in 21 

determining its 2015 through 2019 revenue requirement. B2M LP is requesting an equity 22 

return of 9.30% for the 2015 test year, 9.68% for 2016, 9.93% for 2017, 10.03% for 2018 23 

and 10.08% for 2019. The equity returns for 2015 reflect the Board’s approved equity 24 

return per its November 20, 2014 guidance on cost of capital reflecting the September 25 

2014 Consensus Forecast. Evidence in support of its Cost of Capital and Cost of Third 26 

Party Long Term Debt appears at Exhibit B1, Tab 1, Schedule 1. 27 
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B2M LP’s OM&A expenditures have been determined on the basis of an examination of 1 

required work programs to ensure the most appropriate, cost-effective solutions are 2 

undertaken to meet public and employee safety objectives, maintain transmission 3 

reliability at targeted performance levels, and to comply with regulatory requirements, 4 

environmental requirements and Government direction. These expenditures are itemized 5 

and discussed in written direct evidence in Exhibit C1, Tab 2, Schedule 1.   6 

 7 

B2M LP has entered into an Affiliate Service Agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc. 8 

(“HONI”), for the provision of certain services more thoroughly described at Exhibit A, 9 

Tab 10, Schedule 1. 10 

 11 

The Hydro One Corporate costs related to providing support to B2M LP were developed 12 

using the Corporate Cost Allocation Methodology as accepted by the Board in the most 13 

recent Hydro One Transmission Application (EB-2014-0140) and updated for this current 14 

filing, to allocate the common corporate costs to B2M LP. The study is filed as 15 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit C1, Tab 3, Schedule 1 and is described at Exhibit C1, Tab 3, 16 

Schedule 1 17 

 18 

Depreciation and amortization expense of $6.8 million for each of the test years, were 19 

determined by applying the accepted Foster’s methodology described in Exhibit C1, Tab 20 

4, Schedule 1 and further detailed in C2, Tab 2, Schedule 1. 21 

 22 

The calculation of working capital, filed at Exhibit D2, Tab 3, Schedule 1 reflects the 23 

results of a lead-lag study completed by Navigant Consulting Inc. and filed as 24 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit D1, Tab 1, Schedule 2. 25 
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B2M LP proposed Rate Base of $522.8 million for 2015, $516.0 million for 2016, $509.2 1 

million for 2017, $502.4 million for 2018 and $495.6 million for the 2019 are discussed 2 

at Exhibit D1, Tab 1, Schedule 1.  3 

 4 

No capital expenditures are forecast over the 5 test year period as discussed in Exhibit 5 

D1, Tab 2, Schedule 1. 6 

 7 

Table 1 summarizes the financial highlights for the 2015 to 2019 Test Years. 8 

 9 

Table 1 10 

Cost of Capital 11 

Line 
No. 

 Total 
Rate 
Base 

Percent 

2015 
Deemed 
Capital 

Structure 
($ 

millions) 

2015 
Cost Rate 

(%) 

2016 
Deemed 
Capital 

Structure 
($ 

millions) 

2016 Cost 
Rate (%) 

Exhibit 

  (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 
1 Total Debt 60.0% 313.7 3.30%   309.6 1.81%   B2-1-1 
2 Common 

Equity 
40.0% 209.1 9.30% 206.4 9.68% B2-1-1 

3 Total Rate 
Base 

100.0% 522.8 5.70%   516.0 4.96% B2-1-1 

 12 

 13 

 14 

Line 
No. 

 Total 
Rate 
Base 

Percent 

2017 
Deemed 
Capital 

Structure 
($ millions) 

2017 
Cost 
Rate 
(%) 

2018 
Deemed 
Capital 

Structure 
($ millions) 

2018 
Cost 
Rate 
(%) 

Exhibit 

  (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 
1 Total Debt 60.0% 305.5 1.94%   301.4   1.99%   B2-1-1 
2 Common Equity 40.0% 203.7 9.93% 201.0 10.03% B2-1-1 
3 Total Rate Base 100.0% 509.2 5.14%   502.4   5.20%   B2-1-1 

 15 
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 1 

 2 

Line 
No. 

 Total 
Rate 
Base 

Percent 

2019 
Deemed 
Capital 

Structure 
($ millions) 

2019 
Cost 
Rate 
(%) 

Exhibit 

  (a) (b) (c) (d) 
1 Total Debt 60.0% 297.3 1.98%   B2-1-1 
2 Common Equity 40.0% 198.2 10.08% B2-1-1 
3 Total Rate Base 100.0% 495.6 

 
5.22%   B2-1-1 

 3 

 4 

Financial Highlights 5 

Line 
No. 

$ millions 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019  Exhibit 

1 Total OM&A 
Expense 

1.8 1.2 1.2 2.5 1.5  C1-2-1 

2 Rate Base 522.8 516.0 509.2 502.4 495.6  D2-1-1 
3 Revenue 

Requirement 
38.7 35.9 36.5 38.2 37.3  E2-1-1 

4 Return on 
Capital 

29.8 25.6 26.1 26.1 25.9  E2-1-1 

         
 6 
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SUMMARY OF APPLICATION FRAMEWORK1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

 4 

B2M Limited Partnership (“B2M LP”) is applying for a five year Cost of Service 5 

application. B2M LP has determined that a five year Cost of Service application is most 6 

appropriate, given the forecast of operations, maintenance and administrative expenses is 7 

relatively stable over the test years and no capital expenditures are forecast to be incurred 8 

and placed in-service during this period. This approach will minimize the regulatory 9 

burden for all stakeholders and thereby contribute to overall rate stability. This 10 

application approach allows the Company to propose a smoothing methodology to 11 

minimize the initial rate impact to customers resulting from the start-up costs incurred to 12 

form the partnership.  13 

 14 

2.0  APPLICATION FRAMEWORK  15 

 16 

B2M LP’s application is a five year Cost of Service application that provides five years 17 

of revenue requirements to operate the assets, accommodate necessary maintenance 18 

investments in infrastructure and system integrity work to ensure continued safe, reliable 19 

and secure service.   20 

 21 

B2M LP recognizes that there are still risks associated with forecasting over a longer 22 

period.   Changes in the industry may alter the investment needs or require changes to 23 

rate setting that could result in a significant impact on the Company’s capability to 24 

execute its plan.   25 

 26 

In order to mitigate the risk of externally driven factors that may be impactive; B2M LP 27 

is proposing a number of adjustment mechanisms in the design of its application in order 28 
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for the Company to avoid a regulatory review by the Board during the five year 1 

application period. B2M LP is also proposing a set of outcome measures to track its 2 

performance and delivery of the plan. These mechanisms are summarized in the 3 

following sections. 4 

 5 

2.1 Annual Adjustment Mechanisms  6 

 7 

B2M LP is proposing annual adjustment mechanisms for recurring events that are 8 

externally driven, mechanical in nature and do not require a prudence review.  The 9 

adjustment calculation will be derived based on year-end audited financial statements or 10 

parameters issued by the Ontario Energy Board or the Provincial or Federal 11 

Governments.  B2M LP’s proposal for annual adjustments will include such items as:  12 

 13 

 changes in the cost of capital and working capital, 14 

 changes in the tax rates, and 15 

 changes in other third party pass through charges.  16 

 17 

B2M LP’s intention is to present to the Board annually an update of adjustments for the 18 

upcoming year as part of a draft rate order. Further details on annual adjustments are 19 

provided below. 20 

 21 

2.1.1 Cost of Capital 22 

 23 

B2M LP’s cost of capital for each of the test years 2015 to 2019 is shown in Exhibit B1, 24 

Tab 1, Schedule 1, Table 1.  Late each year the Board issues new parameters for the 25 

return on equity and deemed short term rate to be used to set rates for the following year.  26 

Once issued, B2M LP will file a draft rate order using these new parameters to establish 27 

rates for the following year. Based on previous Board decisions, the Company will also 28 
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update its cost of long term debt to account for any debt issues that were made in the past 1 

year. The rate order will clearly show the change in revenue requirement due to the new 2 

return on equity and cost of debt for the next test year. The incremental amount will be 3 

added to or subtracted from the original Board approved revenue requirement in this 4 

application and Board approval will be sought to use the adjusted revenue requirement to 5 

determine new rates for the following year. Draft rate schedules based on the adjusted 6 

revenue requirement will be filed with the rate order for the Board’s approval. 7 

 8 

2.1.2 Changes in Tax Rates 9 

 10 

In Exhibit F1, Tab 1, Schedule 1, B2M LP is requesting the establishment of the Tax 11 

Rate Changes account.  This account will track the effect of legislative or regulatory 12 

changes to the tax rates or rules on the amount of costs approved by the Board as part of 13 

this application.  As changes to statutory tax rates can be calculated in a purely 14 

mechanical way, there is no issue of prudency in spending to be reviewed.   15 

 16 

2.1.3. Changes in other Third Party Pass Through Charges 17 

 18 

If there are changes in Third Party Pass Through Charges to be used to set rates, B2M LP 19 

will include these new parameters in its draft rate order to establish rates for the 20 

following year.  The rate order will clearly show the change in revenue requirement due 21 

to the new parameters.  The incremental amount will be added to or subtracted from the 22 

original Board approved revenue requirement in this application and Board approval will 23 

be sought to use the adjusted revenue requirement to determine new rates for the 24 

following year.  Draft rate schedules based on the adjusted revenue requirement will be 25 

filed with the rate order for the Board’s approval. 26 

  27 



Filed: 2015-03-30 
EB-2015-0026 
Exhibit A 
Tab 4 
Schedule 1 
Page 4 of 4 
  

2.2 Outcome Measures 1 

 2 

B2M LP is proposing a set of outcome measures with targets that will track the 3 

Company’s performance in meeting its five year plan as described in this application. The 4 

outcome measures will be tracked annually and the results of this tracking will be 5 

reported to the Board. The proposed outcome measures are: 6 

 7 

 System Average Interruption Frequency; 8 

 System Average Interruption Duration; 9 

 Average System Availability; and 10 

 NERC Vegetation Compliance. 11 
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SUMMARY OF TRANSMISSION BUSINESS 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

 4 

B2M LP is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board to own, operate and maintain transmission 5 

facilities in the Province of Ontario.  This exhibit provides an overview of a transmission system 6 

and a description of the B2M LP’s transmission assets.  A summary of B2M LP’s transmission 7 

business, values, and strategic goals follow in Section 4 through Section 6, and concludes with a 8 

discussion on the requirements for B2M LP within the electricity industry and regulatory 9 

framework in Ontario. 10 

 11 

2.0 TRANSMISSION SYSTEM BACKGROUND 12 

 13 

The purpose of a transmission system is to transmit electricity between supply points (such as 14 

generators, interconnections with other jurisdictions, and load customers with sufficient 15 

embedded generation to result in injections into the transmission system) and delivery points 16 

(load customers, including Local Distribution Companies (“LDCs”), end-use Transmission 17 

Customers and interconnections with other jurisdictions).  18 

 19 

A simplified figure of a Transmission System is provided in Figure 1 below.  As depicted, a 20 

typical transmission system is a large interconnected electrical network which includes three key 21 

components: step-up facilities from supply points, high-voltage transmission lines, and step-22 

down facilities to delivery points.  23 
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 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

The Province of Ontario has several licenced transmitters.  They include B2M LP, Hydro One 16 

Networks, the largest transmitter of electricity in the province, Great Lakes Power, Canadian 17 

Niagara Power, Five Nations Energy and a number of other licensed transmitters that have 18 

emerged with the change in policy that enabled competitive transmission.  However, in contrast 19 

to the other transmitters, B2M LP transmission assets are limited to an individual double circuit 20 

high-voltage transmission line.  Further details of B2M LP’s assets are presented in the following 21 

section. 22 

  23 

Figure 1 - Transmission System 

Transmission System 
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3.0 DESCRIPTION OF B2M LP TRANSMISSION ASSETS 1 

 2 

B2M LP’s business assets are solely comprised of one 500kV double circuit high-voltage 3 

transmission line known as Circuit B560V and Circuit B561M.  These circuits have a combined 4 

capacity of approximately 3,000 MW.  Each circuit is approximately 176 km in length and form 5 

a contiguous line from Bruce Power Complex to Milton SS that consists of new 500kV lines 6 

from Bruce Power Complex to a point near Highway 7 combined with pre-existing 500kV lines 7 

from the point near Highway 7 south to the Hydro One Milton Switching Station.  A map of the 8 

transmission line is provided in Exhibit A, Tab 8, Schedule 1.  9 

 10 

The demarcation point of each of B2M LP’s circuits from Hydro One’s transmission system is: 11 

• Circuit B560V:  terminating at the north end near Bruce A TS at tower #2A inclusive, and at 12 

the south end at Milton SS at tower #726 inclusive; and 13 

• Circuit B561M:  terminating at the north end near Bruce B SS at tower #2 inclusive, and at 14 

the south end at Milton SS at tower #726 inclusive. 15 

 16 

The ownership of the terminating stations (Bruce A TS, Bruce B SS, and Milton SS) remains with 17 

Hydro One. 18 

 19 

The major components of these circuits include: overhead conductors, steel support structures, 20 

foundations, insulators, connecting hardware and grounding systems as well as rights to Hydro 21 

One’s existing transmission corridor on which the circuits are located.  22 

  23 
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A summary of the key physical assets are provided in Table 1. 1 

 2 

Table 1 3 

B2M LP Assets 

Fixed Assets (Net Book Value) $526.3 Million* 

Transmission System Voltages (kV) 500 

Overhead Transmission Lines (circuit km) 350 

*Value as of December 31, 2014. 4 

 5 

4.0 DESCRIPTION OF B2M LP BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 6 

 7 

B2M LP’s business activities are regulated and consist of the management of its transmission 8 

assets to meet reliability standards and satisfy regulatory, environmental, and legal requirements.   9 

 10 

B2M GP Inc. will be responsible for ensuring that the transmission assets owned by B2M LP are 11 

operated and maintained in accordance with all applicable regulatory standards as outlined in 12 

Section 7.0.  B2M GP Inc. will carry out these functions through an operations and management 13 

services agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc. (“HONI”), as further outlined in Exhibit A, 14 

Tab 10, Schedule 1.  15 

 16 

HONI’s management of the B2M LP transmission assets includes operations, maintenance, 17 

construction and engineering services, customer service activities and supporting research, 18 

environmental, and public/employee health and safety programs.  The costs of all these activities 19 

are included in the revenue requirements for B2M LP. 20 

 21 
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Furthermore, expenditures are included in the revenue requirement for B2M LP for 1 

administrative and corporate services, which will also be supported by HONI.   Details of these 2 

costs are discussed in Exhibit C1, Tab 2, Schedule 1. 3 

 4 

5.0 B2M LP’S VALUES 5 

 6 

B2M LP is driven by the values of Health & Safety, Stewardship, Excellence and Innovation; the 7 

same values that drive B2M LP’s service provider, Hydro One.  B2M LP conducts work in an 8 

environment that can be dangerous for both workers and the public, and so safety is of the utmost 9 

importance.  The company demonstrates sound stewardship in a manner that respects both 10 

customers’ needs, as well as the environment.  Excellence is achieved through continuous 11 

improvement to ensure that B2M LP is prepared and equipped to deliver high quality and 12 

affordable service. B2M LP values innovation and views it as a key success factor for its future. 13 

 14 

B2M LP’s strategy and business values must ensure rates that can balance the financing of 15 

investment in infrastructure while maintaining affordable and reliable service.  16 

 17 

6.0 STRATEGIC GOALS AND PERFORMANCE TARGETS 18 

 19 

B2M LP’s strategic objectives parallel those of Hydro One and consist of: 20 

 21 

• Creating an injury-free workplace and maintaining public safety; 22 

• Focusing on continuous innovation to ensure a modern, flexible and advanced transmission 23 

system; 24 

• Maintaining a reliable, cost-effective transmission system; 25 

• Protecting and sustaining the environment for future generations; 26 

• Maintaining a commercial culture that increases value for its owners; and 27 

• Achieving productivity improvements and cost-effectiveness. 28 
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The five-year goals associated with the company’s strategic objectives are shown in Table 2. 1 

 2 

Table 2 3 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FIVE-YEAR VISION  

Injury-Free   
 

Achieve world-class standing for medical attention, for 
utilities. 

Continuous Innovation  Meet 100% of plan. 
 

Reliable Transmission  Maintain top-quartile transmission reliability. 
  

Protecting the Environment Reduce B2M LP’s environmental footprint. 
 

Owner’s Value 
 

Achieve the ROE allowed by the Ontario Energy Board 
and maintain “A” credit rating category. 

Productivity and Cost-Effectiveness Achieve top-quartile unit costs in transmission against 
utility comparables. 

 4 

These strategic objectives underpin and drive B2M LP’s business.  5 

 6 

7.0 ELECTRICITY INDUSTRY AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 7 

 8 

B2M LP is subject to direction from its owners, Board decisions, and government legislation and 9 

regulations.  Each one of these sources has the potential to be a driver for change affecting B2M 10 

LP policies, processes and work programs.  When new legislation or regulations are passed or 11 

when OEB decisions are released, B2M LP responds by developing appropriate programs or 12 

initiatives to implement the required changes in a cost effective fashion. 13 

 14 

The following provides a summary of the key electricity legislation and regulation, industry 15 

standards and guidelines and other relevant legislation that governs and drives B2M LP 16 

transmission business. 17 
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7.1 Industry and Regulatory Environment in Ontario 1 

 2 

Within the Ontario electricity industry, the Ministry of Energy sets legislative and regulatory 3 

requirements through changes to the Electricity Act, 1998 and the Ontario Energy Board Act, 4 

1998.  Both statutes have been amended several times.  5 

 6 

The OEB sets transmission rates, issues codes and licenses, and grants approval for construction 7 

of new transmission lines greater than two kilometers.  The Transmission System Code (“TSC”), 8 

issued by the OEB, sets out the obligations of electricity transmitters with respect to their 9 

customers.  The TSC also addresses standards for the operation, maintenance, management and 10 

expansion of transmission systems.  B2M LP is bound by the terms of its transmission licence to 11 

adhere to the requirements of the TSC and is required to operate and maintain its system in 12 

accordance with “good utility practice”.  The TSC and the market rules also require all customers 13 

directly connected to the transmission system to enter into a connection agreement with their 14 

transmitter.  Direct customer connections to the 500kV system in Ontario are very rare.  At the 15 

present time, B2M LP does not have any customers that are directly connected to its assets. B2M 16 

LP will establish agreements with transmission customers if required in the future. 17 

 18 

The Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESO”) administers the electricity market and 19 

directs the operation of the power system in Ontario while ensuring its extensive planning, 20 

conservation, market and procurement capabilities serve the province’s long-term needs.  The 21 

IESO controlled grid provides the infrastructure for transmitting large volumes of electrical 22 

energy from major generation sources to major load centers.  The B2M LP transmission assets 23 

provide transmission capacity.  As part of the IESO controlled transmission grid, the IESO 24 

makes this capacity available to market participants. 25 

 26 
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7.2 North American Reliability Framework  1 

 2 

The National Electric Reliability Council (“NERC”) was established in the United States in 1968 3 

in response to the 1965 blackout.  NERC is subject to oversight by governmental authorities in 4 

Canada and the U.S. NERC’s mission is to ensure the reliability of the bulk power system in 5 

North America.  NERC develops and enforces reliability standards; monitors the bulk power 6 

system; and assesses and reports on future transmission and generation adequacy.  To date, 7 

NERC has developed over 120 standards including approximately 1,400 requirements.  Over 60 8 

of these standards apply to B2M LP.   9 

 10 

The U.S. Energy Policy Act of 2005 authorized the creation of a self-regulatory Electricity 11 

Reliability Organization (“ERO”) that would span North America.  The legislation stated that 12 

compliance with reliability standards would be mandatory and enforceable.  In July 2006, NERC 13 

was certified as the ERO in the United States.  In October 2006, the OEB signed a Memorandum 14 

of Understanding with NERC recognizing NERC as the ERO in Ontario.  Voluntary compliance 15 

was expected as a matter of good utility practice through the first set of NERC standards 16 

(effective January 2005).  The standards later became mandatory and enforceable in the United 17 

States in June 2007.  18 

 19 

As a licensed Transmitter, B2M LP has a regulatory obligation to comply with the reliability 20 

standards adopted by NERC.  This requirement to comply is also stated in the IESO Market 21 

Rules.  B2M LP is bound to follow the Market Rules and also “good utility practice” in its day-22 

to-day operations.  The IESO is responsible for monitoring and enforcing the reliability standards 23 

in Ontario, where market participants are subject to monetary sanctions of up to one million 24 

dollars for confirmed violations.  25 

 26 
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7.3 Other Relevant Legislation  1 

 2 

7.3.1  Environmental Legislation 3 

 4 

B2M LP is subject to a wide range of federal and provincial legislation, regulation and standards 5 

related to environmental impacts. The following are the major acts that govern B2M LP’s 6 

activities.  Many others can apply in specific circumstances but the following are applicable to 7 

most transmission work:  8 

 9 

• Environmental Assessment Act,  10 

• Environmental Protection Act,  11 

• Fisheries Act / Fish and Wildlife Conservation Act,  12 

• Species at Risk Act / Endangered Species Act, 13 

• Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act,  14 

• Pesticides Act,  15 

• Ontario Water Resources Act,  16 

• Conservation Authorities Act.  17 

• Ontario Heritage Act,  18 

• Forest Fires Prevention Act,  19 

• Public Lands Act, and  20 

• Public Transportation and Highway Improvement Act. 21 

 22 

7.3.2  Safety Standards  23 

 24 

Safety is of utmost importance in B2M LP’s transmission work activities.  B2M LP is committed 25 

to complying with safety standards and regulations following those established by Hydro One.  26 

Some major Safety Acts that are more relevant to B2M LP are: 27 
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• Occupational Health and Safety Act, which requires B2M LP to comply with industrial 1 

design and construction safety regulations, and 2 

• B2M LP must also comply with the health regulations of the Ministry of Health under the 3 

Public Health Act. 4 

 5 

7.3.3 Industry Standards 6 

 7 

B2M LP also complies with other relevant national and international standards such as the 8 

Canadian Standards Association (“CSA”), the Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers 9 

(“IEEE”) and the International Electrotechnical Commission (“IEC”) for the design of its 10 

transmission system and equipment. 11 
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NOTICES OF MOTION 1 

 2 

To be filed behind this tab as and when Notices of Motion are filed. 3 
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COMPLIANCE WITH OEB FILING REQUIREMENTS FOR 1 

ELECTRICITY TRANSMITTERS 2 

 3 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 4 

 5 

This Application made by B2M LP is substantially consistent with the requirements of: 6 

 7 

• Chapter 2 of the Ontario Energy Board Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission 8 

Applications (the “Filing Requirements”) issued by the Board on January 2, 2014; and 9 

• The Ontario Energy Board Rules of Practice and Procedure last revised April 24, 2014. 10 

Given the unique nature of the B2M LP assets and the role they play in the transmission of 11 

electricity in the province, portions of the filing guidelines are not applicable to B2M LP. These 12 

include: 13 

 14 

1. Minimum Filing Data 15 

• B2M LP is a new entity, having received Board approval pursuant to Section 60 of the 16 

Ontario Energy Board Act for transmitter licensing authority on November 28, 2013.  17 

Hence they cannot provide three years of historical data or provide analysis to previous 18 

Board approved data as this is B2M LP’s first cost of service application. 19 

2. Customer Engagement 20 

• B2M LP does not have any direct customers, and hence has not performed any customer 21 

engagement activities or customer service performance analysis. 22 

3. Economic Overview / Load Forecast 23 

• B2M LP asset base consists of only two 500 kV transmission lines, and hence has no load 24 

determinants to include in the forecast.   25 
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• Similarly, the only rate pool applicable for B2M LP assets is the “Network” pool 1 

consistent with the cost allocation methodology approved by the Board in proceeding 2 

EB-2012-0031 for Hydro One Networks transmission rates.  Therefore, no further cost 3 

allocation methodology is presented in this application.  4 

 5 

4. Planning Process 6 

• The assets owned by B2M LP are relatively new with approximately 90% of the line less 7 

than three years old.  As such, B2M LP is not proposing any capital expenditure in this 8 

application, and hence did not undertake a capital investment planning process or a 9 

regional planning process.   10 

• Similarly, B2M LP has not provided a consolidated Asset Management Plan.  However, 11 

the high level information on B2M LP’s assets and planned maintenance investments is 12 

provided within the application. 13 

 14 

5. Other Revenue 15 

• B2M LP has no external revenue sources, the only revenue applicable to B2M LP is the 16 

revenue requirement from owning and maintaining the two 500 kV transmission lines.   17 

 18 

Notwithstanding the items above, B2M LP submits that it has substantiated the need for and 19 

provided sufficient justification of the costs that are the basis of the proposed new rates; which is 20 

essential for the regulatory review process in order to enable the Board to make a determination 21 

as to whether the proposals are reasonable. 22 
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TRANSMISSION SYSTEM MAP 1 

 2 

B2M LP’s business comprises ownership of a 500 kV double circuit high-voltage transmission 3 

line, which passes through Bruce, Grey, Wellington, and Dufferin counties; the regional 4 

municipality of Halton; and the municipalities of Kincardine, Brockton, Hanover, West Grey, 5 

Southgate, Wellington North, Erin, East Luther Grand Valley, East Garafraxa, Halton Hills and 6 

Milton.   7 

 8 

The map in Attachment 1 depicts the route of the two 500 kV double circuit high voltage 9 

transmission lines, one pre-existing double circuit line and one new double circuit line, between 10 

the Bruce Power Complex and Milton SS.  B2M LP’s owned assets include the new double 11 

circuit line from Bruce Power Complex at Kincardine to a point near Highway 7 just east of 12 

Acton; at this point the new double circuit line is joined to a short section of pre-existing 500 kV 13 

double circuit line which carries on from Highway 7 south to Milton SS.  Further details on B2M 14 

LP’s owned assets are outlined in Exhibit A, Tab 5, Schedule 1. 15 
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DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP1 

B2M LP is a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario that has acquired 2 

certain Bruce by Milton transmission assets, such that it owns a set of continuous 3 

transmission circuits running from the Bruce Nuclear Generation Complex to Hydro One 4 

Networks’ Milton Switching Station.  These circuits are named B560V and B561M.  The 5 

business to be carried out by B2M LP is the provision of electricity transmission service 6 

in Ontario.   7 

 8 

The B2M LP limited partnership transaction was finalized on December 17th, 2014.  9 

Audited financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2014 are filed as Exhibit 10 

A, Tab 11, Schedule 1. 11 

 12 

B2M LP is principally owned by two different entities.  The first is B2M GP Inc.; a 13 

wholly owned subsidiary of Hydro One Inc.  B2M GP Inc. holds the general partner 14 

interest and retains substantially all of Hydro One’s partnership interests in B2M LP.  15 

B2M GP Inc. is responsible for ensuring B2M LP assets are operated and maintained in 16 

accordance with all applicable regulatory standards and Hydro One Transmission’s 17 

maintenance and operating practices through a comprehensive services agreement. This 18 

agreement is included at Exhibit A, Tab 10, Schedule 1.  The agreement mandates that 19 

Hydro One shall be required to ensure that all applicable OEB license, code and rule 20 

requirements will be observed. 21 

 22 

The other substantial shareholder in B2M LP is Saugeen Ojibway Nation Finance 23 

Corporation (“SON FC”).  This corporation is jointly owned by, and is a nominee for, the 24 

Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and the Chippewas of Nawash First Nation 25 

(collectively known as “SON”).  SON FC is an Ontario corporation that has been formed 26 

specifically as the vehicle for SON to be able to participate in B2M LP.  SON FC holds 27 
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the partnership interest in B2M LP for SON but no substantial assets or liabilities other 1 

than the financing arranged to fund the acquisition cost of its partnership interest.  SON 2 

FC will receive the net profit from B2M LP without incidence of income taxes. The 3 

resulting reduction in income taxes serves to decrease the cost to ratepayers over the life 4 

of the asset. 5 

 6 

The organization charts for the B2M Limited Partnership shareholder structure and 7 

financial ownership structure are found in Attachment 1. 8 
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ORGANIZATION CHARTS1 

  2 

B2M Limited Partnership Shareholder Structure 3 

 4 

 5 

  6 



Filed: 2015-03-30 
EB-2015-0026 
Exhibit A-9-1 
Attachment 1 
Page 2 of 2 
 

B2M Limited Partnership Financial Ownership Structure 1 

 2 

3 
 4 
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AFFILIATE SERVICE AGREEMENTS1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION  2 

 3 

B2M LP is a limited partnership whose legal representative is B2M GP Inc.  All business 4 

of B2M LP, the transmitter, is conducted through B2M GP Inc., an affiliate of Hydro One 5 

Networks Inc. (“HONI”).   6 

 7 

Since B2M GP Inc. and HONI are under common control, in keeping with the spirit of 8 

the Affiliate Relationships Code (“ARC”), when B2M LP provides services to or 9 

purchases services from affiliates, it does so in accordance with service agreements.  This 10 

Exhibit discusses the current agreements between B2M LP and HONI for operations 11 

services, maintenance services, and common administrative and corporate services.  12 

 13 

2.0 THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 14 

 15 

Representatives from B2M LP and HONI identified the nature of the services required 16 

for the safe and prudent operation in accordance with Good Utility Practice of B2M LP’s 17 

transmission assets.  An Agreement for Operations and Management Services  capturing 18 

these requirements has been reviewed and approved by each company’s accountable 19 

officer, and is filed as Attachment 1 to this exhibit.   20 

 21 

3.0  TERMS AND CONDITIONS 22 

  23 

In accordance with the B2M LP Transmission License, the ARC, and all other applicable 24 

codes, rules, orders and decisions of the Board, this agreement describes the terms and 25 

conditions of the services HONI provides to B2M LP.  This includes the provisions of 26 

operations and management services, fees and taxes, invoicing and payment, budgets, 27 
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accounts and right to audit, liability and force majeure events, dispute resolution 1 

procedures, confidentiality and intellectual property, and term and termination of the 2 

agreement.  More details on the key clauses are provided below. 3 

 4 

3.1 Provision of Operations and Management Services 5 

 6 

The agreement addresses the provision by HONI to B2M LP of operations, maintenance, 7 

and certain common administrative and corporate services.  A description of the services 8 

contained in the Agreement for Operations and Management Services is provided in 9 

Table 1. 10 

 11 

Table 1 12 

Service Level Agreement – 2015 to 2019 13 

Services 
Provider 

Services 
Recipient(s) Description of Services 

Hydro One 

Networks Inc. 

B2M LP a) Operations Services – monitoring and control of the Transmission 

System, in accordance with the requirements of B2M LP’s 

Transmission License and all services required to fulfill all of B2M 

LP’s obligations under its Connection Agreement and the IESO-B2M 

LP operating requirements. 

b) Maintenance Services – all maintenance, repair and refurbishment 

services, in accordance with the requirements of B2M LP’s 

Transmission License and all services required to fulfill all of B2M 

LP’s obligations under its Connection Agreement and the IESO-B2M 

LP operating requirements. 
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Services 
Provider 

Services 
Recipient(s) Description of Services 

Hydro One 

Networks Inc. 

B2M LP c) Administrative and Corporate Services – some corporate and 

administrative services provided by HONI including finance and 

regulatory support, tax advice and returns preparation, treasury, 

communications and government relations, legal advice, real estate 

support, corporate security services, and First Nations support. 

 1 

3.2 Fees 2 

 3 

Pursuant to the ARC, where a utility provides a service, resource product or use of an 4 

asset to an affiliate, the utility shall charge no less than the greater of (i) the market price 5 

of that service, product, resource or use of asset and (ii) the utility’s fully-allocated cost 6 

to provide that service, product, resource or use of asset.  In purchasing a service, 7 

resource, product or use of an asset from an affiliate, a utility shall pay no more than the 8 

market price for that service, product, resource or use of asset.  Where no market exists, a 9 

utility shall charge no less than its fully-allocated cost to provide the service, product, 10 

resource or use of asset, and shall pay no more than the affiliate’s fully-allocated cost to 11 

provide the service, product, resource or use of asset.  The level of costs for B2M LP’s 12 

services was determined consistent with the principles above.   13 

 14 

The annual fees payable by B2M LP to HONI for Test Years 2015 to 2019 are as 15 

follows:  16 
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Table 2 1 

Fees Payable by B2M LP for Services Received from HONI 2 

($ Millions) 3 

 Test Years 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

 Maintenance Services 0.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 

 Operations Services 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

 Corporate and Administrative  
 Services 

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

Totals 0.9 0.8 0.8 2.0 0.8 

 4 

3.3 Budgets, Accounts and Right to Audit 5 

 6 

HONI shall provide B2M GP Inc. with a proposed annual operating, maintenance and 7 

capital improvement Budget for B2M LP for the subsequent fiscal year at least sixty (60) 8 

days prior to the commencement of the next fiscal year. Such annual Budget shall be 9 

accompanied by an annual operating plan prepared by HONI.  B2M GP Inc. shall notify 10 

HONI within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Budget, of any issues with respect to 11 

such proposed Budget, and the two parties shall cooperate with each other in developing 12 

a mutually acceptable Budget within the next thirty (30) days.  13 

 14 

HONI and B2M GP Inc. agree that the Budget may be amended from time to time by 15 

mutual agreement to reflect revisions necessitated by unanticipated circumstances 16 

including such as, but changes in applicable laws, additions or deletions to the scope of 17 

the services, emergencies and force majeure events. 18 

 19 



Filed: 2015-03-30 
EB-2015-0026 
Exhibit A 
Tab 10 
Schedule 1 
Page 5 of 7 
 

If HONI becomes aware that the costs of services for the current fiscal year may exceed 1 

the Budget by 5% or more, HONI shall promptly notify B2M GP Inc. of such anticipated 2 

budget overrun and provide B2M GP Inc. a proposed amendment to the Budget. 3 

 4 

B2M GP Inc. shall notify HONI within thirty (30) days after receipt of HONI's proposed 5 

Budget amendment of any issues and the parties shall cooperate with each other in 6 

developing a mutually acceptable amendment to the Budget. HONI will not perform any 7 

services without the prior approval of B2M GP Inc. that would result in a cost overrun 8 

except in the case of an emergency. 9 

 10 

In the event of an accident or emergency relating to the B2M LP assets, HONI may take 11 

action to address the situation without obtaining any approvals of B2M GP Inc.  This may 12 

result in spending funds deemed by HONI to be reasonably necessary under the 13 

circumstances. As promptly as reasonably practicable after HONI establishes control 14 

over such accident or emergency, HONI shall furnish B2M GP Inc. a reasonably detailed 15 

written description of the accident or emergency and the manner in which such accident 16 

or emergency was handled by HONI.  As well, HONI shall be paid for these costs as 17 

incurred. 18 

 19 

Except in the case of an emergency, HONI shall perform all services in accordance with 20 

the annual operating plan accompanying the Budget. 21 

 22 

HONI and B2M GP Inc. agree to keep all necessary and proper accounts and records 23 

relating to services provided by HONI and these accounts and records shall be open to 24 

audit and inspection for a period of six years. 25 

 26 
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3.4 Dispute Resolution Procedure 1 

 2 

If the parties have a dispute under the agreement that cannot be resolved by a conference 3 

of senior officers from HONI and B2M GP Inc., a written notice outlining the specifics of 4 

the dispute will be passed to the parties’ respective Presidents. Five business days after 5 

receipt of written notice, if the dispute remains unresolved, the matter is referred to 6 

arbitration for final resolution.  7 

 8 

3.5 Confidentiality and Intellectual Property 9 

 10 

Unless required by law and/or in certain other exceptional circumstances typically found 11 

in a confidentiality agreement, each party shall maintain in strict confidence the 12 

agreement and all information received from the other party. A party of the agreement 13 

receiving confidential information shall not copy or disclose the information to any third 14 

party without the prior written consent of the disclosing party unless specifically 15 

stipulated in the agreement.   16 

 17 

Confidential information shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the disclosing 18 

party. 19 

 20 

3.6 Term and Termination 21 

The agreement remains in force between B2M LP, B2M GP Inc. and HONI for an initial 22 

term of five years unless terminated on at least twelve months’ prior written notice from 23 

the terminating party.  At the end of the five year period, the agreement will be 24 

automatically renewed for successive periods of five years upon the same terms and 25 

conditions unless the decision is taken to terminate the agreement. 26 
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4.0 COST-BASED PRICING 1 

 2 

The fees payable to HONI were based on the proportion of a given service used by B2M 3 

LP.  The cost allocation model that was used to arrive at the fees payable is described in 4 

Exhibit C1, Tab 3, Schedule 1, Attachment 1. Where the fees payable for the services 5 

delivered are cost-based, such costs may be billed directly.   6 
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THIS AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONS SERVICES AND MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES effective as of the l 71

h day of December, 2014 

BETWEEN: 

Hydro One Networks Inc. ("Hydro One Networks") 

-and-

B2M GP Inc. ("GPco") 

- and-

B2M Limited Partnership ("BM LP") by its general partner B2M GP INC. 

WHEREAS: 

1) BM LP is the transmitter licensed under the Ontario Energy Board Act (the 
"Act") to own and operate the second 500KV electric transmission tower line 
spanning approximately 180 kilometres from the Bruce Power Nuclear 
Generating Station in Kincardine, Ontario to Hydro One Networks' switchyard in 
Milton, Ontario (the "BXM Line"), which line went into commercial service in 
May 2012. 

2) GPco, is an affiliate of Hydro One Networks within the meaning of the ARC. 

3) BM LP wishes to subcontract the operation of the BXM Line to Hydro One 
Networks as further set out herein. 

4) GPco wishes to obtain the assistance of Hydro One Networks, from time to time, 
in connection with certain management functions associated with the transmission 
business of BM LP. 

5) The Parties are entering this Agreement to define their respective rights and 
obligations with respect to management and operation of the BXM Line. 

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants, 
agreements, terms and conditions contained herein, the Parties intending to be legally 
bound hereby agree as follows: 
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ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Defined Terms 

Capitalized terms which are not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given to 
them in the ARC. The following capitalized terms, wherever used in this Agreement, shall 
have the following meanings: 

"Agreement" means this Agreement and all amendments made hereto by written 
Agreement between the Parties in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; 

"ARC" means the Affiliate Relationships Code for Electricity Distributors and 
Transmitters issued by the OEB in accordance with the Act, as amended from time to 
time; 

"BM LP Transmission Licence" means the licence or licences issued to BM LP by the 
OEB pursuant to the Act and in effect from time to time; 

"Claims" means all losses, costs, damages, expenses, mJunes, liabilities, claims, 
demands and penalties, including reasonable legal fees, experts' fees and court costs, 
whether incurred through settlement or otherwise, and interest on each of these items, in 
each case whether arising prior to or after the termination of this Agreement. 

"Connection Agreement" means the connection agreement which BM LP has or will 
have entered into with Hydro One Networks governing the interconnection of the BXM 
Line with the transmission systems owned and operated by Hydro One Networks; 

"Fees" means the Operations Fees and the Management Fees; 

"Force Majeure Event" means, in relation to a Person, any event or circumstance, or 
combination of events or circumstances, 

(i) that is beyond the reasonable control of the Person; 

(ii) that adversely affects the performance by the Person of its obligations 
under this Agreement; and 

(iii) the adverse effects of which could not have been reasonably foreseen or 
prevented, overcome, remedied or mitigated in whole or in part by the Person 
through the exercise of diligence and reasonable care and includes, but is not 
limited to, acts of war (whether declared or undeclared), invasion, armed conflict 
or act of foreign enemy, blockade, embargo, revolution, riot, insurrection, civil 
disobedience or disturbances, vandalism or acts of terrorism, strikes, lockouts, 
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restnct1ve work practices or other labour disturbances, unlawful arrests or 
restraints by government or governmental, administrative or regulatory agencies 
or authorities unless the result of a violation by the Person of a permit, licence or 
other authorization or of any applicable law, and acts of God including lightning, 
earthquake, fire, flood, landslide, unusually heavy or prolonged rain or 
accumulation of snow or ice or lack of water arising from weather or 
environmental problems; provided however, for greater certainty, that the lack, 
insufficiency or non-availability of funds shall not constitute a Force Majeure 
Event; 

"Good Utility Practice" means any of the practices, methods and acts engaged in or 
approved by a significant portion of the electric utility industry in North America during 
the relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise 
of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, 
could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent 
with good business practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Good Utility Practice is 
not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all 
others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally accepted in North 
America; 

"IESO" means the Independent Electricity System Operator established under the 
Electricity Act, 1998, or its successor; 

"IESO-BM LP Operating Agreement" means the operating agreement which BM LP 
has or will enter with the IESO through which the IESO ensures that the BXM Line will 
be operated in a manner which does not compromise the operation or reliability of the 
IESO-controlled grid to which the BXM Line is connected; 

"OEB" means the Ontario Energy Board established pursuant to the Act; 

"Operations Fees" means the fees for the Operations Services, calculated and adjusted 
in accordance with this Agreement; 

"Operations Services" means all services required in order to operate the BXM Line, 
including without limitation, all operating, maintenance, repair and refurbishment matters 
and including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all services in relation to 
the monitoring and control of the transmission of electricity across the BXM Line in 
accordance with the BM LP Transmission Licence and all services required to fulfill all 
of BM LP's obligations under the Connection Agreement and the IESO-BM LP 
Operating Agreement; 

"Management Activities" means the activities to be undertaken by GPco in connection 
with the management of transmission business of the BM LP which include: 

3 
LEGAL_1:25407127.4 



• 

• 

• 

Final Version 

(i) obtaining (including preparation of applications therefor and submission 
thereof) licences, permits, approvals and rates required in connection with the 
BXM Line, the transmission of electricity thereby and the operation, 
maintenance, repair and replacement thereof; 

(ii) obtaining (including preparation of applications therefor and submission 
thereof) licences, permits, approvals and rates required in connection with the 
BXM Line and the transmission of electricity thereby; 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

(viii) 

(ix) 

representation of the BM LP before the OEB; 

the making or filing of declarations, filings and registrations with, or notices 
to, governmental authorities; 

filing and managing warranty claims; 

procuring and maintaining the necessary inventory of replacement parts; 

maintaining records for the BM LP; 

defending any litigation commenced against the BM LP; and 

such other management activites associated with running the transmission 
business of the BM LP. 

"Management Fees" means the fees for the Management Services, calculated and 
adjusted in accordance with this Agreement; 

"Management Services" means services to be provided by Hydro One Networks to 
GPco to assist GPco with the performance of the Management Activities, which services 
will be requested in writing by GPco from time to time; 

"Person" means any natural person, sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, trust, 
joint venture, governmental authority, incorporated or unincorporated entity, or 
incorporated or unincorporated association of any nature; and 

"Taxes" means any and all applicable federal, state, provincial, or municipal taxes and 
duties including, but not limited to, sales, use, excise, value added, gross receipts, 
privilege or other non-recoverable taxes that are mandated or imposed on (i) Hydro One 
Networks by any jurisdiction or governmental entity in relation to the Operations 
Services and Management Services (other than taxes that are imposed upon the income, 
property, payroll or capital of Hydro One Networks), (ii) BM LP (other than taxes that 
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are imposed upon the income, property, payroll or capital of BM LP or any of the 
partners of BM LP) , or GP co (other than taxes that are imposed upon the mcome, 
property, payroll or capital of GPco). 

ARTICLE II: PROVISION OF OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES 

2.1 Hydro One Networks shall be the exclusive supplier of Operations Services to 
BM LP commencing on the effective date of this Agreement, provided that the BM LP 
may perform any Operations Services or engage another supplier to perform such 
services if Hydro One Networks is in default in performing its material obligations 
hereunder or is unable to perform its material obligations hereunder by reason of a Force 
Majeure Event, to the extent such services are required to ensure the continued operation 
of the BXM Line. 

2.2 GPco shall be responsible for all Management Activities related to the 
transmission business of BM LP. GPco may make a request in writing, from time to 
time, to Hydro One Networks, for Management Services to assist GPco in connection 
with the Management Activities. Hydro One Networks agrees to provide to GPco those 
Management Services requested in writing by GPco . 

2.3 Hydro One Networks shall at all times provide Operations Services and 
Management Services in accordance with Good Utility Practice, the BM LP 
Transmission Licence, the ARC, all other applicable codes, rules, orders and decisions of 
the.OEB which are binding upon the BXM Line, all applicable law, and provided they 
are not inconsistent with any of the foregoing, Hydro One Networks' own policies and 
procedures (which may include government directives), and shall do so in the same 
manner and to the same extent as it provides similar services in connection with its 
wholly-owned regulated transmission business. Hydro One Networks shall comply with 
all applicable laws in providing the Operations Services and Management Services. 

2.4 To the extent that Hydro One Networks also provides services similar to the 
Operations Services or Management Services in respect of its own assets or business, 
Hydro One Networks will provide such Operations Services and Management Services in 
a non-discriminatory manner as if it were providing such services to itself or receiving a 
similar service in relation to its own transmission assets or business. The Fees for such 
Operations Services and Management Services shall be consistent with the costs incurred 
by Hydro One Networks for such similar services in relation to Hydro One Networks' 
transmission assets or business activities which are substantially similar to the BXM Line 
and business activities of BM LP. 

2.5 Upon expiration of this Agreement or termination of this Agreement for reasons 
other than the default of BM LP, and provided that BM LP is not in default of paying the 
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Fees owing hereunder, Hydro One Networks shall provide, at the request of BM LP, 
reasonable transition support services to facilitate transition to another operating and 
management services entity, reimbursable on the basis of the "fully allocated cost" (as 
defined in the ARC), and otherwise on the terms hereof, for a period of six months 
following the expiration or effective date of termination of this Agreement, or such 
shorter period as BM LP may request. 

2.6 Hydro One Networks shall obtain and maintain in force throughout the term of 
this Agreement, insurance coverage that a reasonable and prudent Person operating a 
transmission business of a comparable size and scale of Hydro One Networks would 
carry as part of its business. Hydro One Network's liability insurance shall name BM LP 
as an additional insured and include a cross-liability and severability of interest clause 
and a waiver of subrogation clause by the insurer against BM LP. In addition, such 
liability insurance policy shall specify that it is primary coverage and not contributory 
with or in excess of any other insurance that may be maintained by BM LP except in the 
circumstance where pursuant to Section 2.8, Hydro One Networks chooses to add BM LP 
as an additional named insured under Hydro One Networks' insurance program. 

2.7 Subject to the provisions of Section 2.8, BM LP shall obtain and maintain in force 
throughout the term of this Agreement, insurance coverage that a reasonable and prudent 
transmitter would carry as part of its transmissions business, including, without 
limitation, property insurance and commercial general liability insurance. Such liability 
insurance shall name Hydro One Networks as an additional insured, include a cross­
liability and severability of interest clause and a waiver of subrogation clause by the 
insurer against Hydro One Networks. In addition, the insurance policies shall specify 
that they are primary coverage and not contributory with or in excess of any other 
insurance that may be maintained by Hydro One Networks. Hydro One Networks will 
procure such coverage for BM LP as part of the Operations Services. 

2.8 Notwithstanding the foregoing and in the alternative, in consultation with BM LP, 
Hydro One Networks may choose to add the BM LP as an additional named insured 
under Hydro One Networks' insurance program and allocate to BM LP as Fees, a portion 
of the premium therefor and any incremental costs borne by Hydro One Networks in 
accommodating the unique circumstances of BM LP (e.g. reducing deductibles to such 
reasonable levels requested by BM LP), provided that the amount of the insurance 
premium allocated to BM LP as Fees (including any incremental costs) shall not exceed 
the cost of insurance described in Section 2.7 if it were to be obtained as stand-alone 
insurance coverage. 

ARTICLE III: FEES 

3.1 BM LP shall pay, without duplication, the Operations Fees and all applicable 
Taxes to Hydro One Networks for the performance of the Operations Services. 
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3.2 GPco shall pay, without duplication, the Management Fees and all applicable 
Taxes to Hydro One Networks for the performance of the Management Services. 

3.3 The Fees for Operations Services and Management Services shall be those costs 
reasonably incurred by Hydro One Networks in connection with the provision of 
Operations Services and Management Services in the manner and to the extent provided 
for hereunder and which are allocated to BM LP and GPco in a manner consistent with 
the ARC. 

3.4 Fees may be set with reference to actual or estimated consumption and may be 
charged on a flat fee or per unit basis. Hydro One Networks, acting reasonably and in 
consultation with BM LP or GPco, as applicable, may elect the most convenient bases for 
setting Fees. Provided that the approach is acceptable to the OEB, Hydro One Networks 
may allocate a portion of its transmission business-related costs to BM LP, including a 
portion of certain types of "direct costs" (as defined in the ARC). Hydro One Networks 
shall, from time to time as required to keep the information current, and in any event, no 
less frequently than annually, provide BM LP with a breakdown of Hydro One Network's 
fully allocated costs of providing the Operations Services. 

3.5 GPco shall use commercially reasonable efforts to recover the Fees payable 
hereunder by BM LP and GPco in the BM LP transmission rate revenue requirement 
submissions to the OEB and representations to be made to the OEB in connection 
therewith. 

ARTICLE IV: INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

4.1 All amounts payable by BM LP and GPco to Hydro One Networks under this 
Agreement shall be paid in accordance with the invoices rendered by Hydro One 
Networks to be issued on a periodic basis matching the time period for which BM LP 
receives payments for the transmission of electricity. BM LP and GPco shall pay Hydro 
One Networks' invoices within 30 days of receipt thereof. 

ARTICLE V: BUDGETS, ACCOUNTS AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 

5.1 Hydro One Networks shall, for each fiscal year of the Term hereof, including any 
extension of the initial Term (other than the first year of the initial term), provide GPco 
with a proposed annual operating, maintenance and capital improvement budget for the 
subsequent fiscal year of the BM LP (the "Budget") at least sixty (60) days prior to the 
commencement of the next fiscal year. Such annual Budget shall be accompanied by an 
annual operating plan prepared by Hydro One Networks setting forth the underlying 
assumptions and plans in connection with the Budget, and setting forth a brief description 
of any major system repairs anticipated to be required in such fiscal year. GPco shall 
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notify Hydro One Networks as soon as reasonably practicable, but no later than thirty 
(30) days after receipt of the Budget, of any questions, comments, objections or 
suggested modifications which it may have with respect to such proposed Budget, and the 
parties shall cooperate with each other in developing a mutually acceptable Budget within 
thirty (30) days thereof. If GPco fails to raise any questions, comments, objections or 
suggested modifications to the proposed Budget within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
the proposed Budget, the proposed Budget shall be deemed to have been approved. The 
parties acknowledge that they have agreed to an annual Budget for the first fiscal year (or 
part thereof) of the initial term of this Agreement. 

5.2 Each Budget will represent Hydro One Networks' estimate of all fully allocated 
costs for providing the Operations Services under this Agreement during the period to 
which the Budget relates, and its estimate of all capital improvements required for 
providing the Operations Services, during the period to which the Budget relates. 

5.3 The parties agree that the Budget may be amended from time to time by mutual 
agreement to reflect revisions necessitated by unanticipated circumstances including, but 
not limited to, changes in applicable law, additions or deletions to the scope of the 
Operations Services hereunder, emergencies and Force Majeure events, provided that 
Hydro One Networks shall not be required to amend the Budget more frequently than 
would be required under its normal business and operations practices . 

5.4 The Budget shall reflect anticipated costs of Operations Services by Hydro One 
Networks on a monthly or quarterly basis and shall be organized by categories mutually 
agreed upon by the parties. If Hydro One Networks becomes aware that the costs of 
Operations Services for the current fiscal year may exceed the Budget by 5% or more of 
the total amount of the Budget, Hydro One Networks shall promptly notify GPco of such 
anticipated budget overrun and provide GPco a proposed amendment to the Budget. 
GPco shall notify Hydro One Networks as soon as reasonably practicable, but no later 
than thirty (30) days after receipt of Hydro One Networks' proposed Budget amendment 
of any questions, comments, objections or suggested modifications thereto and the parties 
shall cooperate with each other in developing a mutually acceptable amendment to the 
Budget. If GPco fails to raise any questions, comments, objections or suggested 
modifications to the proposed Budget amendment within the specified period, Hydro One 
Networks' proposed amendment shall be deemed to have been approved. Hydro One 
Networks shall not, without the written approval of GPco amending the Budget or 
otherwise authorizing such expenditure, perform any further services or incur any further 
costs that would result in or increase such Budget overrun, except in the case of an 
emergency as provided in Section 5.7. 

5.5 If by the start of any fiscal year the parties are unable to reach agreement 
concerning the Budget for such year, then, until such time as agreement is reached, the 
Budget for such year shall be based on the corresponding portions of the Budget for the 
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preceding fiscal year, adjusted as follows: (i) with respect to items of expense that do not 
involve capital additions or improvements, to reflect the net change, if any, between the 
most recently published Ontario Consumer Price Index, published by Statistics Canada, 
not seasonally adjusted and the corresponding index in effect twelve months prior, and 
(ii) with respect to items of expense involving capital additions or improvements, to 
reflect the net change, if any, between the most recently published Producer Price Index 
for Capital Equipment, not seasonally adjusted, and the corresponding index in effect 
twelve months prior. 

5.6 In the event that Hydro One Networks determines that a capital improvement, 
addition, alteration, repair or replacement not included in the Budget that has an impact 
of more than 5% of the total amount of the Budget should be made to the BXM Line in 
order to operate the BXM Line safely or comply with any laws, regulations or orders of 
any governmental authority, including laws, regulations or orders relating to 
environmental compliance or employee safety, Hydro One Networks shall provide GPco 
with a written notice describing the nature of and reason for the improvement, addition, 
alteration, repair or replacement. Hydro One Networks shall not make any such 
improvement, addition, alteration, repair or replacement without GPco' s prior consent, 
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. In the event that GPco 
refuses to approve of any such Hydro One Networks recommended improvement, 
addition, alteration, repair or replacement, Hydro One Networks shall have the option to 
terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 9.3 

5. 7 In the event of an accident or emergency relating to the BXM Line, Hydro One 
Networks may, without obtaining any approvals of GPco which might otherwise be 
required hereunder, take any action, including, but not limited to, committing or 
expending funds, deemed by Hydro One Networks to be reasonably necessary under the 
circumstances. As promptly as reasonably practicable after Hydro One Networks 
establishes control over such accident or emergency, Hydro One Networks shall furnish 
to GPco a reasonably detailed written description of the accident or emergency and the 
manner in which such accident or emergency was handled by Hydro One Networks. 
Hydro One Networks shall be entitled to compensation for costs incurred pursuant to this 
Section 5.7 in addition to all other compensation provided for under this Agreement. 

5.8 Except as provided by Section 5.7 in the case of an emergency, Hydro One 
Networks shall perform all services hereunder in accordance with the annual operating 
plan accompanying the Budget. 

5.9 The parties hereby agree to keep all necessary and proper accounts and records 
relating to the subject matter hereof. Such accounts and records, including invoices, 
receipts, time cards and vouchers shall at all reasonable times be open to audit, inspection 
and copying by each Party to this Agreement. Accounts and records shall be preserved 
and kept available for audit for a period of six years. 
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ARTICLE VI: LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND FORCE MAJEURE EVENTS 

6.1 Other than for sums payable under this Agreement, Hydro One Networks shall 
only be liable to BM LP and GPco and BM LP and GPco shall only be liable to Hydro 
One Networks for any damages that arise directly out of its gross negligence or willful 
misconduct in meeting its respective obligations under this Agreement. Notwithstanding 
the generality of the foregoing, neither party shall be liable to the other party under any 
circumstances whatsoever for any loss of profits or revenues, business interruption losses, 
loss of contract or loss of goodwill, or for any indirect, consequential or incidental 
damages, including but not limited to punitive or exemplary damages, whether any of the 
said liability, loss or damages arise in statute, contract, tort or otherwise. 

6.2 In any event, except with respect to gross negligence or willful misconduct, the 
total liability of Hydro One Networks to BM LP and GPco and the total liability of BM 
LP and GPco to Hydro One Networks in connection with this Agreement whether it 
arises by statute, contract, tort or otherwise, will not exceed the value of the total amounts 
payable by BM LP and GPco to Hydro One Networks for the Operations Services and 
Management Services in the year that such liability is incurred. 

6.3 No party shall be liable to the other for any loss, damage or delay, or inability to 
perform any obligation under this Agreement in whole or in part due to a Force Majeure 
Event. 

6.4 BM LP will indemnify and save harmless Hydro One Networks providing 
Operations Services from and against any and all Claims that Hydro One Networks may 
suffer, sustain or incur in connection with the provision of the Operations Services except 
to the extent caused or arising from the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of Hydro 
One Networks. 

6.5 If a Force Majeure Event prevents a party from performing any of its obligations 
under this Agreement, such party shall (1) expeditiously, and without delay, notify the 
other party of the Force Majeure Event and its good faith assessment of the effect that the 
Force Majeure Event will. have on its ability to perform any of its obligations, which 
notice shall be confirmed in writing as soon as reasonably practicable if such immediate 
notice is not in writing; (2) not be entitled to suspend performance of any of its 
obligations under the Agreement to any greater extent or for any longer duration than is 
caused by the Force Majeure Event; (3) use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate 
the effects of such Force Majeure Event and to resume full performance of its obligations 
hereunder; (4) keep the other party informed of such efforts on a continuing basis; and 
(5) provide written notice to the other party of the resumption of the performance of any 
obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event. 
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6.6 Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, settlement of any strike, lockout, or labour 
dispute constituting a Force Majeure Event shall be within the sole discretion of the party 
to the Agreement involved in such strike, lockout, or labour dispute and the requirement 
that a party must use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate the effects of a Force 
Majeure Event and resume full performance hereunder shall not apply to strikes, 
lockouts, or labour disputes. 

ARTICLE VII: DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES 

7.1 Any controversy, dispute, difference, question or claim (collectively "Dispute"), 
arising between the parties in connection with the interpretation, performance, 
construction or implementation of this Agreement that cannot be resolved by a 
conference of senior officers of Hydro One Networks and GPco shall be settled in 
accordance with this section. The aggrieved party shall send the other party written 
notice identifying the Dispute, the amount involved, if any, and the remedy sought. The 
Presidents from each party shall confer in an effort to resolve the Dispute. If the 
Presidents are unable to resolve the Dispute within 5 business days after receipt of the 
written notice of the Dispute, then a Party may refer the Dispute to adjudication in court 
or, if all Parties agree, to arbitration before a single arbitrator. Insofar as they do not 
conflict with this Section 7 .1, the Rules for Procedure for Commercial Arbitration of the 
Arbitration and Mediation Institute of Canada Inc./International Chamber of Commerce 
Rules of Arbitration in effect at the date of commencement of any arbitration held under 
this Agreement will apply to the arbitration. A Party may enter any judgment upon any 
award rendered by the arbitrator in any court having jurisdiction. The arbitration will be 
conducted in English under the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario) and will take place in 
either the City of Toronto or such other place as the Parties may agree and at such time 
and place as the arbitrator may fix. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the subject matter 
of any Dispute is also the subject matter of a Dispute under Section 13 of the Limited 
Partnership Agreement governing the BM LP, the resolution of the Dispute under the 
Section 13 of the Limited Partnership Agreement governing the BM LP shall govern and 
be applicable to the resolution of the Dispute under this Agreement and such matter shall 
not be subject to further arbitration or adjudication under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII: CONFIDENTIALITY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

8.1 · Each party (the "Receiving Party") shall maintain in strict confidence this 
Agreement and the existence and contents thereof and all confidential or proprietary 
information of the other party, (the "Disclosing Party") or any of the Disclosing Party's 
directors, officers, employees, consultants, agents or legal, financial or professional 
advisors (the "Disclosing Party Representatives") (collectively the "Confidential 
Information"). Except as permitted herein, the Receiving Party shall not publish, 
reproduce, or disclose, either directly or indirectly, the said Confidential Information to 
any third party and shall not use the said Confidential Information for any purpose other 
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than for purposes of this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Disclosing 
Party. The Receiving Party may disclose the Confidential Information only to its 
partners, shareholder, directors, officers, employees, consultants, agents, professional 
advisors or lenders (the "Receiving Party Representatives") having a need to know same 
and who have undertaken a like obligation to maintain its confidentiality. For greater 
certainty, Confidential Information includes any and all personal information (as that 
term is defined in the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) 
and the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act (Canada), as they 
may be amended) and any and all information regarding a consumer, retailer, wholesale 
buyer, wholesale supplier, or a generator, provided by the Disclosing Party to the 
Receiving Party for purposes of this Agreement. 

8.2 The Receiving Party undertakes to protect and safeguard all Confidential 
Information in its possession or under its control and received by the Disclosing Party, in 
the manner described in Schedule "A" attached hereto. The Disclosing Party may, on 
reasonable notice, and during regular business hours, audit the information management 
practices of the Receiving Party to confirm compliance with the terms and conditions of 
this Article VIII and all applicable statutes, regulations, by-laws, standards and codes, as 
amended. 

8.3 The Receiving Party undertakes to notify the Disclosing Party immediately upon 
discovery of any unauthorized use and/or disclosure of any of the Disclosing Party's 
Confidential Information, to co-operate with the Disclosing Party to help regain 
possession of such Confidential Information, and to prevent its further unauthorized use 
and/or disclosure. 

8.4 The foregoing obligations with respect to confidentiality, use, reproduction, 
dissemination, publication and non-disclosure herein shall not apply to any information that: 

(i) is previously known to or lawfully in the possession of the Receiving Party 
prior to the date of disclosure as evidenced by the Receiving Party's written 
record; 

(ii) is independently known to or discovered by the Receiving Party, without any 
reference to the information or material; 

(iii) is obtained by the Receiving Party from an arm's length third party having a 
bona fide right to disclose same and who was not otherwise under an 
obligation of confidence or fiduciary duty to the Disclosing Party or the 
Disclosing Party Representatives; 

(iv) is or becomes public knowledge through no fault or omission of, or breach of 
this Agreement by, the Receiving Party or the Receiving Party 
Representatives; or 
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is required to be disclosed pursuant to a final judicial or governmental order 
or other legal process, including, without limitation, an order of or legal 
process involving a regulatory authority such as the Ontario Energy Board. 

8.5 The parties acknowledge and agree that the Confidential Information (other than 
Confidential Information contained in this Agreement which shall be jointly owned by the 
parties) shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the Disclosing Party that has 
disclosed the Confidential Information, and the Disclosing Party shall retain all right, title 
and interest in and to the Confidential Information it has disclosed to the Receiving Party. 

8.6 The Receiving Party agrees that it shall keep a record of written Confidential 
Information furnished to it by the Disclosing Party in a location separate from those 
locations where the Receiving Party has stored information in respect of other third parties 
for which it performs work and it shall advise the Disclosing Party of such location. 

8. 7 All Confidential Information furnished by the Disclosing Party (other than this 
Agreement), including that portion of the Confidential Information which is contained in 
analyses, compilations, studies or other documents prepared by the Receiving Party or by 
the Receiving Party Representatives, is the Disclosing Party's property and will be returned 
immediately to the Disclosing Party upon its request except that any information, plans, 
layouts, specifications, descriptions or other information necessary to the continued 
operation and maintenance of the BXM Line and its parts and components, or to the 
replacement of any such parts or components, need not be returned and may be used or 
applied in the continued operation and maintenance of the BXM Line. 

ARTICLE IX: TERM AND TERMINATION 

9.1 This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for an initial term of five 
years and unless terminated in accordance with Section 9.2, shall thereafter be 
automatically renewed for successive periods of five years upon the same terms and 
conditions. 

9.2 Either party may terminate this Agreement, effective at the end of the then current 
five-year term, on at least twelve months' prior written notice. 

9.3 Hydro One Networks may terminate this Agreement on 60 days prior written 
notice in the event that BM LP refuses to approve a capital improvement, addition, 
alteration, repair or replacement recommended by Hydro One Networks in accordance 
with Section 5.6. 
9.4 In the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement: (i) Hydro One 
Networks shall deliver to GPco all books, records and accounts which it has developed 
and maintained relating solely to the BXM Line or its operations or the business of BM 
LP and return all property owned by BM LP, and (ii) the Parties shall take all steps as 
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may be reasonably required to complete any final accounting between them or to provide 
for the completion of matters contemplated hereunder. 

ARTICLE X: GENERAL 

10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. 

10.2 The rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement shall at all times be 
subject to all applicable laws, regulations, orders and directives of any authority of 
competent jurisdiction, including the OEB, and shall be deemed to be amended to the 
extent required to comply with same. 

10.3 This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with respect 
to the Operations Services and Management Services and supersedes all prior oral or 
written representations and Agreements concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 

10.4 This Agreement shall extend to, be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the 
permitted assigns and the respective successors of BM LP, GPco and Hydro One 
Networks . 

10.5 Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof is intended to confer upon any 
Person other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies hereunder. 

10.6 If any party determines that in its reasonable discretion that any further 
instruments or other actions seem necessary or desirable to carry out the terms of this 
Agreement, the other parties shall execute and deliver all such instruments and do all 
such actions as such parties agree in their reasonable discretion as necessary or desirable 
to carry out the terms of this Agreement. 

10.7 No delay or failure in exercising any right under this Agreement or any partial or 
single exercise of any right, will constitute a waiver of that right or any other rights under 
this Agreement. No consent to a breach of any express or implied term set out in this 
Agreement constitutes consent to any subsequent breach. 

10.8 If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the application or effect 
of any such term, covenant or condition is held to be invalid as to any Person, entity or 
circumstance or is determined to be not in the public interest by any court or government 
agency of competent jurisdiction, then such term, covenant or condition shall remain in 
effect to the maximum extent permitted by law and, all other terms, covenants and 
conditions of this Agreement and their application shall not be affected, but shall remain 
in full force and effect and the parties shall be relieved of their respective obligations 
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under this Agreement only to the extent necessary to comply with the court or 
government agency holding. 

10.9 This Agreement does not and shall not be construed to create or establish a 
partnership, agency, joint venture, lease, licence or any other relationship between the 
parties hereto, nor constitute either party as an agent of the other. Neither party hereto 
shall hold itself out to others by act or omission, contrary to the terms of this Agreement. 

10.10 This Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned in 
whole or in part by Hydro One Networks except with the prior written consent of BM LP, 
in its sole discretion. This Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder may not 
be assigned in whole or in part by BM LP other than (i) to the transferee of the BXM 
Line approved by the OEB, or (ii) with the prior written consent of Hydro One Networks, 
in its sole discretion. 

10.11 This Agreement and any amendment, supplement, restatement or termination of 
this Agreement in whole or in part may be signed and delivered in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when signed and delivered is an original, but all of which 
taken together constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement and any 
amendment, supplement, restatement or termination of this Agreement in whole or in part 
may be delivered by means of facsimile or via e-mail in portable document format (PDF) . 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank} 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by the signatures of their proper officers duly authorized in that behalf as of this 
ntt- day of Dwz,...b•r "LO IL\ 

::ROO~. 

Name: Alexander (Sandy) Struthers 
Title: Chief Operating Officer and 

EVP Strategic Planning 
I have the authority to bind the Corporation. 

B2M LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, by its 
general partner B2M GP INC. 

By: 
Name: Mike Penstone 
Title: 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation. 

B2MGPINC. 

By: 
Name: Mike Penstone 
Title: 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation . 

Operations Agreement between B2M LP and HON! 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by the signatures of their proper officers duly authorized in that behalf as of this 
11¥1-. day of \)e<.""'hv • -io1t.1 -- . 

HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. 

By: 
Name: Alexander (Sandy) Struthers 
Title: 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation . 

.B2M .LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, by its 
general partner .B2M GP INC. 

By:~~~-
Name: Mike Penstone 
Title: 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation. 

B2MGPINC. 

I 

By: 
Name: Mike Penstone 
Title: 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation . 

Operations Agreement between B2M l-P and HON/ 
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Schedule "A" 

Receiving Party Security Safeguards Regarding Confidential Information Received 
from the Disclosing Party 

The Receiving Party shall protect the Confidential Information by security safeguards 
appropriate to the sensitivity of the information. 

1) The Receiving Party shall protect the Confidential Information against such risks 
as loss or theft, unauthorized access, disclosure, copying, use, modification or 
destruction, through appropriate security measures, regardless of the format in which it is 
held. 

2) All of the Receiving Party's Representatives with access to the Confidential 
Information shall be contractually required to respect the confidentiality of that 
information. 

3) The Receiving Party acknowledges and agrees that the nature of the safeguards 
will vary depending on the sensitivity, amount, distribution and format of the 
information, and the method of storage. The Receiving Party shall ensure that more 
sensitive information will be safeguarded by a higher level of protection. 

4) The Receiving Party shall ensure that methods of protection will include: 

(a) physical measures, for example, locked filing cabinets and restricted 
access to. offices; 

(b) organizational measures, for example, controlling entry to data centers and 
limiting access to information on a "need-to-know" basis; 

( c) technological measures, for example, the use of passwords and encryption; 
and 

(d) investigative measures, in cases where the Receiving Party has reasonable 
grounds to believe that the Confidential Information is being inappropriately 
collected, used or disclosed by anyone whom in law the Receiving Party is 
responsible . 
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 2 

Included in this exhibit are B2M LP’s financial statements for the year ended December 3 

31, 2014. 4 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
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To the Partners of B2M Limited Partnership 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of B2M Limited Partnership, which comprise the balance sheet as at 
December 31, 2014, the statements of operations and comprehensive loss, partners’ equity and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The financial 
statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the basis of accounting in Note 2 to the financial 
statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting in 
Note 2 to the financial statements; this includes determining that the basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the 
preparation of these financial statements in the circumstances, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2014 are prepared, in all material respects, 
in accordance with the basis of accounting in Note 2 to the financial statements. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of 
accounting. The financial statements are prepared to provide the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the 
partnership from the date of the transfer of the Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets on December 16, 2014. As a result, 
the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.  
 
Our report is intended solely for B2M Limited Partnership and should not be used by parties other than B2M Limited 
Partnership. 
 
 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants  
 
Toronto, Canada 
March 9, 2015
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(thousands of Canadian dollars) 

 Year ended 
December 31, 

2014 

Period from 
March 22 to 

December 31, 
2013 

   
Revenue (Note 6) 
 

 1,657 –
  
Costs  
Operation, maintenance and administration (Note 6)  7,714 –
Depreciation  289 –

   8,003 –
 

Loss before financing charges   (6,346) –
Financing charges (Note 6)  617 –

 
Loss and comprehensive loss  (6,963) –
  
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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Year ended December 31, 2014  Class A Units Class B Units Total 

(thousands of Canadian dollars, except 
number of units) (Note 5) 

Number
of units Unit value 

Number
of units Unit value 

Number
of units Unit value 

  
January 1, 2014 1,000 1 – – 1,000 1
Contributions by partners 188,578,358 188,578 22,000,000 22,000 210,578,358 210,578
Net loss and comprehensive loss (6,454) (509) (6,963)
December 31, 2014 188,579,358 182,125 22,000,000 21,491 210,579,358 203,616
 
 
Period from March 22 to December 31, 2013 Class A Units Class B Units Total 

(thousands of Canadian dollars, except 
number of units) (Note 5) 

Number
of units Unit value 

Number
of units Unit value 

Number
of units Unit value 

  
March 22, 2013 – – – – – –
Contributions by partners 1,000 1 – – 1,000 1
December 31, 2013 1,000 1 – – 1,000 1
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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(thousands of Canadian dollars)  

Year ended 
December 31, 

2014 

Period from 
March 22 to 

December 31, 
2013 

 
Operating activities  
Net loss (6,963) –
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

Depreciation 289 –
Changes in non-cash balances related to operations (Note 7) (970) –
Net cash used in operating activities (7,644) –
 
Financing activities 
Contributions by partners (Note 7) 107,398 1
Notes payable 315,870 –
Net cash from financing activities 423,268 1
 
Investing activities 
Transfer of assets (Note 7) (423,268) –
Net cash used in investing activities (423,268 –
 
Net change in inter-company balances (7,644) 1
Inter-company receivable, beginning of year 1 –
Inter-company payable, end of year (7,643) 1
 
See accompanying notes to Financial Statements. 
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1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 
 
B2M Limited Partnership (B2M LP or the Partnership) was formed on March 22, 2013, under the laws of the Province of 
Ontario. B2M LP is 65.71% owned by B2M GP Inc. (B2M GP or the General Partner), 34.19% owned by the Chippewas of 
Nawash First Nation and the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation, collectively referred to as the Saugeen Ojibway Nation (SON), 
and 0.1% owned by Hydro One B2M LP Inc. (HO B2M LP). Both, B2M GP and HO B2M LP are indirectly owned by Hydro 
One Inc. (Hydro One), and ultimately owned by the Province of Ontario (Province). The principal business of the Partnership is 
the operation, management and maintenance of an electricity transmission line (Bruce to Milton Line) in southwestern Ontario, 
from the Bruce Power facility in Kincardine to Hydro One’s Milton Switching Station in the Town of Milton. On December 16, 
2014, Hydro One’s subsidiary, Hydro One Networks Inc., transfered the Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets totalling $526 
million to B2M LP. The asset transfer was financed by 60% debt ($316 million) and 40% equity ($210 million). The transfer of 
Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets is a common control transaction as Hydro One controlled these assets before and after 
the transfer. 
 
B2M LP is managed by its general partner, B2M GP. The General Partner was incorporated on March 22, 2013, under the 
Business Corporations Act (Ontario). B2M GP holds the general partner interests and carries out the general partner 
responsibilities of B2M LP.  
 
The electricity rates of the Partnership are regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). 
 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
These Financial Statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the accounting policies summarized below and in 
Canadian dollars. These policies are consistent with United States (US) Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), 
with the exception that (1) the Financial Statements were not prepared as though the transfer of the Bruce to Milton Line 
transmission assets had occurred at the beginning of the year in which the transfer occurred and (2) the comparative year 
information has not been retrospectively adjusted, as required under US GAAP for common control transactions. These 
Financial Statements have been prepared to provide the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the 
Partnership from the date of the transfer of the Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets on December 16, 2014. As a result, 
the financial statements may not be suitable for any other purpose. 
 
The Partnership performed an evaluation of subsequent events through to March 9, 2015, the date these financial statements 
were available to be issued, to determine whether any events or transactions warranted recognition and disclosure in these 
financial statements. No such events or transactions were identified. 
 
Use of Management Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, gains 
and losses during the reporting periods. Management evaluates these estimates on an on-going basis based upon: historical 
experience; current conditions; and assumptions believed to be reasonable at the time the assumptions are made with any 
adjustments being recognized in results of operations in the period they arise. Significant estimates relate to asset 
impairments. Actual results may differ significantly from these estimates, which may be impacted by future decisions made 
by the OEB or the Province. 
 
Rate Setting 
 
The Partnership uses US GAAP for rate setting and regulatory accounting and reporting. 
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In October, 2014, B2M LP filed an application with the OEB for an interim transmission rate, effective January 1, 2015, 
seeking the approval of a revenue requirement of $41 million in 2015. This rate is equal to the amount included in Hydro 
One’s transmission rates for the Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets, resulting in no change to overall Uniform 
Transmission Rates. The interim Rate Order was approved by the OEB on December 11, 2014. The 2015 interim Rate Order 
revenue requirement, prorated for number of days the Partnership owned the Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets in 
2014, was used in 2014. 
 
Regulatory Accounting 
 
The OEB has the general power to include or exclude revenues, costs, gains or losses in the rates of a specific period, 
resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which would have applied in an unregulated company. 
Such change in timing involves the application of rate-regulated accounting, giving rise to the recognition of regulatory assets 
and liabilities. The regulatory assets represent certain amounts receivable from future customers and costs that have been 
deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be recovered in future rates. The regulatory liabilities 
generally represent amounts that are refundable to future customers. At December 31, 2014 or 2013, B2M LP had no 
regulatory assets or liabilities. 
  
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenues are collected through OEB-approved rates, which are based on an approved revenue requirement that includes a 
rate of return. Such revenue is recognized as electricity is transmitted and delivered to customers.  
 
Income Taxes 
 
As a limited partnership, B2M LP is not a taxable entity for federal and provincial income tax purposes. Accordingly, no 
current or deferred tax expenses are recognized in the Parternship’s financial statements. Tax on B2M LP’s net income is 
borne by B2M GP and HO B2M LP through the allocation of taxable income. The SON is a tax exempt entity and as such, is 
not subject to tax. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment is recorded at original cost, net of any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of additions, 
including betterments and replacements of asset components, is included on the Balance Sheets as property, plant and 
equipment.  
 
The original cost of property, plant and equipment includes direct materials, direct labour, contracted services, attributable 
capitalized financing costs, asset retirement costs, and direct and indirect overheads that are related to the capital project or 
program. Indirect overheads include a portion of corporate costs such as finance, treasury, human resources, information 
technology and executive costs. Overhead costs, including corporate functions and field services costs, are capitalized on a 
fully allocated basis, consistent with an OEB-approved methodology.  
 
Transmission assets include assets used for the transmission of high-voltage electricity, such as transmission lines, support 
structures, foundations, insulators, connecting hardware and grounding systems, and assets used to step up the voltage of 
electricity from generating stations for transmission and to step down voltages for distribution, including transformers, circuit 
breakers and switches. 
 
Depreciation 
 
The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis based on the estimated remaining service life 
of each asset category. The average service life and depreciation rates for the Partnership’s assets are as follows: 
 
Average Service Life  77 years
Depreciation Rates – Range   1% – 2%
Depreciation Rates – Average  1%
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In accordance with group depreciation practices, the original cost of property, plant and equipment, or major components 
thereof, that are normally retired, is charged to accumulated depreciation, with no gain or loss being reflected in results of 
operations. Where a disposition of property, plant and equipment occurs through sale, a gain or loss is calculated based on 
proceeds and such gain or loss is included in depreciation expense. Depreciation expense also includes the costs incurred to 
remove property, plant and equipment. 
 
Long-Lived Asset Impairment 
 
When circumstances indicate the carrying value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable, the Partnership evaluates 
whether the carrying value of such assets has been impaired. For such long-lived assets, impairment exists when the carrying 
value exceeds the sum of the future estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual 
disposition of the asset. When alternative courses of action to recover the carrying amount of a long-lived asset are under 
consideration, a probability-weighted approach is used to develop estimates of future undiscounted cash flows. If the carrying 
value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable based on the estimated future undiscounted cash flows, an impairment loss is 
recorded, measured as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. As a result, the asset’s carrying value is 
adjusted to its estimated fair value.  
 
The carrying costs of B2M LP’s long-lived assets are included in rate base where they earn an OEB-approved rate of return. 
Asset carrying values and the return are recovered through approved rates. As a result, such assets are only tested for 
impairment in the event that the OEB disallows recovery, in whole or in part, or if such a disallowance is judged to be 
probable. As at December 31, 2014, no asset impairment had been recorded. 
 
Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 
All financial assets and liabilities are classified into one of the following five categories: held-to-maturity investments; loans 
and receivables; held-for-trading; other liabilities; or available-for-sale. Financial assets and liabilities classified as held-for-
trading are measured at fair value. All other financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost, except accounts 
receivable which are measured at the lower of cost or fair value. Accounts receivable are classified as loans and receivables. 
The Partnership considers the carrying amount of accounts receivable to be a reasonable estimate of fair value because of the 
short time to maturity of these instruments. Provisions for impaired accounts receivable are recognized as adjustments to the 
allowance for doubtful accounts and are recognized when there is objective evidence that the Partnership will not be able to 
collect amounts according to the original terms. The Partnership determines the classification of its financial assets and 
liabilities at the date of initial recognition. 
 
 
3. NOTE PAYABLE 
 
Note payable represents a promissory note payable to B2M GP. The note was issued on December 17, 2014, with a face 
amount of $387,870 thousand and interest at a rate of 4.75% per annum. The Partnership repaid $72,000 thousand of the note 
on December 17, 2014, resulting in amount outstanding of $315,870 thousand at December 31, 2014. 
 
The note is payable on demand but no later than December 16, 2016. The Partnership plans to repay the note by December 
31, 2015, with financing to be provided by a trust wholly-owned by Hydro One. Accordingly, at December 31, 2014, the 
note has been classified as a current liability on the Balance Sheet. 
 
 
4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Fair value is considered to be the exchange price in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell an asset or 
transfer a liability at the measurement date. The fair value definition focuses on an exit price, which is the price that would be 
received in the sale of an asset or the amount that would be paid to transfer a liability.  
 
The Partnership classifies its fair value measurements based on the following hierarchy, as prescribed by the accounting 
guidance for fair value, which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels: 
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Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Partnership has the 
ability to access. An active market for the asset or liability is one in which transactions for the asset or liability occurs with 
sufficient frequency and volume to provide ongoing pricing information.  
 
Level 2 inputs are those other than quoted market prices that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for an asset or 
liability. Level 2 inputs include, but are not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active and inputs other than quoted market 
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rate curves and yield curves observable at commonly 
quoted intervals, volatilities, credit risk and default rates. A Level 2 measurement cannot have more than an insignificant 
portion of the valuation based on unobservable inputs. 
 
Level 3 inputs are any fair value measurements that include unobservable inputs for the asset or liability for more than an 
insignificant portion of the valuation. A Level 3 measurement may be based primarily on Level 2 inputs.  
 
Non−Derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 
At December 31, 2014, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable, inter-company payable, and note payable are 
representative of fair value because of the short-term nature of these instruments. 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
Fair value hierarchy information for financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2014 was as follows: 
 

 
December 31, 2014 (thousands Canadian dollars) 

 
Carrying Value Fair Value 

 
Level 1 

 
Level 2 

 
Level 3 

Liabilities: 
  Inter-company payable 7,643 7,643 7,643 – – 
  Note payable 315,870 315,870 315,870 – – 
     323,513 323,513 323,513 – –

 
There were no significant transfers between any of the levels during the years ended December 31, 2014. 
 
Risk Management 
 
Exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Partnership’s business.  
 
Market Risk 
 
Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and 
interest rates. The Partnership does not have market risk.  
 
Credit Risk 
 
Financial assets create a risk that a counterparty will fail to discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. At December 31, 
2014, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial assets. The Partnership did 
not earn a significant amount of revenue from any individual customer. At December 31, 2014, there was no significant 
accounts receivable balance due from any single customer.  
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to the Partnership’s ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due. The Partnership meets its 
short-term liquidity requirements through the inter-company payable with Hydro One and funds from operations. The short-
term liquidity available to the Partnership should be sufficient to fund normal operating requirements. 
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At December 31, 2014, accrued liabilities in the amount of $70 thousand (2013 – $nil) were expected to be settled in cash at 
their carrying amounts within the next year.  
 
At December 31, 2014, the principal amount and accrued interest on the note payable were $315,870 thousand (2013 – $nil) 
and $617 thousand (2013 – $nil), respectively, to be repaid within the next 12 months. 
 
 
5. PARTNERS’ EQUITY 
 
B2M LP is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A and Class B units. The Class A and Class B units are voting and 
participate equally in profits, losses and capital distributions of B2M LP. The Class A and Class B units are equal with respect to 
all rights, benefits obligations and limitations provided under the Limited Partnership Agreement. Any units issued by B2M LP 
must be first offered to the existing partners in proportion to their ownership interests. At December 31, 2014, B2M LP had 
188,579,358 Class A units issued and outstanding, and 22,000,000 Class B units issued and outstanding. 
 
As the SON is a tax exempt entity, the amount of income or loss corresponding to taxes recovered in transmission rates is 
allocated to the taxable partners, B2M GP and HO B2M LP (Hydro One Partners), and the remaining balance is allocated to 
all partners in proportion to their ownership interests. 
 
At December 31, 2014, partners’ equity was allocated to the SON and the Hydro One Partners as follows: 
 

Year ended December 31, 2014  
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except number of units) SON 

Hydro One 
Partners Total 

  
Class A Units  
    Class A – number of units – December 31, 2014 50,000,000 138,579,358 188,579,358
  
    Class A unit value – January 1, 2014 – 1 1
    Contributions by partners 50,000 138,578 188,578
   Net loss and comprehensive loss (1,156) (5,298) (6,454)

Class A unit value – December 31, 2014 48,844 133,281 182,125
 

Class B Units  
   Class B – number of units – December 31, 2014 22,000,000 – 22,000,000

 
   Class A unit value – January 1, 2014 – – –
   Contributions by partners 22,000 – 22,000
   Net loss and comprehensive loss (509) – (509)

Class B unit value – December 31, 2014 21,491 – 21,491
 

Total parters’ equity  
   Number of units – December 31, 2014 72,000,000 138,579,358 210,579,358

 
   Partners’ equity – January 1, 2014 – 1 1
   Contributions by partners 72,000 138,578 210,578
   Net loss and comprehensive loss (1,665) (5,298) (6,963)

Partners’ equity – December 31, 2014 70,335 133,281 203,616
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6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Partnership is 65.81% indirectly owned by Hydro One and 34.19% owned by the SON. Hydro One is owned by the 
Province. The Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) is a related party to the Partnership because it is controlled or 
significantly influenced by the Province. Transactions between the IESO and the Partnership are as follows: 
 
The Partnership earns revenues for transmission services from the IESO, based on uniform transmission rates approved by 
the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). Revenues from the IESO in 2014 were $1,657 thousand (2013 – $nil). At December 31, 
2014, included in accounts receiveable were amounts due from the IESO of $1,657 thousand (2013 – $nil). 
 
Hydro One and Subsidiaries  
   
Hydro One and its subsidiaries paid for expenses of the Partnership which will be reimbursed by the Partnership. Amounts 
due to or from Hydro One and its subsidiaries by the Partnership are included in the inter-company payable or receivable. At 
December 31, 2014, the Partnership had an inter-company payable balance of $7,643 thousand (2013 – receivable of 
$1 thousand). 
  
The Parnership’s note payable is due to B2M GP. Financing charges include interest expense on the note payable in the amount 
of $617 thousand (2013 – $nil). At December 31, 2014, the Partnership had accrued interest payable to B2M GP totaling 
$617 thousand (2013 – $nil). 
 
 
7. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The changes in non-cash balances related to operations consist of the following: 
 
 
 
(thousands of Canadian dollars) 

 Year ended 
December 31, 

2014 

Period from 
March 22 to 

December 31, 
2013 

Accounts receivable  (1,657) –
Accrued liabilities  70 –
Accrued interest  617 –
  (970) –
 
Transfer of Assets 
 
The following table illustrates the reconciliation between the Bruce to Milton Line transmission assets transferred from 
Hydro One Networks Inc. to B2M LP and the cash and non-cash consideration paid for the transfer of these assets: 
 
Year ended December 31 (millions of Canadian dollars)  2014 

  
Cash consideration:  
    Financed by note payable to B2M GP  315,870
    Financed by issuance of Class A and Class B units  107,398
    Total cash consideration paid  423,268
  
Non-cash consideration:  
    Class A units issued directly as consideration for transfer of assets  103,180
  
Total consideration paid for transfer of assets  526,448
  
Total assets transfered  526,448
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Line
No. Particulars 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

Revenues

1 Retail power & energy 1.7            43.4           45.0        45.6        47.3        46.6        
2 Commodity flow-through -           -            -          -          -          -          
3 LV -           -            -          -          -          -          
4 Other -           -            -          -          -          -          
5 1.7            43.4           45.0        45.6        47.3        46.6        

Costs

6 OM&A 7.7            1.8             1.2          1.2          2.5          1.5          
7 Cost of power -           -            -          -          -          -          
8 Depreciation 0.3            6.8             6.8          6.8          6.8          6.8          
9 Capital tax -           -            -          -          -          -          
10 8.0            8.6             8.0          8.0          9.3          8.3          

11 Earnings before interest and income tax (6.3)          34.8           37.0        37.5        38.1        38.3        

12 Interest expense 0.6            15.0           14.8        15.0        15.1        15.3        

13 Earnings before income tax (7.0)          19.8           22.3        22.5        23.0        23.0        

14 Income tax -           0.4             0.4          0.4          0.9          1.1          

15 Net income (7.0)         19.4         21.9      22.1      22.1       21.9        

Year Ending December 31
($ Millions)

B2M LP

Pro Forma Statement of Income
Historic Year (2014) and Test Years (2015 to 2019)
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SUMMARY OF BOARD DIRECTIVES AND UNDERTAKINGS FROM 1 

PREVIOUS PROCEEDINGS 2 

 3 

Table 1 identifies the Board directive from its EB-2014-0330 Decision and Interim 4 

Order.  5 

 6 

Table 1 7 

Directives from Proceeding EB-2014-0330 (2015 Interim Rates) 8 

Item # Issue Summary of Directive Reference Exhibit 

(i) COS 

Application 

Ordered 

B2M LP shall file a full cost of service transmission 

rate application for final revenue requirement and rates, 

no later than April 1, 2015. 

Entire Application 

 9 
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PROCEDURAL ORDERS/CORRESPONDENCE/NOTICES 1 

 2 

To be filed behind this tab as and when the Procedural Orders/Correspondence/Notices 3 

are issued. 4 
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DRAFT ISSUES LIST 1 

 2 

GENERAL  3 

1) Has B2M LP responded appropriately to all relevant Board directions from previous 4 

proceedings?  5 

2) Is the overall increase in 2015 to 2019 revenue requirement reasonable?  6 

 7 

APPLICATION FRAMEWORK 8 

3) Is the proposed framework of a five year cost of service application appropriate? 9 

4) Are B2M LP’s proposed annual adjustments appropriate? 10 

5) Is the monitoring and reporting of performance proposed by B2M LP adequate to 11 

demonstrate whether the planned outcomes are achieved?  12 

 13 

OPERATIONS MAINTENANCE and ADMINISTRATION COSTS  14 

6) Are the proposed spending levels for OM&A in 2015 to 2019 appropriate, including 15 

consideration of factors such as system reliability and asset condition?  16 

7) Are the methodologies used to allocate common corporate costs for 2015 to 2019 17 

appropriate?  18 

 19 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES and RATE BASE  20 

8) Are the amounts proposed for rate base in 2015 to 2019 appropriate?  21 

 22 

REVENUE REQUIREMENT 23 

9) Are the business assumptions and policies used by B2M LP to develop and allocate its 24 

revenue requirements appropriate?  25 

10) Is the capital structure and cost of capital component of the revenue requirement for 26 

2015 appropriate?  27 
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11) Is the depreciation component of the revenue requirement for 2015 to 2019 1 

appropriate?  2 

12) Is the taxes / PILs component of the revenue requirement for 2015 to 2019 3 

appropriate?  4 

13) Is the proposed recovery of start-up and development costs appropriate? Is the 5 

proposed smoothing methodology for the start-up and development costs over the test 6 

years appropriate?  7 

 8 

DEFERRAL/VARIANCE ACCOUNTS  9 

14) Are the proposed new Deferral and Variance Accounts appropriate?  10 

 11 

COST ALLOCATION  12 

15) Is the cost allocation proposed by B2M LP appropriate? 13 



Filed: 2015-03-30  
EB-2015-0026 
Exhibit A 
Tab 15 
Schedule 1 
Page 1 of 1 

 

LIST OF WITNESSES 1 

 2 

To be filed behind this tab if the Board determines that an oral hearing is required. 3 
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 CURRICULAE VITAE 1 

CURRICULUM VITAE OF 2 

GIOVANNA BARAGETTI 3 

 4 

EDUCATION: 5 

 6 

McGill University, Montreal, Quebec 7 

Graduate Diploma in Public Accountancy (1992) 8 

Bachelor of Commerce (1990) 9 

 10 

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS:  11 

 Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario – CPA, CA 12 

 Tax Executive Institute, Toronto Chapter, National Income Tax Committee 13 

 14 

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE: 15 

 16 

2015 – Present 17 

B2M Trust, Trustee 18 

 19 

2012 – Present 20 

Hydro One Networks Inc. 21 

2012 – Present  V.P. Corporate Tax 22 

 23 

2007 – 2012 24 

Magna International Inc. 25 

2009 – 2012   Director of Tax, Canada & Latin America 26 

2007 – 2008   Senior Tax Manager 27 

 28 

2005 – 2007 29 

SNC Lavalin Inc. 30 

2005 – 2007   Director of Canadian Tax  31 

 32 

1992 – 2005 33 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP/ Coopers & Lybrand LLP 34 

2000 – 2005   Senior Manager, International Tax  35 

1997 - 2000    Tax Manager 36 

1995 - 1997  Senior Associate, Tax 37 

1992 - 1995    Senior Associate, Audit 38 

 39 

INDUSTRY REPRESENTATION: 40 

B2M Limited Partnership, Member of Advisory Committee   41 
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CURRICULUM VITAE OF 1 

RANDALL KAHGEE 2 

 3 

EDUCATION: 4 

 5 

York University, Toronto, Ontario (1996) 6 

Bachelor of Arts with Honors (B.A. Hons) 7 

 8 

Faculty of Law – University of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario (2000) 9 

Bachelor of Laws (LL.B) 10 

 11 

 12 

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS:  13 

 Law Society of Upper Canada 14 

 15 

 16 

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE: 17 

 18 

2006 – 2014 19 

Chief, Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation 20 

 21 

2014 - Present 22 

Pape Salter Teillet LLP 23 

 24 

Pape Salter Teillet LLP is a leading aboriginal rights law firm that does extensive work 25 

with First Nations, Métis and Inuit peoples to advance the rights and interests of their 26 

communities through self-government, environmental stewardship, agreements with 27 

industry, and litigation.  28 

 29 

2014 – Present  Affiliated Counsel 30 

2000 – 2006   Counsel  31 
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CURRICULUM VITAE OF 1 

MIKE PENSTONE 2 

 3 

EDUCATION: 4 

 5 

McMaster University, Hamilton, Ontario (1979) 6 

Bachelor of Applied Science in Electrical Engineering. 7 

 8 

 9 

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE: 10 

 11 

2014 – Present 12 

B2M GP Inc. 13 

2014 – Present  Managing Director  14 

 15 

 16 

1979 – Present  17 

Hydro One Networks Inc. / Ontario Hydro 18 

 19 

2014 – Present  VP Planning 20 

2012 – 2014  VP System Investment 21 

2010 – 2012  VP Major Projects Coordination and External Relations 22 

2008 – 2010  VP Government Relations 23 

2005 – 2008  Director System Investment 24 

2001 – 2005  Manager Standards and Policy 25 

2000 – 2001  Manager Operating Effectiveness 26 

1998 – 2000   Manager Operating Effectiveness 27 

1983 – 1991   Transmission Engineer / Officer 28 

1979 – 1983   Assistant Engineer / Officer 29 

 30 

 31 

INDUSTRY REPRESENTATION: 32 

 33 

North American Electric Reliability Corporation, Members Representative Committee 34 

Northeast Power Coordination Council, Board of Directors 35 

North American Transmission Forum, Board of Directors 36 

 37 

 38 

APPEARANCE(S) BEFORE THE ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD: 39 

EB-2005-0378: Hydro One Networks Inc. 2006 Distribution Rate Application 40 

EB-2006-0501: Hydro One Networks Inc. 2007-2008 Transmission Rate Application41 
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CURRICULUM VITAE OF 1 

COLIN SALTER 2 

 3 

EDUCATION: 4 

 5 

University of British Columbia, Vancouver, British Columbia (1993) 6 

Bachelor of Arts (B.A.) 7 

 8 

Osgood Hall Law School - York University, Toronto, Ontario (1997) 9 

Bachelor of Laws (LL.B) 10 

 11 

 12 

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS:  13 

 Law Society of Upper Canada 14 

 Law Society of the Northwest Territories 15 

 Law Society of Yukon 16 

 17 

 18 

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE: 19 

 20 

1999 – Present 21 

Pape Salter Teillet LLP 22 

 23 

Pape Salter Teillet LLP is a leading aboriginal rights law firm that does extensive work 24 

with First Nations, Métis and Inuit peoples to advance the rights and interests of their 25 

communities through self-government, environmental stewardship, agreements with 26 

industry, and litigation.  27 

 28 

2013 – Present  Partner 29 

1999 – 2012   Counsel  30 
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CURRICULUM VITAE OF 1 

JEFFREY SMITH 2 

 3 

EDUCATION: 4 

 5 

Ivey School of Business at the University of Western Ontario, London, Ontario (1987) 6 

Master of Business Administration 7 

 8 

University of Western Ontario, London, Ontario (1985) 9 

Bachelor of Arts, Economics 10 

 11 

 12 

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE: 13 

 14 

February 2000 – Present     15 

Hydro One Networks Inc. /Ontario Hydro Services Company 16 

 17 

2012 - Present  Director, Business Performance, Corporate & Regulatory Affairs 18 

2011-2012  Director, Outsourcing Services, Financial & Corporate Support 19 

2007-2011   Program Manager, Cornerstone, Corporate Projects 20 

2005-2007  Manager, Project Management & Control, Information Solutions  21 

2002-2005  Manager, Inergi Finance / Outsourcing, Corporate Finance 22 

2000-2002  Senior Advisor, Decision Support, Corporate Finance 23 

 24 

 25 

October 1997 - February 2000 26 

Union Gas Limited 27 

 28 

1997-1998  Senior Analyst, Financial Studies 29 

1998-2000  Analyst, Cost Allocation and Rate Design 30 

 31 

 32 

INDUSTRY REPRESENTATION: 33 

 34 

B2M Limited Partnership, Member of Advisory Committee 35 

Ontario Energy Association, Member of the Regulatory Committee  36 

 37 

 38 

APPEARANCE(S) BEFORE THE ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD: 39 

EB-2012-0047: Horizon Utilities Corporation Service Area Amendment Application 40 
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COST OF CAPITAL 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION   3 

 4 

The purpose of this evidence is to summarize the method and cost of financing B2M LP’s 5 

capital requirements for the 2015 to 2019 test years.   6 

 7 

2.0 CAPITAL STRUCTURE  8 

 9 

B2M LP has applied the deemed capital structure of 60% debt and 40% common equity, as 10 

affirmed by the Board in EB-2009-0084 proceeding issued on December 11, 2009, in 11 

determining its estimated revenue requirement for 2015 to 2019.   12 

 13 

3.0 RETURN ON COMMON EQUITY 14 

 15 

B2M LP is requesting an equity return of 9.30% for the 2015 test year, 9.68% for 2016, 16 

9.93% for 2017, 10.03% for 2018 and 10.08% for 2019. The equity returns for 2015 reflect 17 

the Board’s approved equity return per its November 20, 2014 guidance on cost of capital 18 

reflecting the September 2014 Consensus Forecast.  19 

 20 

The Company assumes that the return on equity (“ROE”) for the 2016 to 2019 test years will 21 

be updated in accordance with the Cost of Capital Report, upon the final decision in this 22 

case.  Specifically, the 2016 to 2019 ROE would be updated to reflect the September 23 

Consensus Forecasts and Bank of Canada data available in October of the preceding year as 24 

part of the Draft Rate Order for those test years. 25 
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4.0  DEEMED SHORT-TERM DEBT  1 

 2 

The Board has determined that the deemed amount of short-term debt that should be factored 3 

into rate setting be fixed at 4% of rate base.  B2M LP’s evidence reflects this amount of 4 

short-term debt for rate making purposes.  The evidence reflects a Return on Short Term 5 

Debt of 2.16% for 2015.  Estimated short-term debt rates for 2016 to 2019 are shown in 6 

Table 1.  These rates will be updated each year for 2016 to 2019 based on the Cost of Capital 7 

Parameter Updates issued by the Board in November each year as part of the annual UTR 8 

update.   9 

  10 

5.0 DEEMED LONG-TERM DEBT  11 

 12 

The Board has determined that the deemed amount of long-term debt that should be factored 13 

into rate setting be fixed at 56% of rate base.  The long term debt rate is calculated to be 14 

3.38% for 2015, which is a blended long term debt rate based on Hydro One Transmission’s 15 

long term debt rate calculation for 2015 approved in EB-2014-0140 for the period of January 16 

1st to June 30th and the new long term debt rate for the remaining period of 2015.  Following 17 

the transfer of assets, B2M LP issued a note bearing Hydro One Transmission’s weighted 18 

average debt rate.  This note is being replaced with a note issued by B2M LP reflecting 19 

an actual 5-year note issued by Hydro One Inc. to third party public debt investors in 20 

the second quarter of 2015. 21 

  22 

 23 

Forecast interest rates will be updated consistent with the methodology described above for 24 

the return on common equity and deemed short term interest rate.   25 
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6.0 COST OF CAPITAL SUMMARY 1 

 2 

Calculation of B2M LP’s 2015 to 2019 cost of capital is shown in Table 1: 3 

Table 1 4 

2015 to 2019 Cost of Capital 5 

2015 
Amount of Deemed Return ($M) % Cost Rate (%) Return ($M) 

   Long-term debt 292.7 56.0% 3.38% 9.9 
   Short-term debt 20.9 4.0% 2.16% 0.5 
   Common equity 209.1 40.0% 9.30% 19.4 
Total 522.8 100.0% 5.70% 29.8 

2016 
Amount of Deemed Return ($M) % Cost Rate (%) Return ($M) 

   Long-term debt 288.9 56.0% 1.80% 5.2 
   Short-term debt 20.6 4.0% 1.96% 0.4 
   Common equity 206.4 40.0% 9.68% 20.0 
Total 516.0 100.0% 4.96% 25.6 

2017 
Amount of Deemed Return ($M) % Cost Rate (%) Return ($M) 

   Long-term debt 285.1 56.0% 1.80% 5.1 
   Short-term debt 20.4 4.0% 3.97% 0.8 
   Common equity 203.7 40.0% 9.93% 20.2 
Total 509.2 100.0% 5.14% 26.1 

2018 
Amount of Deemed Return ($M) % Cost Rate (%) Return ($M) 

   Long-term debt 281.3 56.0% 1.79% 5.0 
   Short-term debt 20.1 4.0% 4.71% 0.9 
   Common equity 200.9 40.0% 10.03% 20.1 
Total 502.4 100.0% 5.20% 26.1 

2019 
Amount of Deemed Return ($M) % Cost Rate (%) Return ($M) 

   Long-term debt 277.5 56.0% 1.79% 5.0 
   Short-term debt 19.8 4.0% 4.71% 0.9 
   Common equity 198.2 40.0% 10.08% 20.0 
Total 495.6 100.0% 5.22% 25.9 

 6 

Test Year debt and equity summary schedules are provided at Exhibit B2, Tab 1, Schedule 1.  7 



Updated: 2015-06-29
EB-2015-0026

Exhibit B2
Tab 1

Schedule 1
Page 1 of 1

B2M LP
Debt and Equity Summary

Historical (2014) & Test (2015 to 2019) Years
Utility Capital Structure

Year Ending December 31

Cost Return Cost Return Cost Return Cost Return Cost Return Cost Return
Rate ($M) Rate ($M) Rate ($M) Rate ($M) Rate ($M) Rate ($M)
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

(a) (b) (c) (d) (a) (b) (c) (d) (a) (b) (c) (d) (a) (b) (c) (d) (a) (b) (c) (d) (a) (b) (c) (d)

1 Long-term debt 294.7 56.0% 4.94% 14.5 292.7 56.0% 3.38% 9.9 288.9 56.0% 1.80% 5.2 285.1 56.0% 1.80% 5.1 281.3 56.0% 1.79% 5.0 277.5 56.0% 1.79% 5.0

3 Total debt 315.8 60.0% 4.75% 15.0 313.7 60.0% 3.30% 10.3 309.6 60.0% 1.81% 5.6 305.5 60.0% 1.94% 5.9 301.4 60.0% 1.99% 6.0 297.3 60.0% 1.98% 5.9

4 Common equity 210.5 40.0% 9.36% 19.7 209.1 40.0% 9.30% 19.4 206.4 40.0% 9.68% 20.0 203.7 40.0% 9.93% 20.2 200.9 40.0% 10.03% 20.1 198.2 40.0% 10.08% 20.0

5 Total rate base 526.3 100.0% 6.59% 34.7 522.8 100.0% 5.70% 29.8 516.0 100.0% 4.96% 25.6 509.2 100.0% 5.14% 26.1 502.4 100.0% 5.20% 26.1 495.6 100.0% 5.22% 25.9

2014

($M) %

21.1 4.0% 2.11% 0.4

2019

($M) %

4.0%

($M) %

2015 2016 2017 2018

($M) % ($M) %%

0.92.16% 1.96% 3.97% 4.71%0.52 Short-term debt 20.9

Line No.  Particulars ($M)

4.71%0.4 0.8 0.920.6 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%20.4 20.1 19.8
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Premium
Principal Discount Per $100 Projected
Amount and Total Principal at at Avg. Monthly Carrying Average

Line Offering Coupon Maturity Offered Expenses Amount Amount Effective 12/31/14 12/31/15 Averages Cost Embedded
No. Date Rate Date ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) (Dollars) Cost Rate ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) Cost Rates

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l) (m)

1 3-Jun-00    7.350% 3-Jun-30    278.4  4.5  273.9  98.37  7.49% 278.4  278.4  278.4  20.8  
2 22-Jun-01    6.930% 1-Jun-32    109.3  1.3  107.9  98.78  7.03% 109.3  109.3  109.3  7.7  
3 17-Sep-02    6.930% 1-Jun-32    58.0  (2.1)  60.1  103.57  6.65% 58.0  58.0  58.0  3.9  
4 31-Jan-03    6.350% 31-Jan-34    126.0  1.0  125.0  99.21  6.41% 126.0  126.0  126.0  8.1  
5 22-Apr-03    6.590% 22-Apr-43    145.0  1.1  143.9  99.26  6.64% 145.0  145.0  145.0  9.6  
6 25-Jun-04    6.350% 31-Jan-34    72.0  (0.2)  72.2  100.22  6.33% 72.0  72.0  72.0  4.6  
7 20-Aug-04    6.590% 22-Apr-43    39.0  (3.1)  42.1  107.89  6.06% 39.0  39.0  39.0  2.4  
8 24-Aug-04    6.350% 31-Jan-34    39.0  (1.4)  40.4  103.48  6.09% 39.0  39.0  39.0  2.4  
9 19-May-05    5.360% 20-May-36    228.9  8.7  220.2  96.19  5.62% 228.9  228.9  228.9  12.9  
10 3-Mar-06    4.640% 3-Mar-16    210.0  1.0  209.0  99.52  4.70% 210.0  210.0  210.0  9.9  
11 24-Apr-06    5.360% 20-May-36    187.5  2.5  185.0  98.68  5.45% 187.5  187.5  187.5  10.2  
12 22-Aug-06    4.640% 3-Mar-16    60.0  0.8  59.2  98.75  4.80% 60.0  60.0  60.0  2.9  
13 19-Oct-06    5.000% 19-Oct-46    30.0  0.2  29.8  99.29  5.04% 30.0  30.0  30.0  1.5  
14 13-Mar-07    4.890% 13-Mar-37    240.0  1.3  238.7  99.45  4.93% 240.0  240.0  240.0  11.8  
15 18-Oct-07    5.180% 18-Oct-17    225.0  0.8  224.2  99.63  5.23% 225.0  225.0  225.0  11.8  
16 3-Mar-08    5.180% 18-Oct-17    180.0  (3.1)  183.1  101.73  4.95% 180.0  180.0  180.0  8.9  
17 3-Mar-09    6.030% 3-Mar-39    195.0  1.2  193.8  99.41  6.07% 195.0  195.0  195.0  11.8  
18 16-Jul-09    5.490% 16-Jul-40    210.0  1.4  208.6  99.36  5.53% 210.0  210.0  210.0  11.6  
19 15-Mar-10    5.490% 24-Jul-40    120.0  (0.7)  120.7  100.58  5.45% 120.0  120.0  120.0  6.5  
20 15-Mar-10    4.400% 4-Jun-20    180.0  0.8  179.2  99.55  4.46% 180.0  180.0  180.0  8.0  
21 13-Sep-10    2.950% 11-Sep-15    150.0  0.6  149.4  99.62  3.03% 150.0  0.0  103.8  3.1  
22 13-Sep-10    5.000% 19-Oct-46    150.0  (0.4)  150.4  100.25  4.98% 150.0  150.0  150.0  7.5  
23 26-Sep-11    4.390% 26-Sep-41    205.0  1.3  203.7  99.35  4.43% 205.0  205.0  205.0  9.1  
24 22-Dec-11    4.000% 22-Dec-51    70.0  0.4  69.6  99.47  4.03% 70.0  70.0  70.0  2.8  
25 13-Jan-12    3.200% 13-Jan-22    154.0  0.8  153.2  99.47  3.26% 154.0  154.0  154.0  5.0  
26 22-May-12    3.200% 13-Jan-22    165.0  (1.6)  166.6  100.97  3.08% 165.0  165.0  165.0  5.1  
27 22-May-12    4.000% 22-Dec-51    68.8  0.3  68.4  99.51  4.02% 68.8  68.8  68.8  2.8  
28 31-Jul-12    3.790% 31-Jul-62    52.5  0.3  52.2  99.47  3.81% 52.5  52.5  52.5  2.0  
29 16-Aug-12    3.790% 31-Jul-62    141.0  1.1  139.9  99.20  3.83% 141.0  141.0  141.0  5.4  
30 9-Oct-13    4.590% 9-Oct-43    239.3  1.4  237.9  99.42  4.63% 239.3  239.3  239.3  11.1  
31 9-Oct-13    2.780% 9-Oct-18    412.5  1.7  410.8  99.59  2.87% 412.5  412.5  412.5  11.8  
32 29-Jan-14    4.290% 29-Jan-64    30.0  0.2  29.8  99.44  4.32% 30.0  30.0  30.0  1.3  
33 3-Jun-14    4.170% 3-Jun-44    198.0  1.2  196.8  99.40  4.21% 198.0  198.0  198.0  8.3  
34 15-Mar-15    4.771% 15-Mar-45    159.3  0.8  158.6  99.50  4.80% 0.0  159.3  122.6  5.9  
35 15-Jun-15    3.905% 15-Jun-25    159.3  0.8  158.6  99.50  3.97% 0.0  159.3  85.8  3.4  
36 15-Sep-15    3.046% 15-Sep-20    159.3  0.8  158.6  99.50  3.15% 0.0  159.3  49.0  1.5  

37 Subtotal 4969.1  5297.1  5180.3  253.4  
38 Treasury OM&A costs 1.6  
39 Other financing-related fees 2.9  
40 Total 4969.1  5297.1  5180.3  257.9  4.98% 

Premium
Principal Discount Per $100 Projected
Amount and Total Principal at at Avg. Monthly Carrying Average

Line Offering Coupon Maturity Offered Expenses Amount Amount Effective 12/31/14 12/31/15 Averages Cost Embedded
No. Date Rate Date ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) (Dollars) Cost Rate ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) Cost Rates

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l) (m)
1 30-Jun-15    1.640% 30-Apr-20    293.0  1.1  291.9  99.64  1.72% 0.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  

2 Subtotal 0.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  
3 Treasury OM&A costs 0.1  
4 Other financing-related fees 0.2  
5 Total 0.0  293.0  293.0  5.3  1.80% 

Blended WACC 3.38%

Net Capital Employed
Total Amount Outstanding

B2M LP
Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital

 Test Year (2015) 
Year ending December 31

Total Amount Outstanding

HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC.
TRANSMISSION

Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital
 Test Year (2015) 

Year ending December 31

Net Capital Employed
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Premium
Principal Discount Per $100 Projected
Amount and Total Principal at at Avg. Monthly Carrying Average

Line Offering Coupon Maturity Offered Expenses Amount Amount Effective 12/31/15 12/31/16 Averages Cost Embedded
No. Date Rate Date ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) (Dollars) Cost Rate ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) Cost Rates

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l) (m)

1 30-Jun-15    1.640% 30-Apr-20    288.9  1.0  287.9  99.64  1.72% 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  

2 Subtotal 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  
3 Treasury OM&A costs 0.1  
4 Other financing-related fees 0.2  
5 Total 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.3  1.80% 

Total Amount Outstanding

B2M LP
Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital

 Test Year (2016) 
Year ending December 31

Net Capital Employed
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Premium
Principal Discount Per $100 Projected
Amount and Total Principal at at Avg. Monthly Carrying Average

Line Offering Coupon Maturity Offered Expenses Amount Amount Effective 12/31/16 12/31/17 Averages Cost Embedded
No. Date Rate Date ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) (Dollars) Cost Rate ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) Cost Rates

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l) (m)

1 30-Jun-15    1.640% 30-Apr-20    285.1  1.0  284.1  99.64  1.72% 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  

2 Subtotal 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  
3 Treasury OM&A costs 0.1  
4 Other financing-related fees 0.2  
5 Total 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.3  1.80% 

Total Amount Outstanding

B2M LP
Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital

 Test Year (2017) 
Year ending December 31

Net Capital Employed
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Premium
Principal Discount Per $100 Projected
Amount and Total Principal at at Avg. Monthly Carrying Average

Line Offering Coupon Maturity Offered Expenses Amount Amount Effective 12/31/17 12/31/18 Averages Cost Embedded
No. Date Rate Date ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) (Dollars) Cost Rate ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) Cost Rates

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l) (m)

1 30-Jun-15    1.640% 30-Apr-20    281.3  1.0  280.3  99.64  1.72% 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  

2 Subtotal 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  
3 Treasury OM&A costs 0.1  
4 Other financing-related fees 0.1  
5 Total 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.3  1.79% 

Total Amount Outstanding

B2M LP
Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital

 Test Year (2018) 
Year ending December 31

Net Capital Employed
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Premium
Principal Discount Per $100 Projected
Amount and Total Principal at at Avg. Monthly Carrying Average

Line Offering Coupon Maturity Offered Expenses Amount Amount Effective 12/31/18 12/31/19 Averages Cost Embedded
No. Date Rate Date ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) (Dollars) Cost Rate ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) ($Millions) Cost Rates

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l) (m)

1 30-Jun-15    1.640% 30-Apr-20    277.5  1.0  276.5  99.64  1.72% 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  

2 Subtotal 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.0  
3 Treasury OM&A costs 0.1  
4 Other financing-related fees 0.1  
5 Total 293.0  293.0  293.0  5.3  1.79% 

Total Amount Outstanding

B2M LP
Cost of Long-Term Debt Capital

 Test Year (2019) 
Year ending December 31

Net Capital Employed
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COST OF SERVICE SUMMARY 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

 4 

This evidence presents an overview of B2M LP’s Cost of Service.  As summarized in 5 

Exhibit C2, Tab 1, Schedule 1, the Cost of Service includes the following elements, for 6 

which the overall costs are shown in Table 1 below: 7 

 8 

• Operation, Maintenance and Administrative (“OM&A”) Expenses, 9 

• Depreciation and Amortization Expense, and 10 

• Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes. 11 

 12 

Table 1 13 

Costs of Service  14 

($ Millions) 15 

 

Description 

Historic 
Year 

Test Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

OM&A 7.7 1.8 1.2 1.2 2.5 1.5 

Depreciation and Amortization 0.3 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 

Income Taxes 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.9 1.1 

Total Cost of Service 8.0 9.0 8.4 8.4 10.2 9.4 

 16 

 17 

2.0 KEY ELEMENTS OF THE COST OF SERVICE  18 

 19 

B2M LP’s forecast cost of service has been developed to sustain the safe and reliable 20 

operation of its transmission assets.   21 
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2.1 Operation, Maintenance and Administrative Expenses (OM&A) 1 

 2 

B2M LP will be managed by its general partner, B2M GP Inc., which will retain Hydro 3 

One Networks (“HONI”), under a Service Level Agreement, to plan and organize the 4 

operation and maintenance of the assets and provide certain corporate and administrative 5 

support as outlined in Table 1 of Exhibit A, Tab 10, Schedule 1. 6 

 7 

OM&A expenses are derived based upon the various work programs and functions 8 

performed by or on behalf of the Partnership.  These work programs primarily address 9 

improvements and upkeep of the assets to maintain their operating condition.  The 10 

estimated total OM&A expenses for the five year period are $1.8 million in 2015, $1.2 11 

million in 2016, $1.2 million in 2017, $2.5 million in 2018, and $1.5 million in 2019.  12 

Details of the calculation of OM&A costs for the test years are included at Exhibit C1, 13 

Tab 2, Schedule 1. 14 

 15 

2.2 Depreciation and Amortization Expense 16 

 17 

The depreciation expense for B2M LP was supported by recommendations that Foster 18 

Associates Inc. made on the appropriate depreciation rates for the B2M LP assets, based 19 

on a methodology consistent with that approved for use by Hydro One Transmission. The 20 

estimated depreciation expenses for the five year period are $6.8 million per year through 21 

2019. Supporting evidence for this study is filed at Exhibit C1, Tab 4, Schedule 1 and 22 

further detailed in Exhibit C2, Tab 2, Schedule 1. 23 

 24 

2.3. Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes 25 

 26 

Under the Income Tax Act, a partnership is not taxable; however it is required to compute 27 

its taxable income, which is then allocated to its partners. The estimated Payments in 28 
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Lieu of Income Taxes, in accordance with the Electricity Act, 1998, that will be required 1 

to be paid by the partners from the income generated in B2M LP over the five year period 2 

are $0.4 million in 2015, $0.4 million in 2016, $0.4 million in 2017, $0.9 million in 2018, 3 

and $1.1 million in 2019.  These amounts reflect the non-taxable status of SON FC.  4 

Details of the calculation of Payments in Lieu of Income Taxes are shown in Exhibit C1, 5 

Tab 5, Schedule 1. 6 
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SUMMARY OF OM&A EXPENDITURES 1 

 2 

1.0  SUMMARY OF OM&A EXPENDITURES 3 

 4 

The proposed Operation, Maintenance, and Administration (“OM&A”) expenses 5 

represent the work required to meet public and employee safety objectives, maintain 6 

transmission reliability at targeted performance levels, and to comply with regulatory 7 

requirements (such as specified within the Transmission System Code), environmental 8 

requirements and Government direction.   9 

 10 

Key components in the build-up of OM&A requirements for the period 2015 to 2019 are:  11 

 12 

• Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) with Hydro One Transmission, and 13 

• Ongoing Incremental Expenses of the Partnership 14 

 15 

It should be noted that on a per asset basis, B2M LP will be a very low cost provider 16 

compared to other transmitters in Ontario.  This relates primarily to the characteristics of 17 

the assets that it holds.  B2M LP owns a 500 kV double-circuit transmission line that is 18 

predominantly parallel to an existing 500 kV double-circuit line.  B2M LP owns no 19 

station assets.  This type of asset is extremely reliable and has a very low probability of 20 

fault or other incident requiring expenditures.  Moreover, servicing of this line as 21 

required will be efficient given its proximity to the existing circuit. 22 

 23 

Table 1 provides the details associated with those costs: 24 
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Table 1 1 

Summary of OM&A  2 

($ Millions) 3 

 

Description  

Historic 
Year 

Test Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

SLA with Hydro One Transmission        

     Operations & Maintenance Expenses 0.0 0.7 0.5 0.5 1.8 0.6 

     Administrative and Corporate Expenses 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

Incremental Expenses 0.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.8 

Start-Up and Development Costs* 7.7      

Total OM&A 7.7 1.8 1.2 1.2 2.5 1.5 

*B2M LP proposes to recover the Start-Up and Development Costs over 4 years at a rate of $1.925 million 4 

per year from 2016 to 2019. Please refer to Exhibit E1, Tab 1, Schedules 1 and 2. 5 

 6 

Each of these components is discussed below. 7 

 8 

2.0 KEY COMPONENTS IN THE BUILD-UP OF COST OF SERVICE 9 

 10 

2.1 Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) with Hydro One Transmission  11 

 12 

The bulk of the Operation, Maintenance and Administrative expenses required to satisfy 13 

the obligation and objectives of the company arise as the result of a Service Level 14 

Agreement executed between Hydro One Networks and B2M GP Inc. on behalf of B2M 15 

LP.   16 

 17 

All of the costs included in the SLA are costs that would have been incurred by Hydro 18 

One Transmission had the assets not transferred to B2M LP.  These expenses would have 19 

been included in the revenue requirement of Hydro One Transmission for inclusion in the 20 
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Uniform Transmission Rate but are now included in B2M LP’s revenue requirement.  1 

Therefore, these SLA expenses cause no change in Uniform Transmission Rates.  2 

 3 

2.1.1 Operation and Maintenance Expenses 4 

 5 

The Operation and Maintenance expenses forecast to be spent related to these assets 6 

under the SLA are equivalent to the amounts that were forecast to be spent on the assets 7 

when they were owned by Hydro One Transmission.  Execution of the work will be 8 

unchanged and will have no effects on the continued safe and reliable operation and 9 

maintenance of the items.   10 

 11 

The forecast Operation and Maintenance costs for the test years 2015 to 2019 include: 12 

 13 

• Monitoring/Control of the transmission system including alarm monitoring, asset 14 

monitoring, and minor control; 15 

• Asset Operation within Hydro One Networks prescribed limits including application 16 

of Hydro One Networks equipment directives, switching on Hydro One Networks 17 

transmission system to regulate B2M LP 's transmission system; 18 

• Emergency Response to transmission system events including response to IESO 19 

directed emergency actions, and implementation of load shedding; 20 

• Outage Processing including scheduling, planning, and submitting to IESO; 21 

• Crew Dispatching including 24/7 assessment, contacting, and dispatching; 22 

• Record Maintenance including retention of logged items, retention of SCADA 23 

information, and trip reports; 24 

• Power System IT Support of the power system applications used by operators; 25 

• Line Patrols including thermo-vision, helicopter and foot patrols; and  26 
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• Vegetation Management including mandatory NERC patrols, and line clearing/brush 1 

control on a 6 year cycle. The next cycle is planned to occur in 2018 so no forestry 2 

costs are included in the other test years. 3 

 4 

2.1.2 Administrative and Corporate Expense 5 

 6 

The Administrative and Corporate Expenses include the costs arising from the support 7 

function provided by Hydro One Transmission to B2M LP with respect to administrative 8 

services and systems.  The investment in those systems and the cost of their operation are 9 

incurred by Hydro One Transmission but are allocated to Hydro One Inc. and its affiliates 10 

through a cost allocation methodology that has been approved in past filings including 11 

Hydro One Transmission’s filing in EB-2014-0140.   12 

 13 

This methodology provides a cost effective way to lower cost for Hydro One 14 

Transmission by spreading the inherent costs of its infrastructure with other companies in 15 

the Hydro One family.  It also lowers costs for the subsidiaries since they have access to a 16 

sophisticated administration infrastructure at a lower cost than if they each built their own 17 

unique and independent system.  This sharing of cost for a unified infrastructure benefits 18 

rate payers through lower rates and has been accepted by the Board in numerous previous 19 

proceedings.  B2M LP commissioned a study by Black and Veatch in support of the 20 

allocation of corporate costs.  A copy of this study is attached at Exhibit C1, Tab 3, 21 

Schedule 1, Attachment 1.  22 

 23 

2.2 Incremental Expenses 24 

 25 

There are certain functions that must be executed by B2M LP in order for the company to 26 

meet its obligations and objectives that are not currently supported by Hydro One 27 

Transmission.  These functions and their related expenses are made necessary due to the 28 
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existence of a new stand-alone transmitter.  These costs are shown in Table 2 and 1 

include:  2 

 3 

• Insurance; 4 

• Regulatory expenses; and 5 

• Retention of a Managing Director and associated administrative expenses. 6 

 7 

Table 2 8 

Total Incremental OM&A Expenses 9 

($ Millions) 10 

Description 
Historic 

Year 
Test Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Insurance 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

Regulatory 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 

Administrative  0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

Managing Director’s Office 0.0 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

Total Incremental OM&A 0.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.8 

 11 

The Incremental Expenses are in addition to those removed from the revenue requirement 12 

of Hydro One Transmission but they will not have a material effect on the Uniform 13 

Transmission Rates.    14 
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COMMON CORPORATE COSTS, COST ALLOCATION 1 

METHODOLOGY 2 

 3 

Allocation of Common Corporate Costs to Hydro One’s Distribution and Transmission 4 

businesses, to other Hydro One affiliates, and to B2M LP is based on clearly articulated 5 

shared functions and services and an established cost allocation approach based on cost 6 

causality principles. 7 

 8 

The Common Corporate Costs OM&A programs include the support of Corporate 9 

Common Functions and Services (“CCF&S”), Asset Management, Information 10 

Technology, and Operating Programs. 11 

 12 

CCF&S include Corporate Management, Finance, Corporate Communications & 13 

Services, General Counsel & Secretariat, Regulatory Affairs, Corporate Security, Internal 14 

Audit and Real Estate & Facilities. 15 

 16 

Since 2004, in connection with each cost of service application, Hydro One has 17 

commissioned a study by Black and Veatch (B&V) to recommend a best practice 18 

methodology to allocate common corporate costs among the business entities using the 19 

common services.  The adopted methodology represents the industry’s best practices, 20 

identifying appropriate cost drivers to reflect cost causality and benefits received.   21 

 22 

B&V submitted a study to B2M LP on September 19, 2013. This study is provided in 23 

Exhibit C1, Tab 3, Schedule 1, Attachment 1. The external expert evidence is also 24 

included as Attachment 2. 25 

 26 

Table 1 shows the allocation of Common Corporate Costs to B2M LP for the test years 27 

2015 to 2019.      28 
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Table 1 1 

Allocation of Common Corporate Costs to B2M LP 2 

($ Millions) 3 

 
Test Year 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Allocation to 
B2M LP 

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

 4 
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REVIEW OF COMMON CORPORATE COST ALLOCATION1 

 2 

Attachment 1:  Review of Allocation of Common Corporate Costs to B2M Limited 3 

Partnership 4 

Attachment 2:  External Expert Evidence Statement 5 
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I. Introduction 

A. BACKGROUND 
Black	&	Veatch	Corporation	(“B&V”	or	“we”)	is	pleased	to	submit	to	Hydro	One	Networks	Inc.	
(“Hydro	One”)	this	Report	on	our	Review	of	Allocation	of	Common	Corporate	Costs	to	B2M	Limited	
Partnership	(“B2M	Review”).	

B. HYDRO ONE COMMON CORPORATE COST ALLOCATION 
METHODOLOGY 

In	2004,	B&V	was	engaged	by	Hydro	One	to	recommend	a	best	practice	methodology	to	distribute	
its	common	corporate	costs,	including	costs	incurred	under	its	outsourcing	contract	with	Inergi	LP,	
to	Hydro	One	and	its	subsidiaries.		B&V	recommended,	Hydro	One	adopted	and	the	Ontario	Energy	
Board	(“OEB”)	accepted	a	methodology	to	distribute	those	costs,	as	described	in	our	Report	on	
Common	Corporate	Costs	Methodology	Review	dated	May	20,	2005	(“2005	Common	Costs	Report”).		
The	OEB‐accepted	methodology	has	been	applied	to	Hydro	One’s	Business	Plans,	and	reviewed	by	
B&V	with	reports	issued,	as	follows:	

B&V 

REVIEW 

BUSINESS 

PLAN 

B&V REPORT 

2006 Review  BP 2007‐2011  Report on Implementation of Common Corporate Costs Methodology dated 
May 31, 2006 

2008 Review  BP 2009‐2013  Report on Implementation of Common Corporate Costs Methodology dated 
September 10, 2008 

2009 Review  BP 2010‐2014  Report on Shared Services Costs Methodology dated June 29, 2009

2010 Review  Updated BP  
2010‐2014 

Report on Shared Services Costs Methodology – 2011 dated February 26, 
2010 

2011 Review  BP 2012‐2016  Review of Shared Services Cost Allocation – 2011 dated August 22, 2011

2012 Review  BP 2012‐2016  Review of Shared Services Cost Allocation (Transmission) – 2012 dated 
February 1, 2012 

The	OEB‐accepted	methodology	to	distribute	the	common	corporate	costs	has	been	applied	by	
Hydro	One	to	its	Business	Plan	for	2014‐19	(“BP	2014‐19”)	data.	

C. APPLICATION OF COST ALLOCATION METHOLOGY TO B2MLP 

B2M	Limited	Partnership	(“B2MLP”)	will	own	the	Bruce	to	Milton	Transmission	Reinforcement	
Project	(“B2M	Line”),	and	Hydro	One	will	have	an	ownership	interest	in,	and	will	provide	functions	
and	services	to,	the	B2MLP,	as	discussed	in	Section	0.		Accordingly,	Hydro	One	has	applied	the	
common	corporate	costs	allocation	methodology	to	determine	the	cost	of	providing	those	functions	
and	services	to	B2MLP.		This	Report	describes	the	review	that	B&V	performed,	at	Hydro	One’s	
request,	of	Hydro	One’s	allocation	of	common	corporate	costs	included	in	its	BP	2014‐19	to	the	
B2MLP,	and	presents	B&V’s	conclusions.	
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D. SCOPE OF WORK 
Consistent	with	B&V’s	standard	practice	for	consulting	assignments,	we	relied	on	the	genuineness	
and	completeness	of	all	documents	presented	to	us	by	Hydro	One,	and	we	accepted	factual	
statements	made	to	us	by	Hydro	One	(e.g.,	headcount,	budgeted	amounts)	subject	only	to	their	
overall	reasonableness	and	any	actual	contrary	knowledge,	but	without	our	independent	
confirmation.		All	dollar	amounts	in	this	Report	are	stated	in	Canadian	dollars.	

II. Organization and Common Corporate Costs 

A. HYDRO ONE ORGANIZATION 
Hydro	One	Inc.	is	wholly	owned	by	the	Province	of	Ontario.		It	operates	through	the	wholly	owned	
subsidiaries	(and	the	B2MLP)	listed	in	Table	1.		The	OEB	regulates,	separately,	the	business	units	
identified	as	such	in	Table	1.		Each	regulated	business	is	required	to	account	separately	for	its	
assets,	revenues	and	costs,	for	both	regulatory	and	financial	accounting	purposes.	

Table 1 ‐ Business Units 

SUBSIDIARY 
BUSINESS 

UNIT 
REGULATED  DESCRIPTION 

Hydro One 

Networks Inc. 

Transmission  Yes 
Owns and operates substantially all of Ontario’s 

electricity transmission system. 

Distribution  Yes 

Owns and operates a distribution system which spans 

approximately 75% of Ontario and serves approximately 

1.1 million customers. 

Hydro One 

Brampton Inc 
Brampton  Yes 

Owns, operates and manages electricity distribution 

systems and facilities in Brampton, Ontario. 

Hydro One 

Remote 

Communities Inc 

Remotes  Yes 

Owns, operates, maintains and constructs generation and 

distribution assets used to supply of electricity to remote 

communities in northern Ontario. 

Hydro One 

Telecom Inc. 
Telecom  No 

Sells high bandwidth telecommunication services to 

carriers, Internet service providers, and large public and 

private sector organizations. 

Hydro One Inc.    No 

Represents activities performed exclusively for the 

benefit of the shareholder of Hydro One Inc.  Most costs 

it incurs are for the benefit of the other businesses, and 

are allocated to them. 

B2M Limited 

Partnership 
B2M Line  Yes 

Will own 100% of a continuous transmission line 

between the Bruce Nuclear Power Development and 

Hydro One’s Milton Switching station. 

B. COMMON SERVICES AND COMMON CORPORATE COSTS 

Hydro	One	provides	the	functions	and	services	identified	in	Table	2	to	the	operating	businesses,	
including	the	Transmission	business.	
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Table 2 –Functions and Services in Common Corporate Costs 

Hydro One Inc. Corporate Office 

 President/CEO Office 
 Chair 
 CFO Office 
 Treasurer's Office 
 Board 
 Corporate Secretariat 
 General Counsel – VP 

Shared Services

 Treasury 
 Corporate Controller 
 Taxation 
 Outsourcing Services 
 Real Estate 
 Regulatory Affairs 
 Business Planning & Decision Support 

Operations 

 Business Architecture 
 Power Systems Information Technology (PSIT) 

 Business Information Technology (BIT) 

 Security Operations 
 SVP Planning & Operating 
 Distribution Development 

 Transmission Projects Development 

 Asset Strategy 
 Network Operations 
 Transmission Asset Management 

 Labour Relations 
 EVP Office – Operations 

Customer Service

 Customer Care Services 

 Strategy and Conservation 
 SVP Customer Ops 

 Distributed Generation 
 Customer Business Relations 

 TxDx Settlements 

 Account Management Director 

 Advanced Distribution 
 Value Growth 
 Pricing 
 VP Customer Service	

Corporate Relations 

 Corporate Communications and External 

Relations and Executive Office 

 First Nations and Métis Relations 

Inergi LP (outsourced services)

 Customer Support Services 

 Settlement 

 Finance 
 Human Resources ‐ Pay Services 

 Accounts Payable 

People and Culture  Internal Audit

ETS‐ Applications Support and Infrastructure 

Support 

Telecom Services

Hydro	One	has	distributed	among	the	business	units	the	costs	(“Common	Corporate	Costs”),	
reflected	in	its	BP	2014‐19,	of	providing	those	functions	and	services,	using	the	the	OEB‐accepted	
methodology.		B&V	reviewed	Hydro	One’s	allocation	and	found	that	it	is	reasonable,	reflects	best	
practices	and	follows	the	OEB‐approved	methodology,	as	discussed	in	our	Review	of	Common	
Corporate	Costs	Allocation–	2013	dated	September	19,	2013	(“2013	Common	Corporate	Costs	
Report”).	

III. B2M Line and B2M Limited Partnership 

A. OVERVIEW 
In	2012,	the	Bruce	to	Milton	Transmission	Reinforcement	Project	(“B2M	Line”),	a	180‐km	
transmission	line	delivering	electricity	from	the	Bruce	Nuclear	Power	Development		to	Hydro	One’s	
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switchyard	in	Milton,	ON,	became	operational.		The	two	stations	operated	by	Bruce	Nuclear	Power	
Development	are	in	Kincardine,	ON,	on	the	southeastern	shore	of	Lake	Huron;	Milton	is	on	the	
western	shore	of	Lake	Ontario,	40	km	west	of	Toronto.	

Hydro	One	was	responsible	for	the	construction	of	the	B2M	Line.		On	or	about	January	1,	2014,	
Hydro	One	will	transfer	ownership	of	the	B2M	Line	to	B2MLP,	a	partnership	in	which	Hydro	One	
expects	to	have	an	ownership	interest	of	66%	(sixty‐six	percent).	

B. HYDRO ONE’S ROLE 
Under	the	terms	of	an	operating	agreement,	Hydro	One	will	provide	both	operations	and	
maintenance	services	for	the	B2M	Line,	as	well	as	support	functions	and	services	for	the	B2MLP.	

Operations	and	Maintenance	‐	Hydro	One	is	responsible	for	operating	and	maintaining	the	B2M	
Line.		During	the‐initial	period	of	operation	of	the	B2M	Line	(i.e.,	2013‐2019,	corresponding	closely	
to	the	period	of	BP	2014‐19),	the	cost	of	this	work	is	expected	to	average	approximately	0.03%	of	
Hydro	One’s	annual	spending	for	work	of	this	nature	on	its	Transmission	business.		Hydro	One	will	
charge	the	B2MLP	directly	for	the	costs	it	incurs	in	operating	and	maintaining	the	B2M	Line.		The	
amounts	charged	will	reflect	fully	allocated	costs;	i.e.,	labor	costs	will	include	salary	and	wages,	
benefits	and	overhead.	

Support‐	In	addition,	Hydro	One	is	responsible	for	providing	support	for	the	operating	and	
maintenance	functions,	as	well	as	providing	regulatory,	legal	and	tax	support	for	the	B2MLP.		This	
support	will	be	provided	by	the	same	departments,	listed	in	Table	2,	as	provide	similar	functions	
and	services	to	Hydro	One’s	other	business	units	and	are	included	in	Common	Corporate	Costs.	

To	reflect	the	costs	of	the	functions	and	services	to	be	provided	to	support	the	B2MLP,	Hydro	One	
has	allocated	to	it	a	portion	of	the	Common	Corporate	Costs	included	in	BP	2014‐19.		The	
appropriateness	of	that	allocation	is	the	subject	of	the	B2M	Review	performed	by	Black	&	Veatch	
and	discussed	in	this	Report.	

IV. Allocation Methodology and Results 

A. COSTS TO BE ALLOCATED 
The	costs	of	the	operation	and	maintenance	of	the	B2M	Line,	and	of	the	functions	and	services	to	be	
provided	to	the	B2MLP,	are	currently	included	in	the	rates	of	Hydro	One’s	Transmission	business.		
Therefore	the	Common	Corporate	Costs	allocated	to	the	B2MLP	are	a	portion	of	the	total	Common	
Corporate	Costs	currently	distributed	to	the	Transmission	business;	costs	distributed	to	the	
Transmission	business	have	been	determined	by	applying	Hydro	One’s	Common	Corporate	Costs	
Allocation	methodology	to	BP	2014‐19	data.	

Only	certain	of	the	functions	and	services	included	in	Common	Corporate	Costs	are	needed	for	
Hydro	One	to	provide	the	indicated	support	for	the	B2MLP.		In	addition,	the	level	of	effort	required	
to	provide	this	support	is	expected	to	vary	over	the	period	2013‐2019.		The	highest	levels	of	effort	
are	expected	in	the	first	year	due	to	the	newness	of	the	B2MLP	entity,	and	the	first	year	of	operation	
and	maintenance	of	the	B2M	Line.		It	is	expected	that	thereafter	a	much	smaller	level	of	effort	will	
be	required,	because	procedures	will	have	been	established	and	operations	are	expected	to	be	
stable	over	the	period.	
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Hydro	One	determined	that	it	is	appropriate	to	have	the	portion	(percentage)	of	total	Transmission	
Common	Corporate	Costs	allocated	to	the	B2MLP	remain	constant	over	the	business	plan	period,	
2014‐2019.		Black	&	Veatch	agrees	with	this	approach,	for	the	following	reasons:	

 The	amounts	allocated	are	based	on	a	normal	average	year	and	do	not	reflect	the	
higher	level	of	costs	in	year	one.	

 The	costs	allocated	to	the	B2MLP	are	small	and	reasonably	determinable,	and	the	
changes	that	would	result	from	computing	the	numbers	annually	would	be	minimal	
in	dollar	terms	and	not	worth	the	time.		Many	of	the	year	one	costs	will	be	incurred	
prior	to	the	closing	of	the	transaction	and	are	prior	to	the	time	scope	of	this	report.	

 Stability	of	costs	benefits	the	B2MLP	in	planning	and	rate	setting.	

B. ALLOCATION PERCENTAGES 
To	determine	the	portion	of	Transmission	Common	Corporate	Costs	to	allocate	to	the	B2MLP,	
Hydro	One	personnel	reviewed	each	activity	performed	by	the	departments	included	in	Common	
Corporate	Costs,	and	determined	the	estimated	percentage	of	each	activity	that	will	be	devoted	to	
the	B2MLP	over	the	period	of	the	BP	2014‐19.		The	Hydro	One	personnel	who	performed	this	
review	are	familiar	with	the	B2MLP	and	with	the	functions	and	services	included	in	Common	
Corporate	Costs.		Their	review	included	discussions	with	the	departments	that	provide	those	
functions	and	services,	as	appropriate,	as	well	as	review	of	the	results	by	management	of	the	
B2MLP	and	supporting	staff.	

Black	&	Veatch	reviewed	the	percentages	assigned	to	each	activity	and	obtained	explanations	for	
the	percentages	assigned.		Based	on	our	work,	we	believe	that	the	percentages	are	reasonable	
estimates	of	the	effort	required	to	provide	the	functions	and	services	to	the	B2MLP	over	the	
business	plan	period.	

Exhibit	A	lists	each	activity	required	to	provide	the	functions	and	services	(i.e.,	each	activity	in	the	
Common	Corporate	Costs	Model)	and	the	percentage	of	the	activity	allocated	to	the	B2MLP	based	
on	the	review.		For	each	activity	for	which	costs	are	allocated	to	the	B2MLP,	Exhibit	A	also	includes	
a	brief	explanation	of	the	work	to	be	performed	and	any	relevant	considerations.	

C. COSTS ALLOCATED TO THE B2MLP‐ RESULTS AND CONCLUSION 
For	each	activity	in	the	functions	and	services	to	be	provided	to	the	B2MLP,	the	percentage	
allocated	to	the	B2MLP	is	multiplied	by	the	cost	of	that	activity	in	2014	(reflected	in	BP	2014‐19)	as	
determined	in	Hydro	One’s	Common	Corporate	Costs	Model.		The	results	are	summed,	to	determine	
the	total	Common	Corporate	Costs	to	be	allocated	to	the	B2MLP.		The	computations	and	the	results	
are	shown	in	Exhibit	A.		Table	3	presents	a	summary	of	the	results.	

Based	on	our	review,	Black	&	Veatch	believes	that	the	allocation	of	Common	Corporate	Costs	to	the	
B2M	Limited	Partnership,	for	the	functions	and	services	to	be	provided	by	Hydro	One,	reflects	cost	
causation	and	conforms	to	the	OEB‐accepted	methodology	for	allocation	of	Hydro	One’s	Common	
Corporate	Costs.	
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Table 3 – Summary of Common Corporate Costs Allocated to B2MLP 

Group  Function or Service

Common Corporate Costs for Year 2014 in BP 2014‐19

Total Costs 

Distributed To 

Transmission 

Transmission 

Costs Allocated 

To B2MLP 

B2MLP % Of 

Transmission 

(Average All 

Activities) 

Shared Services  Treasury  2,482,800 14,042  0.57%

Shared Services  Corporate Controller 13,392,259 40,039  0.30%

Shared Services  Taxation  1,330,270 18,319  1.38%

Shared Services  Real Estate  7,882,026 21,603  0.27%

Shared Services  Regulatory Affairs  3,221,295 29,212  0.91%

Shared Services 
Business Planning & 

Decision Support 
1,250,623 20,851 

1.67%

Operations  Security Operations 2,203,474 10,189  0.46%

Corporate Relations 

Corporate 

Communications, 

External Relations & 

Executive Office 

2,387,290 8,189  0.34% 

Corporate Relations 
First Nations and 

Métis Relations 
1,861,275 16,475  0.89% 

General Counsel & 

Secretariat 

General Counsel & 

Secretariat 
5,355,780 33,888 

0.63%

Inergi  Finance  4,048,528 11,652  0.29%

All other    147,225,694  

Total    $192,641,314 $224,459  0.12%
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

HOI President/CEO Office L 1 Establish performance targets for safety, customer 
service, reliability

33,338 -

HOI President/CEO Office L 2
Provide strategic direction and manage the 
company to meet the targets of safety, customer 
service, reliability

133,352 -

HOI President/CEO Office L 3 Develop and maintain relationships with major  
customers and customer groups

133,352 -

HOI President/CEO Office L 4 Develop and maintain relationships with 
regulators, shareholder, lenders

117,300 -

HOI President/CEO Office L 5 Monitor, assess and remediate risks to operational 
and financial performance

66,676 -

HOI President/CEO Office L 6
Influence / Ensure company can adapt to changing 
regulatory framework and economic conditions

133,352 -

HOI President/CEO Office L 7 Plan for management succession 33,338 -
HOI President/CEO Office N 1 General Departmental Expenses 158,100 -
HOI Chair L 1 OVERALL ASSIGNMENT OF TIME 162,276 -
HOI Chair N 1 General Departmental Expenses 13,548 -

HOI CFO Office L 1
Review and approve financial and investment 
decisions and Provide input to strategy and 
business plans

83,074 -

HOI CFO Office L 2
Provide oversight to Finance functions in timely, 
reliable reporting information to HO, subs, 
regulators, investors, shareholder

64,921 -

HOI CFO Office L 3 Provide oversight to Human Resources 3,485 -
HOI CFO Office L 4 Provide oversight to Labour Relations 3,485 -
HOI CFO Office L 5 Provide oversight to Regulatory Affairs 32,229 -

HOI CFO Office L 6 Ensure financial services are provided efficiently 
and reliably

19,673 -

HOI CFO Office L 7
Ensure integrity of, and compliance with, internal 
controls over regulatory, financial, accounting 
activities

26,337 -

HOI CFO Office L 8 Monitor performance against operational, 
financial and regulatory targets

27,691 -

HOI CFO Office L 9 Ensure sufficient revenue for operating, financial 
and regulatory needs

14,143 -

HOI CFO Office L 10 Support BOD 10,607 -
HOI CFO Office L 11 Ensure access to capital on reasonable terms 2,000 -
HOI CFO Office L 12 Provide oversight to Management Investment 5,227 -
HOI CFO Office L 13 Provide oversight to Board Investment Pension 3,485 -
HOI CFO Office L 14 Provide oversight to Regulatory Committee 3,825 -
HOI CFO Office L 15 Provide oversight to Audit Finance Committee 7,561 -
HOI CFO Office L 16 Provide oversight to Business Transformation 1,700 -
HOI CFO Office L 17 Provide oversight to Outsourcing 11,203 -
HOI CFO Office L 18 Provide oversight to Supply Chain 11,203 -
HOI CFO Office L 19 Provide oversight to Fleet Services 2,970 -
HOI CFO Office L 20 Provide oversight to Real Estate and Facilities 5,141 -
HOI CFO Office L 21 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -
HOI CFO Office N 1 General departmental expenses 49,511 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 1 Review and approve financial and investment 
decisions

23,304 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 2 Ensure access to capital on reasonable terms 23,323 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 3

Keep senior management and Hydro One Board 
Member's apprised on the risks, liquidity & 
financial position of the company, capital market 
conditions, financing and risk management 
strategies plans and actions

16,326 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 4
Represent the company before customers, 
regulators, shareholder, lenders, creditors and 
financial intermediaries

20,612 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 5 Pension Management 6,094 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 6 Oversight of Corp Finance- Treasury 137,268 -

HOI Treasurer's Office L 7 0 0 -
HOI Treasurer's Office L 8 0 0 -
HOI Treasurer's Office L 9 0 0 -
HOI Treasurer's Office N 1 General Departmental Expenses (228,780) -
HOI Pension L 1 Pension cost 580,279 -
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

HOI Pension N 1 Pension cost (580,279) -
HOI Board N 1 Audit Fee 493,341 -
HOI Board N 2 General departmental expenses 433,524 -
HOI Corp. Secretariat L 1 OVERALL ASSIGNMENT OF TIME 153,654 -
HOI Corp. Secretariat N 1 General Departmental Expenses 52,909 -
HOI General Counsel - VP L 1 OVERALL ASSIGNMENT OF TIME 223,717 -
HOI General Counsel - VP N 1 General Departmental Expenses 5,291 -
HOI Donations N 1 Donations 0 -
Shared Outsourcing Services L 1 Inergi Contract Management 882,844 -
Shared Outsourcing Services N 1 General Departmental Expenses 23,939 -
Shared Outsourcing Services N 2 Inergi Costs/Consultants 1,493,800 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 1
Liquidity Management, Debt Issuance and 
Financial Risk Management

Issues are allocated once upon creation and 
only minimal annual maintenance is 
required

1.0% 580,739 5,807 

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 2 Regulatory and Credit Rating Support 82,668 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 3 Investor Relations 181,869 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 4 Banking Operations and Account Management
Monthly reconcillations but number of 
transactions will be minimal

2.0% 347,205 6,944 

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 5 Insurance & Risk Management- Purchasing
partnership will have specific insurance 
requirements but those will be infrequent

2.0% 64,527 1,291 

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 6 Insurance- Claims 89,526 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 7 Insurance- Support 80,658 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 8 Enterprise Risk Management 193,580 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury L 9 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 1 Claims 416,772 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 2 General liability 352,173 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 3 Directors & Officers insurance policy 72,408 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 4 Fiduciary insurance policy 11,841 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 5 0 0 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 6 0 0 -

Shared 
Services

Treasury N 7 General departmental expenses 8,835 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 1
Accting policies; External reports; External audit / 
review

Additional financial statements and audit 
support will be required

3.0% 721,133 21,634 

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 2
Business Plan (incl. Financial Modeling & 
Analysis); Internal reports; Year-end projections

49,274 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 3 Regulatory Finance Activities 48,146 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 4
Manage Inergi- General and Inergi- Finance 
contract

72,510 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 5 Revenue analysis and reporting 135,065 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 6
Corporate accounting and Monitor and support 
Financial systems

672,743 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 7
Internal Controls/ Bill 198 and Compliance- New 
projects

579,332 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 8
Internal Controls/ Bill 198 and Compliance- 
Sustainment / ongoing

321,115 -
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 9 Operational Acct & LOB Support 3,614,709 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 10 Payroll/TRC (BASC) 988,818 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 11 IFRS/US GAAP 64,020 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 12 SAP Process / Reporting Improvements 211,454 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 13 Business Process Improvements 343,672 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 14 Corporate Card Charge (BASC) 1,118,089 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 15 Performance Reporting
There will be performance reporting 
against a minimal set of activities

2.0% 920,269 18,405 

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 16 Work Management Reporting 1,007,618 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 17 Project Accounting/Project Analyst 1,595,394 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 18 0 0 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 19 0 0 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller L 20 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller N 1 Actuarial Consultants 133,797 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller N 2 Bill 198, Corp Controllership 630,149 -

Shared 
Services

Corporate Controller N 3 General Departmental activities 164,951 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 1
Compliance activities including tax filings and 
audits

Sepearate Tax filings and returns will be 
required

5.0% 362,492 18,125 

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 2 Tax Planning 258,907 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 3 Support Debt issuance 19,210 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 4 Special Projects 143,679 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 5 Support regulatory filings Support regulatory cases from time to time 1.0% 19,446 194 

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 6 Support Construction activities 0 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 7 Support SAP Implementation 0 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 8 Support Transition to IFRS 0 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation L 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 276,752 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation N 1 Tax Consultants 179,844 -

Shared 
Services

Taxation N 2 General Departmental activities 69,940 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 1 Supporting Rate Filling Regulatory 12,911 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 2 Real Estate - Manage & Acquire ROW & 
Easements

Based on # of km - average amount of 
management expected

0.6% 3,371,706 20,463 

11
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 3 Manage property taxes and property rights 
payments and appeals

Based on # of km - average amount of 
management expected

0.6% 187,874 1,140 

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 4 Manage SLU Revenue Programs 1,268,182 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 5 Manage Employee Relocation Program 255,960 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 6 VP Office 223,360 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate L 7 Common (Admin) 673,753 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate N 1 Supporting Rate Filling Regulatory Support regulatory cases from time to time 1.0% 0 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate N 2 Real Estate - Manage & Acquire ROW & 
Easements

674,559 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate N 3 Manage property taxes and property rights 
payments and appeals

77,581 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate N 4 Manage SLU Revenue Programs 1,128,155 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate N 5 Manage Employee Relocation Program 0 -

Shared 
Services

Real Estate N 6 VP Office 7,986 -

Shared 
Services

Regulatory Affairs L 1 Major Projects and Partnerships 393,242 -

Shared 
Services

Regulatory Affairs L 2 Compliance 305,605 -

Shared 
Services

Regulatory Affairs L 3 Regulatory Policy and Support 1,513,544 -

Shared 
Services

Regulatory Affairs L 4 Major Applications
Labour associated with anticipated small 
COS proceeding every 2 years

5.0% 584,245 29,212 

Shared 
Services

Regulatory Affairs L 5 VP 130,831 -

Shared 
Services

Regulatory Affairs N 1 All Other Costs 293,829 -

Shared 
Services

Reg. Affairs - OEB Cost N 1 OEB Billed costs 4,071,509 -

Shared 
Services

Reg. Affairs - NEB Cost N 1 NEB Costs 1,253,549 -

Shared 
Services

Reg. Affairs - Rate 
Hearings

N 1 Incremental Rate Hearing Costs 1,126,000 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS L 1 Business Planning and Other
Separate business plan including 
instructions will be prepared

3.0% 695,024 20,851 

Shared 
Services

BP&DS L 2 Regulatory Finance - Major Rate Apps 0 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS L 3 Regulatory Finance - Monthly Reporting 0 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS L 4 Decision Support 381,538 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS L 5 Health and Safety 128,768 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS L 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS N 1 General departmental expenses 13,314 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS N 2 Lead Lag Study 9,898 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS N 3 Cost Allocation Study 17,183 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS N 4 Common Asset Study 2,397 -

Shared 
Services

BP&DS N 5 Overhead Study 2,500 -

12
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Operations Business Architecture L 1 Manage Enterprise Business Processes 330,254 -

Operations Business Architecture L 2 Manage Enterprise Reporting and Analytics 495,381 -

Operations Business Architecture L 3 Support Cornerstone Value Realization Program 122,759 -

Operations Business Architecture L 4 Provide and assess key performance indicators and 
measures

165,127 -

Operations Business Architecture L 5
Provide Application Support and Coordinate, track 
and improve training curriculum and develop 
power user network

1,115,581 -

Operations Business Architecture L 6
Identify, develop, assess, and implement strategic 
solutions to improve upon the Cornerstone and 
related assets

613,795 -

Operations Business Architecture L 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 149,626 -

Operations Business Architecture N 1 General Departmental Expenses 250,708 -

Operations Business Architecture N 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Operations PSIT L 1 Support to backbone, PCs and applications; 
Support internal telecommunications

2,202,027 -

Operations PSIT L 2
Develop systems required by operating businesses 
to meet changes in technical, operating and 
regulatory requirements

1,468,018 -

Operations PSIT L 3 Support Asset Management activities and projects 1,468,018 -

Operations PSIT L 4 Support Finance activities and projects 0 -

Operations PSIT L 5 Provide operational support for Transmission and 
Distribution activities

1,761,622 -

Operations PSIT L 6 Manage IT capital projects and IT strategy 2,202,027 -
Operations PSIT L 7 Support Inergi operations 0 -
Operations PSIT L 8 Other departmental activities 440,405 -
Operations PSIT L 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -
Operations PSIT N 1 General Departmental Expenses (6,362,231) -
Operations PSIT N 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Operations BIT L 1 Support to backbone, PCs and applications; 
Support internal telecommunications

1,159,337 -

Operations BIT L 2
Develop systems required by operating businesses 
to meet changes in technical, operating and 
regulatory requirements

1,411,435 -

Operations BIT L 3 Support Asset Management activities and projects 352,859 -

Operations BIT L 4 Support Finance activities and projects 319,062 -

Operations BIT L 5 Provide operational support for Transmission and 
Distribution activities

0 -

Operations BIT L 6 Manage IT capital projects and IT strategy 1,764,294 -
Operations BIT L 7 Support Inergi operations 633,115 -
Operations BIT L 8 Other departmental activities 296,847 -
Operations BIT N 1 General Departmental Expenses 131,117 -

Operations Security Operations L 1 Provide Security Services for Company Assets
routine security services required to 
monitor lines

0.5% 2,037,888 10,189 

Operations Security Operations L 2 Theft of Power Program (Detection and 
Investigation of stolen electricity)

0 -

Operations Security Operations N 1 Provide Security Services for Company Assets 165,585 -

Operations
SVP Planning & 
Operating

L 1 Time Study Results 377,575 -

Operations
SVP Planning & 
Operating

N 1 Time Study Results 4,431,276 -

Operations Distribution Development L 1 Time Study Results 196,455 -

Operations Distribution Development N 1 Time Study Results 16,370 -

Operations
Transmission Projects 
Development

L 1 Time Study Results 12,356,960 -
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Operations
Transmission Projects 
Development

N 1 Time Study Results 3,364,350 -

Operations Asset Strategy L 1 Time Study Results 4,851,943 -

Operations Asset Strategy N 1 Time Study Results 783,014 -

Operations Network Operations L 1 Time Study Results 30,966,196 -

Operations Network Operations N 1 Time Study Results 727,364 -

Operations
Transmission Asset 
Management

L 1 Time Study Results 10,509,216 -

Operations
Transmission Asset 
Management

N 1 Time Study Results 586,420 -

Operations Labour Relations L 1 Advice, guidance and training to LOBs under the 
Collective Agreements

304,921 -

Operations Labour Relations L 2 Negotiate with Bargaining Units 76,230 -

Operations Labour Relations L 3 Participate in grievance and arbitration filings 228,691 -

Operations Labour Relations L 4 Participate in OLRB hearings 114,345 -

Operations Labour Relations L 5 Manage WFA Department 38,115 -

Operations Labour Relations N 1 Advice, guidance and arbitrations 59,014 -

Operations Labour Relations N 2 Bargaining & Labour Relations Board 31,777 -

Operations EVP Office - Operations L 1 Management of Operations group 680,831 -

Operations EVP Office - Operations L 2 Attendence at HOI Board meetings 25,053 -

Operations EVP Office - Operations L 3 Management of Remotes entity 0 -

Operations EVP Office - Operations N 1 Management of Operations group 235,310 -

Operations EVP Office - Operations N 2 Attendence at HOI Board meetings 0 -

Operations EVP Office - Operations N 3 Management of Remotes entity 0 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

L 1
Provide stakeholder consultation advice and 
support

Responsible for reacting to any media 
inquiries.  Non-traditional nature of the 
partnership make mdeia contact more 
likely

5.0% 141,936 7,097 

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

L 2
Provide strategic communications advice to 
support various corporate initiatives

0 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

L 3
Provide Media Relations advice and support for 
infrastructure investment, corporate sponsorships, 
financial results, power restoration, etc.

127,563 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

L 4
Develop and implement strategic employee 
communications plan

382,690 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

L 5 Provide other internal communications support 765,380 -
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

L 6 Other Department Activities 74,609 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

N 1
Provide stakeholder consultation advice and 
support

200,222 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

N 2
Provide strategic communications advice to 
support various corporate initiatives

0 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

N 3 Media Relations
Perodic media expenses for promotion 
(newspaper, radio)

0.6% 179,948 1,092 

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

N 4
Develop and implement strategic employee 
communications plan

299,913 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

N 5
Provide Government Relations Advice and 
Support

179,948 -

Corporate 
Relations

Corporate 
Communications and 
External Relations and 
Executive Office

N 6 Other Department Activities 35,082 -

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations L 1 Provide aboriginal consultation advice and support
Will require advice and guidance from 
FNM dept

2.0% 475,131 9,503 

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations L 2 Provide advice re aborignal HR strategies 154,417 -

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations L 3 Provide strategic advice to Remotes 0 -

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations L 4 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 534,522 -

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations L 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations N 1 General Departmental Expenses
Will require advice and guidance from 
FNM dept

1.0% 697,205 6,972 

Corporate 
Relations

First Nations N 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Corporate 
Relations

Executive Office L 1 General 0 -

Corporate 
Relations

Executive Office N 1 General Departmental Expenses 0 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 1 Administer Compensation & Benefits Programs 309,870 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 2 Decision Support 265,712 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 3

Talent Management:  Hiring, Succession, 
Management Development Programs, Executive 
Coaching & High Potential Employee 
Assessments

442,726 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 4
Recruitment Solutions and Diversity:  Diversity 
Programs, Grad Program, Student/Co-op Program, 
LOB Resourcing

708,057 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 5 Administer Pension Plan 398,567 -
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 6 SAP Master Data Administration 88,697 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 7
Consulting support to LOBs and corporate 
functions

1,239,099 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 8 VP Human Resources 354,028 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture L 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 1 Consulting 53,369 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 2 Talent Management 1,157,501 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 3 Recruitment Solutions & Diversity 210,668 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 4 Pension Administration 41,899 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 5 Compensation & Benefits 41,899 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 6 Decision Support 41,899 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 7 HR Master Data Management/Administration 41,899 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 8 VP Human Resources 751,615 -

People & 
Culture

People and Culture N 10 OTHER DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES 0 -

Customer 
Service

Customer Care Services L 1 Time Study Results 350,290 -

Customer 
Service

Customer Care Services N 1 Time Study Results 59,284 -

Customer 
Service

Strategy and Conservation L 1 Time Study Results 47,120 -

Customer 
Service

Strategy and Conservation N 1 Time Study Results 17,920 -

Customer 
Service

SVP Customer Ops L 1 Time Study Results 198,189 -

Customer 
Service

SVP Customer Ops N 1 Time Study Results 57,188 -

Customer 
Service

Distributed Generation L 1 Time Study Results 105,963 -

Customer 
Service

Distributed Generation N 1 Time Study Results 6,965 -

Customer 
Service

Customer Business 
Relations

L 1 Time Study Results 3,197,350 -

Customer 
Service

Customer Business 
Relations

N 1 Time Study Results 519,640 -
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Group Function or Services

L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Customer 
Service

TxDx Settlements L 1 Time Study Results 444,177 -

Customer 
Service

TxDx Settlements N 1 Time Study Results 47,627 -

Customer 
Service

Account Management 
Director

L 1 Time Study Results 186,896 -

Customer 
Service

Account Management 
Director

N 1 Time Study Results 7,808 -

Customer 
Service

Advanced Distribution L 1 Time Study Results 0 -

Customer 
Service

Advanced Distribution N 1 Time Study Results 0 -

Customer 
Service

Value Growth L 1 Value Growth HONI 0 -

Customer 
Service

Value Growth L 2 Value Growth HOI 0 -

Customer 
Service

Value Growth N 1 Value Growth HONI 0 -

Customer 
Service

Value Growth N 2 Value Growth HOI 0 -

Customer 
Service

Pricing L 1 Time Study Results 611,621 -

Customer 
Service

Pricing N 1 Time Study Results 41,273 -

Customer 
Service

VP Customer Service L 1 Time Study Results 0 -

Customer 
Service

VP Customer Service N 1 Time Study Results 0 -

General 
Counsel and 
Secretariat

General Counsel and 
Secretariat

L 1 Overall Assignment of Time 3,096,561 -

General 
Counsel and 
Secretariat

General Counsel and 
Secretariat

N 1 Consultants and External Legal Counsel
Occasional legal or consultant required 
related to non-traditional structure

3.0% 1,129,609 33,888 

General 
Counsel and 
Secretariat

General Counsel and 
Secretariat

N 2 General departmental expenses 1,129,609 -

Audit Audit L 1 Audits 1,296,423 -
Audit Audit L 2 Purchasing 120,597 -
Audit Audit L 3 IMIT 402,955 -
Audit Audit L 4 Human Resources 66,388 -
Audit Audit L 5 Finance 157,329 -
Audit Audit L 6 Customers 21,603 -
Audit Audit L 7 Corporate Scorecard 200,065 -
Audit Audit L 8 Regulatory 26,316 -
Audit Audit N 1 General Departmental Expenses 81,258 -

Inergi
CSO - Customer Support 
Services

I 1 Inbound calls / correspondence 0 -

Inergi
CSO - Customer Support 
Services

I 2 Bill Production 0 -
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L 
/ 
N
L

Lin
e 

Ind
ex

Activities Performed
% 

B2M
Transmission- 

Year 1
$$ to 
B2M

Inergi
CSO - Customer Support 
Services

I 3
Data Services- Timesheets for field personnel, Tx 
operations

0 -

Inergi
CSO - Customer Support 
Services

I 4
CSO Support- Management; Training, 
Communications, Support; Application support 
Business Analysts

0 -

Inergi Settlement I 1 Settlement activities 471,600 -

Inergi Finance I 1 General Accounting (F&A 1) Period end journals and other activities 
required

2.0% 347,660 6,953 

Inergi Finance I 2 Non Energy AR (F&A 2) 489,147 -
Inergi Finance I 3 Fixed Assets (F&A 3) Some monitoring of Fixed asset ledger 1.0% 469,863 4,699 
Inergi Finance I 4 Planing and Analysis (F&A 4) 2,100,393 -
Inergi Finance I 5 Centre of Excellence (F&A 5) 641,466 -
Inergi AP I 1 Managing AP 883,987 -
Inergi SMS I 1 0 0 -

Inergi HR - Pay Services I 1 Payroll Operations 1,648,409 -

Inergi HR - Pay Services I 2 COE - MDM 228,831 -

Inergi HR - Pay Services I 3 COE - Reconciliations 76,104 -

Inergi HR - Pay Services I 4 Print Impressions 43,488 -

Inergi HR - Pay Services I 5 COLA 98,304 -

Inergi ETS - CSO Apps I 1 Support CSO Applications 0 -

Inergi ETS - Finance Apps I 2 Support Finance Applications 4,362,480 -

Inergi ETS - HR Apps I 3 Support HR Applications 2,526,713 -

Inergi ETS - Passport Apps I 4 Support Passport Applications / Cornerstone 4,359,589 -

Inergi ETS - Mkt Ready Apps I 5 Support Market Ready Applications 1,027,462 -

Inergi ETS - Telecom I 6 Support Telecommunications Infrastructure 158,988 -

Inergi
ETS - Infra-structure Svc. 
/ Misc. Apps

I 7 Direct Assignments 0 -

Inergi
ETS - Infra-structure Svc. 
/ Misc. Apps

I 8 General Infrastructure Support 12,135,201 -

Inergi ETS - Smart Meter I 9 Smart Meter 0 -

Telecom 
Services

Oper / Carrier Mgmt T 1 Operations and Carrier Management 3,827,593 -

Telecom 
Services

Data Services T 2 Data Network Services –Admin 3,081,172 -

Telecom 
Services

Voice Services T 3 Voice Services 1,605,894 -

Telecom 
Services

Field Services T 4 Field Services 1,231,185 -

Telecom 
Services

Smart Meter T 5 Smart Meter 0 -

TOTAL 192,641,313 224,459 
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EXTERNAL EXPERT EVIDENCE STATEMENT - BLACK & VEATCH – 1 

REVIEW OF SHARED ASSET ALLOCAION 2 

 3 

This Statement is provided in compliance with Ontario Energy Board (“Board”) Rule 13A, 4 

regarding the report ‘Review of Shared Assets Allocation (Transmission) – 2014’ (“Report”) 5 

dated March 17, 2014, prepared by Black & Veatch Corporation (“Black & Veatch”). 6 

 7 

Consultant: 8 

 9 

Black & Veatch Corporation 10 

11401 Lamar Avenue 11 

Overland Park, KS  66211 12 

 13 

Black & Veatch, through its Management Consulting Division, provides strategic, economic and 14 

management consulting, specializing in energy matters, in areas such as economic analysis, 15 

strategy development, operational assessment, industry restructuring support, litigation and 16 

regulatory support and technical analysis. 17 

 18 

Qualifications: 19 

 20 

The lead expert on this project was: 21 

 22 

Howard Gorman 23 

Howard Gorman has 25 years of diversified experience in the energy industry and over 30 24 

years of experience covering all areas of finance.  He specializes in rate and regulatory 25 

matters, including electric and gas revenue of requirements, allocated cost of service and rate 26 

design; accounting and costing; energy project financing and analysis; energy asset 27 

valuations, acquisitions and divestitures; mergers and related management and organizational 28 
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matters; economic and financial planning.  Mr. Gorman has extensive experience in rate and 1 

regulatory matters for electric and gas utilities, including: Developing revenue requirements; 2 

Identifying customer class cross-subsidizations; Revenue allocation and rate design; Inter-3 

affiliate cost allocation; and Budgeting and costing.  He has testified before the 4 

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities, New Jersey Board of Public Utilities, New 5 

York State Public Service Commission, Ontario Energy Board, Pennsylvania Public Utility 6 

Commission and Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission.  Mr. Gorman received a B.S. 7 

degree in Accounting from New York University (1976) and an M.B.A. from Harvard 8 

Business School (1981).  He is a New York State licensed Certified Public Accountant. 9 

 10 

Instructions Provided: 11 

 12 

The instructions provided to Black & Veatch in preparing the Report were: 13 

 14 

• Recommend a best practice methodology to distribute Hydro One Inc.’s Common Corporate 15 

assets among the business units that use them. This recommendation could include the 16 

continuation of the existing methodology, the continuation of the existing methodology with 17 

modifications or the proposal of a new methodology. 18 

• Prepare a Report of the recommended Common Corporate Assets Methodology to be used in 19 

future rate applications. This report will include a conclusion, definitions, a summary of 20 

every factor used in the methodology and the proposed methodology. 21 

• Propose and analyze all drivers used for allocation. 22 

• Prepare responses to Interrogatories from Interveners during a rate application relating to the 23 

proposed Asset Allocation methodology. 24 

• Be available to testify to the proposed methodology during a future rate application. 25 

• Prepare final Common Corporate Assets allocation report, reflecting the current Business 26 

Plan and including both the Transmission and Distribution businesses, to be used in Cost of 27 

Service applications. 28 



Filed: 2015-03-30  
EB-2015-0026 
Exhibit C1-3-1 
Attachment 2 
Page 3 of 4 

 

• In support of the successful Proponent’s work, Hydro One’s management will respond to all 1 

requests for basic information and/or supporting documentation. 2 

 3 

Basis of Evidence: 4 

 5 

The basis for the evidence is set forth in the Section IB of the Report, Types of Shared Assets, 6 

and Section IC of the Report, Summary of Approach and Section II of the Report, Descriptions of 7 

Asset Groups. 8 

 9 

Context of Evidence: 10 

 11 

This evidence is not provided in response to another expert’s evidence.  In 2004, B&V (formerly 12 

RJ Rudden and Associates) was engaged by Hydro One to recommend a best practice 13 

methodology to distribute the costs of Shared Assets, between its Transmission and Distribution 14 

businesses and other businesses.  B&V recommended a methodology which was adopted by 15 

Hydro One and accepted by the Board in its EB-2006-0501 Decision with Reasons, dated August 16 

16, 2007.  The accepted methodology has been reviewed and updated by B&V and accepted by 17 

the Board as part of subsequent Transmission and Distribution rate filings EB-2007-0681, EB-18 

2008-0272, EB-2009-0096, EB-2010-0002 and EB-2012-0031. To remain consistent with the 19 

Board’s approved methodology, a similar review and update process has been done as part of 20 

this filing.  21 
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Confirmation: 1 

 2 

The expert has been made aware of and agrees to accept the responsibilities that are or may be 3 

imposed on the expert as set out in Rule 13A. 4 

 5 

Signature: 6 

 7 

 8 

Black & Veatch Corporation 9 

By Russell A. Feingold, Vice President, Management Consulting Division 10 

 11 

Date: 12 

April 24, 2014 13 
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

 4 

The purpose of this evidence is to summarize the method and amount of B2M LP’s 5 

depreciation and amortization expense for the 2015 to 2019 test years. 6 

 7 

The depreciation and amortization expense for Hydro One’s submission for 2007 and 8 

2008 Electricity Transmission revenue requirements (EB-2006-0501) was supported by 9 

an independent study conducted by Foster Associates Inc. (Foster), completed in June, 10 

2006.  Hydro One has submitted a number of updates to the Foster study in subsequent 11 

rate applications.  The latest study update was carried out by Foster in August 2013 for 12 

the EB-2014-0140 proceeding.  The Board accepted the costs flowing from the  13 

Depreciation Study for that case.  Foster completed a new Depreciation Study for B2M 14 

LP on September 27, 2013. This study is provided in this exhibit as Attachment 1. 15 

 16 

The depreciation and amortization expense for 2015 to 2019 is $6.8 million each year. 17 

The calculation of these amounts is shown in Exhibit C2, Tab 2, Schedule 1.  18 
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES 1 

 2 

 3 

Attachment 1:  Bruce to Milton Line Depreciation Rates –Foster Associates 4 

Attachment 2: The external expert evidence statement is as presented in Exhibit C1, Tab 5 

7, Schedule 1, Attachment 1 pages 42 to 58 of Hydro One Network’s 6 

Transmission Application (EB-2014-0140).  A copy is included here for 7 

convenience. 8 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 

September 27, 2013 

 
Mr. Colin R. Fraser, CPA, CA 
Manager, Financial Reporting and Accounting Policy   
HYDRO ONE NETWORKS, INC. 
483 Bay Street, 13th floor, North Tower 
Toronto, Ontario  M5G 2P5 

RE:  Bruce–to–Milton Line 

Dear Mr. Fraser: 

As you requested, attached are recommended depreciation rates for the newly constructed 
Bruce–to–Milton Line. Based on our analysis, Foster Associates is recommending primary ac-
count accrual rates that composite to 1.34 percent. Depreciation expense is currently accrued us-
ing primary account accrual rates that composite to 1.26 percent. 

The results of our study are contained in the attached statements briefly described below. 

 Statement A provides a comparative summary of current and proposed 
annual depreciation rates using the vintage group procedure, remain-
ing–life technique. 

 Statement B provides a comparison of current and proposed annualized 
2013 depreciation accruals derived from the depreciation rates con-
tained in Statement A. 

 Statement C provides a comparison of recorded, computed and redis-
tributed reserves for each rate category at December 31, 2012. 

 Statement D provides a comparative summary of current and proposed 
parameters and statistics including projection life, projection curve, av-
erage service life, and average remaining life. 

 Statement E displays the computation of proposed USoA projection 
lives derived from recommended IFRS profile lives. 

Category lives used in the computation of proposed depreciation rates were estimated by an in-
ternal project team assigned to review and update parameters previously estimated in a 2011 re-
view of depreciation rates for Hydro One Networks, Inc., transmission operations (BU 210). 
Members of the review team included engineers, accountants and other subject matter experts 
familiar with the assets under review. Meetings of the project team were facilitated by Foster As-
sociates. 

Recommended group depreciations rates were formulated with recognition of retirement disper-
sion. Iowa survivor curves considered descriptive of the forces of retirement acting upon each 
USoA category were selected by Foster Associates based on experience and an understanding of 

Ronald E. White, Ph.D. 
Chairman 

17595 S. Tamiami Trail, Suite 260 
Fort Myers, Florida 33908 

T 239.267.1600 | M 239.980.5991    
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PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF CORPORATE INCOME TAXES1 

 2 

1.0 OVERVIEW 3 

 4 

B2M LP seeks approval for the corporate minimum tax expense of $0.4 million for the 5 

2015 to 2017 test years and $0.9 million for 2018 and $1.1 million for 2019 as presented 6 

in Exhibit C2, Tab 3, Schedule 1.  7 

 8 

2.0 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX 9 

 10 

2.1  Introduction 11 

B2M LP is a limited partnership within the meaning of the Limited Partnership Act 12 

(Ontario).  A partnership is generally not taxable under the Income Tax Act.  A 13 

partnership is required to compute its taxable income, which is then allocated to its 14 

partners.  The partners of B2M LP include:   15 

 16 

Members Description 

B2M GP Inc.  A corporation owned indirectly by Hydro One Inc.  

Saugeen Ojibway Nation Finance Corporation 

(“SON FC”) - Nominee for SON 

A corporation owned directly by the First Nations 

Hydro One B2M LP Inc.  A corporation owned indirectly by Hydro One Inc. 

 17 

SON FC and its shareholders are not subject to payment in lieu of corporate tax (“PILS”) 18 

or Corporate Income Tax as demonstrated by the tax information in Attachment 1-A and 19 

Attachment 1-B to this exhibit.  Therefore, effectively, 34.19% of the income in B2M LP 20 

is not subject to tax.  B2M GP Inc. and Hydro One B2M LP Inc. are required to make 21 

PILS payments to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (“OEFC”) and file 22 

federal and provincial income tax returns with the Ontario Ministry of Finance, under the 23 
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Electricity Act 1998.  The PILS remitted to the OEFC are calculated in accordance with 1 

the Income Tax Act (Canada), and the Taxation Act 2007 (Ontario), as modified by the 2 

Electricity Act, 1998. 3 

 4 

2.2  Regulatory Income Tax Expense 5 

 6 

The Board has directed that the taxes payable method should be used for regulatory 7 

purposes, according to its 2006 EDR Handbook, Section 7.1 “OEB 2006 Regulatory 8 

Taxes Expense Methodology”.   9 

 10 

Under the taxes payable method, no provision is made for future income taxes that result 11 

from timing differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying 12 

amounts for accounting purposes.  Accordingly, the taxes payable method will result in 13 

the PILs income tax payable being different from the amount that would have been 14 

recorded, had the combined Canadian Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate been 15 

applied to the regulatory net income before tax.  When unrecorded future income taxes 16 

become payable, it is expected that they will be included in the rates approved by the 17 

Board and recovered from customers at that time.  Regulatory Income Taxes for B2M LP 18 

are determined by applying the statutory tax rate to the regulatory taxable income 19 

allocated to B2M GP Inc. and Hydro One B2M LP Inc. 20 

 21 

2.3  Corporate Minimum Tax 22 

 23 

Ontario corporate minimum tax (“OCMT”) is designed to impose a minimum tax based 24 

on financial statement income calculated without most tax adjustments.  The OCMT paid 25 

in the year can be applied to reduce taxes payable in future year.  B2M GP Inc. is subject 26 

to OCMT in the 2015 to 2018 test year as shown in Exhibit C2, Tab 3, Schedule 1, 27 
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Attachment 1.  B2M LP proposes to recover the OCMT expense incurred by the B2M GP 1 

Inc. in the 2015 to 2018 test year in the revenue requirement.   2 

 3 

3.0 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN REGULATORY NET INCOME BEFORE 4 

TAX AND TAXABLE INCOME 5 

 6 

Reconciliation between the regulatory net income before tax (“NIBT”) and taxable 7 

income for the test year 2015 to 2019 is provided in Exhibit C2, Tab 3, Schedule 1, 8 

Attachment 1.  This schedule contains the income tax component of the PILs 9 

computation.  It also shows how the taxable income is computed by making adjustments 10 

to the regulatory NIBT for items such as depreciation and capital cost allowance 11 

(“CCA”). 12 

 13 

4.0 OVERVIEW OF PROCESS TO ARRIVE AT TAXABLE INCOME 14 

 15 

The starting point for the computation of B2M LP taxable income is the NIBT as shown 16 

on the utility's income statement for the year.  The NIBT is prepared using U.S. 17 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, but taxable income is computed using the 18 

relevant tax legislation, interpretations and assessing practices.  Many adjustments are 19 

typically made to the NIBT to arrive at taxable income.  Essentially, the NIBT is 20 

increased by amounts that are not deductible for tax purposes such as depreciation.  On 21 

the other hand, the NIBT is reduced by amounts that are deductible for tax purposes but 22 

have not been deducted in computing NIBT such as CCA.   23 
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TAX RULINGS 1 

 2 

Attached are the four (4) tax rulings received from the provincial and federal tax 3 

authorities in connection with the sale of Hydro One transmission assets to B2M LP and 4 

the related First Nations’ equity investment in B2M LP.    5 

 6 

A. Federal Tax Ruling for Chippewas of Nawash Unceded First Nation (“Nawash”).  7 

The ruling from the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) confirms that Nawash is 8 

exempt from tax or not subject to tax under the Income Tax Act (Canada) (“ITA”) 9 

on income allocated by B2M LP in respect of the operation of the B2M 10 

transmission assets.  CRA also opines that as long as SON FC holds the 11 

partnership interest as nominee or agent for the First Nations, the income 12 

allocated by B2M LP to SON FC will be the income of First Nations and not of 13 

SON FC. 14 

B. Federal Tax Ruling for Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation (“Saugeen”).  The 15 

ruling from the CRA confirms that Saugeen is exempt from tax or not subject to 16 

tax under the ITA on income allocated by B2M LP in respect of the operation of 17 

the B2M transmission assets.  CRA also opines that as long as SON FC holds the 18 

partnership interest as nominee or agent for the First Nations, the income 19 

allocated by B2M LP to SON FC will be the income of First Nations and not of 20 

SON FC. 21 

C. Ontario Tax Ruling for Hydro One Transmission and Affiliated Companies 22 

(“Hydro One”) (“Original Ontario Tax Ruling”).  Hydro One is subject to 23 

payments in lieu of Federal and Provincial income taxes (“Proxy tax”) under the 24 

Electricity Act, 1998 (“EA”).  The ruling received from Ontario confirms that 25 

B2M LP, Saugeen and Nawash are not subject to Proxy tax under the EA.  The 26 

ruling also confirms the tax positions reflected in the rate filing application, such 27 
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as: interest deductibility, deductibility of B2M LP’s operating payments to Hydro 1 

One Transmission, application of tax-deferral income tax provisions to asset 2 

transfers, deductibility/non-taxation of dividend income and computation of tax 3 

attributes. 4 

D. Amended Ontario Tax Ruling for Hydro One confirming that the introduction of 5 

two (2) key changes in the facts previously submitted, i.e. creation of two (2) 6 

classes of partnership units and of a mandatory put option effective in case of a 7 

default event, do not change the tax positions outlined in the Original Ontario Tax 8 

Ruling. 9 
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Ministry of Finance 

Advisory Services and Program 
Policy Branch 

33 King Street West 
Oshawa ON L1 H 8H5 
Tel.: 1 866 668-8297 Ext. 17025 
Fax: 905 436-4471 

October 16, 2013 

Ms. Kimberley Wharram 

Ministere du Finance 

Direction des services consultatifs et des 
politiques relatives aux programmes 

33, rue King Ouest 
Oshawa ON L 1 H 8H5 
Tel. : 1 866 668-8297 poste 17025 
Telec. : 905 436-4471 

Osier, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP 
Box 50, 1 First Canadian Place 
Toronto, Ontario M5X 1 88 

Dear: Ms. Wharram: 

Re: 

f')h t > 1/r Ontario 

Reference: CT13-0203 

Request for Advance Ruling in respect of payments-in-lieu of federal 
corporate tax and Ontario corporate tax under the Electricity Act,1998 on 
behalf of Hydro One Inc., Hydro One Networks Inc., the Chippewas of 
Saugeen First Nation and the Chippewas of Nawash First Nation 
(collectively, the Taxpayers"). 

This is in reply to your letter dated January 25, 2013, your revised letters dated June 4, 
2013 and September 17, 2013, and various e-mail correspondence, wherein you 
requested an advance ruling in respect of payments-in-lieu of federal corporate tax and 
Ontario corporate tax under the Electricity Act, 1998 on behalf of the Taxpayers. 

The text immediately below and in the sections entitled "Defined Terms," "Facts," 
"Proposed Transactions" and "Purpose of the Proposed Transactions" is similar to the 
text in the corresponding sections of your revised letter dated June 4, 2013. 
Notwithstanding your text, in certain instances where there is an inconsistency, 
vagueness or other issue, the Ministry of Finance has made necessary changes or 
made assumptions that may be contrary to your text. 

This Ruling incorporates opinions provided by the Canada Revenue Agency. For clarity 
purposes, the text in the section entitled "Interchangeable Terms" lists the terms used 
by the Ministry of Finance and the Canada Revenue Agency that have essentially the 
same meaning. 

Where a reference does not specify a statute, the reference is to the applicable 
provision of the ITA, as that provision applies for purposes of the Electricity Act. Also, 
any reference to an election that is required to be filed under a provision of the ITA 
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should be read as a reference to the corresponding election that is to be filed under the 
Electricity Act. 

With respect to the Agreement in the defined terms below, the Ministry of Finance has 
not reviewed the text of this document nor any attachments to it. Therefore, the Ministry 
of Finance cannot confirm whether the provisions of the Agreement and its attachments 
are consistent with the facts described in this letter. 

To the best of the knowledge of the Taxpayers, none of the issues contained herein: 

a. is in an earlier return of any of the Taxpayers or related persons; 
b. is being considered by the Ministry of Finance in connection with a previously 

filed return of any of the Taxpayers or related persons; 
c. is under objection or appeal by any of the Taxpayers or related persons; 
d. is before the courts or if a judgment has been issued, the time limit for appeal to 

a higher court has not expired; and 
e. is the subject of a ruling previously issued by the Ministry of Finance. 

Interchangeable Terms 

In this letter, the following terms are interchangeable: 

"Electricity Act" and "Act 1 "; 

"OBCA" and "Act 4"; 

"Bruce-to-Milton LP" and "Partnership"; 

"First Nations" and "Group"; 

"Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation" and Sub-Group 1"; 

"Chippewas of Nawash First Nation" and Sub-Group 2"; 

"Hydro One" and "Parentco"; 

"HONI" and "Subco"; 

"GPco" and General Partner"; 

"HO LPco" and "Limited Partner''; 

"SON LPco" and "Holdco"; 

"BtoM LP Promissory Note" and "Promissory Note 1 "; 

"GPco Promissory Note" and "Promissory Note 2"; 

"LP Promissory Note" and "Promissory Note 3"; 

2 



"Newco Note Receivable" and "Promissory Note 4"; 

"BtoM Project Assets" and "Project Assets" 

"Line" and "Infrastructure"; 

"GPco Equity Ratio" and "General Partner Equity Ratio"; 

"SON Equity Ratio" and "Holdco Equity Ratio"; 

"SON Equity Contribution Amount" and "Holdco Equity Contribution Amount"; 

"BtoM Project Asset Value" and "Project Asset Value"; 

"OEB Act" and "Act 2"; 

"Board" and "OEB"; 

"LPA'' and "Amended Partnership Agreement". 

Defined Terms 

In this letter, the following terms have the meanings specified below: 

"ACB" means adjusted cost base as that term is defined in section 54; 

"Accumulated Profits" has the meaning indicated in paragraph 23 of Interpretation 
Bulletin IT -533 ("Interest Deductibility and Related Issues") and for greater certainty, 
no amounts are included in the Accumulated Profits of a corporation as the result of 
dividends received unless such dividends were paid out of the payer's Accumulated 
Profits; 

"Act 1" means the Electricity Act, 1998 (Ontario); 

"Act 2" means the Ontario Energy Board Act; 

"Act 3" means the Indian Act; 

"Act 4" means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario); 

"Agreed Amount" in respect of an Eligible Property means the amount that the 
transferor and transferee of the property have agreed upon in an election under 
subsection 85(1) or 97(2), as the case may be, in respect of that property; 

"Agreement" means the Anishnaabekiing Naagnigewin Agreement made between 
HONI and the First Nations dated June 18, 2012, as such agreement may be 
amended from time to time by letter agreement or otherwise; 

"Amended Partnership Agreement" means the amended and restated limited 
partnership agreement in respect of the Partnership; 
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"APA" means the asset purchase agreement providing for the transfer of the BtoM 
Project Assets from HONI to the Bruce-to-Milton LP; 

"Applicable Borrower" means Limited Partner or another corporation that is related to 
Limited Partner, other than Parentco; 

"Approvals" means the licences, orders and other matters listed in Attachment "A" 
to the Agreement; 

"Approvals Date" means the date that each of the conditions precedent set out in 
Section 3.2 of the Agreement has been satisfied (or otherwise waived in writing by 
the Parties) as confirmed in writing by the First Nations and HONI; 

"Board" means the Ontario Energy Board; 

"Board Approvals" means the approvals and orders requested from the Board 
described in paragraphs 12{b), 12(c) and 12(e); 

"Bruce-to-Milton LP" means a limited partnership within the meaning of the Limited 
Partnerships Act (Ontario), to be comprised, as of the Closing, of two limited 
partners, SON LPco and HO LPco and one general partner, GPco; 

"BtoM LP Promissory Note" has the meaning given to it in paragraph 14(e) of this 
letter; 

"BtoM Project Assets" means the assets comprising the Line, including the LP Line 
Property Rights, but excluding sub-station facilities and all the assets relating to the 
connection of the Line to HONI's remaining structural assets; 

"BtoM Project Asset Value" means the aggregate FMV of the BtoM Project Assets 
as of Closing which was estimated to be approximately $532 million as of September 
2013, which includes HONI's final construction and development costs that are to 
be incurred prior to Closing (subject to such inclusions or exclusions as may be 
imposed by the Board in connection with the rate application filed by the Bruce-to­
Milton LP as contemplated in the Agreement); 

"Canadian Partnership" has the meaning assigned by subsection 102(1); 

"Capital of the Newco Shares" at any time means an amount not exceeding the 
Agreed Amounts described in paragraph 14U); 

"Closing" means the time when the transactions described in paragraphs 14(a) and 
14(c) to (o) are undertaken; 

"Cost Amount" has the meaning assigned by subsection 248(1 ); 

"CRA" means the Canada Revenue Agency; 
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"Daylight Loan" means the loan granted to Subco in an amount equal to the principal 
amount of Promissory Note 3, which is not convertible into shares of Subco and 
bears interest at fixed rate that does not vary with the profits of Subco; 

"Deemed Dividend" has the meaning given to it in Paragraph G of the Rulings Given 
in this letter; 

"Dividends" has the meaning given to it in Paragraph H of the Rulings Given in this 
letter; 

"Dividend Rental Agreement" has the meaning assigned by subsection 248(1); 

"Effective Hydro One Equity Amount" means the amount calculated by multiplying 
the BtoM Project Asset Value by 40% and multiplying such amount by the Hydro 
One Equity Ratio; 

"Elected Amount" in respect of a Qualifying Property means the amount that the 
transferor and transferee of the property have agreed upon in an election under 
subsection 97(2); 

"Electricity Act" means the Electricity Act, 1998 (Ontario); 

"Eligible Property" has the meaning assigned by subsection 85(1.1); 

"Excepted Dividend" has the meaning assigned by section 187.1; 

"Excluded Dividend" has the meaning assigned by section 191; 

"Excluded LP Units" means such number of LP Units as has an aggregate fair 
market value on Closing equal to the Initial HO LPco Equity Investment; 

"Facility" means the Bruce Power facility located in Kincardine; 

"Financial Intermediary Corporation" has the meaning assigned in subsection 
191(1); 

"First Nations" means the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation and the Chippewas of 
Nawash First Nation; 

"FMV" means fair market value, which refers to the amount, expressed in money 
terms, that is the highest price available in an open and unrestricted market between 
informed and prudent parties dealing at arm's length; 

"General Partner" means B2M GP Inc., which is governed by Act 4, is wholly-owned 
directly or indirectly by Parentco and is the general partner of the Partnership; 

"General Partner Equity Ratio" means the percentage equal to 99.9% minus the 
Holdco Equity Ratio; 

"GPco" means B2M GP Inc., an OBCA corporation created and owned directly or 
indirectly by Hydro One to function as the general partner of the Bruce-to-Milton LP; 
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"GPco Equity Ratio" means the percentage equal to 99.9% minus the SON Equity 
Ratio; 

"GPco Promissory Note" has the meaning given to it in Paragraph 14(d) of this 
letter; 

"Group" means Sub-Group 1 and Sub-Group 2 Qointly); 

"Holdco" means 1893080 Ontario Inc. (to be renamed the Saugeen Ojibway Nations 
Finance Corporation) resident, at all times, in Canada and governed by Act 4. It will 
be owned directly by the Group and will act as bare trustee for the Group in respect 
of its participation in the ownership and the distribution of the amounts derived from 
the operation of the Infrastructure; 

"Holdco Equity Contribution Amount" means the amount to be contributed by Hold co 
as a capital contribution to the Partnership on the Closing, which shall be: (i) no less 
than 5% of the amount which is equal to 40% of the Project Asset Value and (ii) no 
greater than $72,000,000; 

"Holdco Equity Ratio" means the percentage determined by dividing the Holdco 
Equity Contribution Amount by the amount which is equal to 40% of the Project 
Asset Value (each as finally determined prior to the Closing); 

"HO LPco" means Hydro One B2M LP Inc., an OBCA corporation created and 
owned directly or indirectly by Hydro One to hold a limited partnership interest in the 
Bruce-to-Milton LP; 

"HO LPco Equity Ratio" means 0.1 %; 

"HONI" means Hydro One Networks Inc., a corporation with share capital 
incorporated under, and governed by, the provisions of the OBCA, all of the issued 
and outstanding shares of which are owned by Hydro One; 

"HONI Dividend" has the meaning given to it in paragraph 14(1) of this letter; 

"HONI Line Real Property" means all interests in real property or licenses over real 
property interests in respect of the Line owned or controlled by HONI; 

"Hydro One" means Hydro One Inc., a corporation with share capital 
incorporated under, and governed by, the provisions of the OBCA; 

"Hydro One Debt" has the meaning given to it in paragraph 14(1) of this letter; 

"Hydro One Equity Ratio" means the percentage equal to 100% minus the SON 
Equity Ratio; 

"Infrastructure" means the high-voltage electrical transmission tower line with circuit 
number 8561 M and that portion of the high-voltage electrical transmission tower line 
with circuit number B560V spanning from Subco's switchyard at the Facility to the 
Substation; 
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"Initial HONI Equity Investment" means an amount equal to 40% of the Tax Cost of 
the BtoM Project Assets to HONI at the time of the transfer described in paragraph 
14(a) less an amount equal to the SON Equity Contribution Amount; 

"Initial LPco Equity Investment" means an amount equal to the BtoM Project Asset 
Value multiplied by 40% times the LPco Equity Ratio; 

"Interim Loan" has the meaning given to it in paragraph 14(p) of this letter and is a 
non-convertible loan in an amount equal to the Hold co Equity Contribution Amount 
that will bear interest at a fixed rate that will not vary with the profits of Applicable 
Borrower; 

"ITA" means the Income Tax Act, R.S.C. 1985 (51
h Supp.) c.1, as amended to the date 

hereof, and unless otherwise indicated, every reference herein to a part, section, 
subsection, paragraph, subparagraph or clause is a reference to the relevant 
provision of the IT A; 

"Limited Partner" means Hydro One B2M LP Inc., which is governed by Act 4, which 
is wholly-owned directly or indirectly by Parentco and the initial limited partner of the 
Partnership; 

"Limited Partner Units" means such number of Units having an aggregate FMV on 
the Closing equal to 40% of the Project Asset Value times 0.1 %; 

"Line" means the high-voltage electrical transmission tower line with circuit number 
B561 M and that portion of the high-voltage electrical transmission tower line with circuit 
number B560V spanning from HONI's switchyard at the Bruce Power Nuclear Generating 
Facility located in Kincardine, Ontario to HONI's switchyard in Milton, Ontario; 

"LP Line Property Rights" means the portion of the HONI Line Real Property to be 
transferred or licensed to the Bruce-to-Milton LP in accordance with the Agreement 
which are required to operate and maintain the BtoM Project Assets; 

"LP Promissory Note" "LP Promissory Note" means a promissory note issued by the 
Bruce-to-Milton LP to HONI having a principal amount equal to the lesser of (i) the 
Tax Cost of the BtoM Project Assets; and (ii) an amount equal to the excess of the 
FMV of the BtoM Project Assets transferred to the Bruce-to-Milton LP as described 
in Paragraph 14(a) over the excess of 40% of the Tax Cost of the BtoM Project 
Assets to HONI at the time of such transfer over the SON Equity Contribution 
Amount, and bearing interest at a rate based on the interest rate of debt issued by 
Hydro One to arm's length parties at commercial terms, as may be adjusted from 
time to time; 

"LP Units" means the partnership units representing the partnership interests in the 
Bruce-to-Milton LP; 

"LPA'' means the amended and restated limited partnership agreement in respect of 
the Bruce-to-Milton LP as may be amended from time to time; 

"LPco Equity Ratio" means 0.1 %; 

7 



"Majesty" means Her Majesty in right of Ontario; 

"Newco" means Hydro One B2M Holdings Inc., which is governed by Act 4. It is 
owned directly or indirectly by Parentco and will, following the completion of the 
Proposed Transactions, hold shares in Limited Partner and General Partner; 

"Newco Common Shares" has the meaning assigned by Paragraph 14(m); 

"Newco Preferred Shares" has the meaning assigned by Paragraph 14U); 

"Newco Note Receivable" has the meaning given to it in Paragraph 14(m) of this 
letter; 

"OBCA" means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario); 

"OEB" means the Ontario Energy Board; 

"OEB Act" means the Ontario Energy Board Act; 

"Operating Agreement" means the agreement to be entered into between GPco on 
behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP and HONI providing, among other things, for the 
operation of the Line; 

"Operating Services" refers to the services required to operate the Infrastructure 
including, without limitation, all operating, maintenance, repair and refurbishment 
and including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all services in relation 
to the monitoring and control of the transmission of electricity across the 
Infrastructure; 

"Outstanding Promissory Notes" means the BtoM LP Promissory Note, the GPco 
Promissory Note and the Newco Note Receivable; 

"Paragraph" means a numbered paragraph in this letter; 

"Parentco" means Hydro One Inc., which is a corporation with share capital 
governed by Act 4 which is wholly-owned by the Province of Ontario, is exempt from 
tax by virtue of paragraph 149(1)(d) and carries on electricity transmission, 
distribution, energy services and telecommunications services activities through its 
subsidiaries; 

"Partnership" means B2M Limited Partnership, a limited partnership arrangement 
within the meaning of the Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario), to be comprised, 
following the completion of the Proposed Transactions, of two limited partners, 
Limited Partner and Holdco (as bare trustee for the Group) and a general partner 
referred as General Partner, which will be, at all times, resident in Canada; 

"Payments" means the payments required to be paid under subsection 89(1) of Act 
1, equal to the amount of tax payable under the Act by Parentco, Subco, Newco, 
General Partner or Limited Partner had such entities not been exempt under 
subsection 149(1) from the payment of tax; 
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"Project Assets" means the assets comprising the Infrastructure, including the 
Property Rights, but excluding sub-station facilities and all the assets relating to the 
connection of the Infrastructure to Subco's remaining structural assets (individually 
referred to as "Project Asset"); 

"Project Asset Value" means the aggregate FMV of the Project Assets as of Closing 
which was estimated to be approximately $532 million as of September 2013, which 
includes Subco's final construction and development costs that are to be incurred 
prior to Closing (subject to such inclusions or exclusions as may be imposed by the 
Board in connection with the rate application filed by the Partnership as 
contemplated in the Agreement); 

"Promissory Note 1" means a promissory note issued by the Partnership to General 
Partner as described in Paragraph 14(e), having a principal amount equal to the 
amount by which Project Asset Value exceeds the amount calculated by multiplying 
40% of the Project Asset Value by the excess of 100% over the Holdco Equity Ratio, 
bearing interest at the same rate as applicable to Promissory Note 3, as may be 
adjusted from time to time; 

"Promissory Note 2" means a promissory note issued by General Partner to Subco, 
which bears interest at the same rate as applicable to Promissory Note 3, less an 
interest rate spread, if any, to be determined by Subco and General Partner, as may 
be adjusted over time; 

"Promissory Note 3" means a promissory note issued by the Partnership to Subco 
having a principal amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Tax Cost of the Project 
Assets; and (ii) an amount equal to the excess of the FMV of the Project Assets 
transferred to the Partnership as described in Paragraph 14(a) over the excess of 
40% of the Tax Cost of the Project Assets to Subco at the time of such transfer over 
the Holdco Equity Contribution Amount, and bearing interest at a rate based on the 
interest rate of debt issued by Parentco to arm's length parties at commercial terms, 
as may be adjusted from time to time; 

"Promissory Note 4" means a promissory note issued by Newco to Parentco having 
a principal amount equal to the amount by which the initial principal amount of 
Promissory Note 2 as described in Paragraph 14(d) exceeds the Holdco Equity 
Contribution Amount and with terms identical to Promissory Note 2 except that the 
interest rate accruing on Promissory Note 4 may be lower than the interest rate 
under the Promissory Note 2 by an interest rate spread to be determined by 
Parentco and Newco; 

"Property Rights" means the portion of the Subco Real Property to be transferred or 
licensed to the Partnership in accordance with the Agreement which is required to 
operate and maintain the Project Assets; 

"Pils" has the meaning given to it in Paragraph 3 of this letter; 

"Province" means Her Majesty in right of Ontario; 

"Proposed Transactions" means the transactions described in the Proposed 
Transactions section of this letter; 

9 



"PUC" means paid-up capital as that term is defined in subsection 89(1); 

"Qualifying Property" means a capital property, Canadian resource property, foreign 
resource property, eligible capital property or inventory; 

"Redemption Value" means an amount equal to the aggregate FMV of the General 
Partner shares, Limited Partner shares, Limited Partner Units and the outstanding 
balance of Promissory Note 2 at the time described in Paragraph 14U); 

"Regulation" means Ontario Regulation 140/09 made under Act 1; 

"Restricted Financial Institution" has the meaning assigned by subsection 248(1); 

"series of transactions or events" has the extended meaning assigned by 
subsection 248(1 0) of the ITA; 

"SON Equity Contribution Amount" means the amount to be contributed by SON 
LPco as a capital contribution to the Bruce-to-Milton LP on Closing, which shall be: 
(i) no less than 5% of the amount which is equal to 40% of the BtoM Project Asset 
Value and (ii) no greater than $72,000,000; 

"SON Equity Ratio" means the percentage determined by dividing the SON Equity 
Contribution Amount by the amount which is equal to 40% of the BtoM Project 
Asset Value (each as finally determined prior to Closing); 

"SON LPco" means the 1893080 Ontario Inc. (which will be renamed Saugeen Ojibway 
Nation Finance Corporation), an OBCA corporation to be owned directly by the First 
Nations to hold a limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP, as bare 
trustee for the First Nations; 

"Specified Financial Institution" has the meaning assigned by subsection 248(1); 

"Subco" means Hydro One Networks Inc., a corporation governed by Act 4 which 
carries on electricity transmission and distribution activities in Ontario that were 
previously carried on by Ontario Hydro and which is exempt from tax under Part I by 
virtue of paragraph 149(1)(d.2); 

"Subco Real Property" means all interests in real property or licenses over real 
property interests in respect of the Infrastructure owned or controlled by Subco; 

"Sub-Group 1" means the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation; 

"Sub-Group 1 Board" means the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation Band Council, 
a democratically elected executive and governing body, which represents Sub­
Group 1 in all matters under its jurisdiction; 

"Sub-Group 2" means the Chippewas of Nawash First Nation; 

"Sub-Group 2 Board" means Chippewas of Nawash First Nation Band Council, a 
democratically elected executive and governing body, which represents Sub-Group 
2 in all matters under its jurisdiction; 
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"Substation" means Subco's switchyard located in Milton, Ontario; 

"Tax Cost" means the aggregate of all amounts in respect of each BtoM Project 
Asset that is equal to the lesser of the capital cost of that BtoM Project Asset to 
HONI and the undepreciated capital cost of property of HONI of the capital cost 
allowance class to which that BtoM Project Asset belongs; 

"Taxable Canadian Corporation" has the meaning assigned by subsection 89(1); 

"Taxable Dividend" has the meaning assigned by subsection 89(1); 

"UCC" means undepreciated capital cost and has the meaning assigned to 
subsection 13(21); 

"Units" mean the partnership units representing the partnership interests in the 
Partnership; 

"Unrelated Person", with respect to a disposition of property or a significant 
increase in a person's or partnership's interest in a corporation, means a person or 
partnership that is an "unrelated person" with reference to HONI or Hydro One, as 
applicable, within the meaning of paragraph 55(3.01 )(a) of the ITA immediately 
before that disposition or significant increase (as the case may be); 

"Utility" means a municipal electric utility as defined in section 88 of Act 1. 

Facts 

Hydro One and HONI 

1. Hydro One is a corporation that has been created by the Province pursuant to 
and for the purposes of the Electricity Act. Hydro One is principally a holding 
corporation, owing shares in a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries which carry 
on electricity transmission, distribution, energy services and telecommunications 
services businesses. HONI, Hydro One's direct wholly-owned subsidiary, carries 
on the electricity transmission and distribution business in Ontario that was 
previously carried on by the former Ontario Hydro. Hydro One was incorporated 
under and is governed by the provisions of the OBCA. 

2. All of the issued and outstanding shares of Hydro One are held by the Province. 
As a result, Hydro One is currently exempt from tax under Part I of the ITA by 
virtue of paragraph 149(1)(d). HONI was incorporated under and is governed by 
the provisions of the OBCA in order to carry on the electricity transmission and 
distribution business in Ontario. 

In addition, because all of the issued and outstanding shares of HONI are owned 
by Hydro One, HONI is currently exempt from tax under Part I of the ITA by virtue 
of paragraph 149(1)(d.2) 
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3. Hydro One and HONI are subject to subsections 89(1) and 90(1) of the Electricity 
Act and as such make payments in lieu of federal corporate tax and provincial 
corporate tax ("PILs") respectively. 

The First Nations 

4. The Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation are a band within the meaning of the 
Indian Act (Canada) represented by the Chippewas of Saugeen First Nation 
Band Council. The Chippewas of Nawash First Nation are a band within the 
meaning of the Indian Act (Canada) represented by the Chippewas of Nawash 
First Nation Band Council. Collectively, these parties are referred to as the First 
Nations. 

5. Each First Nation is governed by a democratically elected Chief and band 
councillors. The Chief and band councillors for each First Nation represent the 
First Nations in all matters. The First Nations provides and administers an 
extensive list of public works, social services and infrastructure programs. 

6. Each of the First Nations has passed by-laws pursuant to section 81 of the Indian 
Act. Each First Nation has an Order-in-council under Section 69 of the Indian Act, 
giving it permission to control, manage or expend its revenues. 

7. As a public body performing a function of government in Canada, each First 
Nation is exempt from tax levied under Part I of the ITA by virtue of paragraph 
149(1)(c) of the ITA. 

Proposed Transactions 

8. Hydro One has incorporated a new corporation, SON LPco. The authorized 
capital of SON LPco consists of an unlimited number of common shares. In 
connection with the incorporation of SON LPco, Hydro One acquired 2 common 
shares of SON LPco for $2. In 2013, Hydro One will sell all of its shares in SON 
LPco to the First Nations, for a price equal to the fair market value of such shares 
at the time of transfer (such fair market value being equal to the costs of 
incorporation plus two dollars), subject to adjustment in the event of a 
reassessment by the tax authorities or otherwise upon the agreement of Hydro 
One and the First Nations. 

SON LPco will be used by the First Nations as a single purpose holding company 
through which the First Nations will participate as a limited partner in the Bruce­
to-Milton LP. The business of SON LPco will be restricted to the holding of the 
First Nation's limited partnership interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP. SON LPco 
will act as a bare trustee for the First Nations. 

9. HONI has incorporated and organized a new subsidiary as HO LPco, through 
which HONI will participate as a limited partner in the Bruce-to-Milton LP. The 
authorized capital of HO LPco consists of an unlimited number of common 
shares. In connection with the incorporation of HO LPco, HONI acquired 1 
common shares of HONI for $1. 
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As a wholly-owned subsidiary of HONI, and later, indirectly as a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Hydro One, HO LPco is subject to the Plls tax regime. 

10. HONI has incorporated and organized a new subsidiary, GPco, to act as the 
general partner in the Bruce-to-Milton LP and manage and operate the Line. The 
authorized capital of GPco consists of an unlimited number of common shares. 
In connection with the incorporation of GPco, HONI acquired 999 common shares 
of GPco for $999. As a wholly-owned subsidiary of HONI, and later, indirectly as 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hydro One, GPco is subject to the Plls tax regime. 

11. HO LPco and GPco have created and organized the Bruce-to-Milton LP pursuant 
to the Limited Partnerships Act, Ontario wherein HO LPco is the initial limited 
partner and GPco is the general partner. The initial capital shall be $1,000 and 
the partnership interests of GPco and HO LPco shall be 99.9% and 0.1% 
respectively, represented by 999 LP Units and 1 LP Unit, respectively. 

12. Following the execution of the Agreement: 

a. The First Nations shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a 
commitment for financing in an amount sufficient to enable the First 
Nations to ·meet the payment and investment obligations set out in Section 
3.4 of the Agreement on terms and conditions satisfactory to the First 
Nations and HONI, including with respect to security obligations and 
lender step-in rights; 

b. GPco, on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, will apply for a transmission 
licence to operate the BtoM Project Assets following the transfer of the 
BtoM Project Assets from HONI to the Bruce-to-Milton LP to occur on the 
Closing; 

c. HONI has applied (with the co-operation and support of the Bruce-to­
Milton LP and the First Nations as may be necessary) under s.86 of the 
OEB Act for approval to transfer the BtoM Project Assets to the Bruce-to­
Milton LP effective on the Closing; 

d. GPco, on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, will enter into an operating 
agreement with HONI on terms and conditions satisfactory to First Nations 
and HONI (the "Operating Agreement") pursuant to which HONI will perform 
Operating Services in consideration for the operation fees determined by 
sections 3.3 and 3.4 of the Operating Agreement; 

e. GPco on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, (with the co-operation and 
support of the Parties hereto as may be necessary) will apply for a first 
transmission rate order from the OEB anticipating the transfer of the BtoM 
Project Assets from HONI to the Bruce-to-Milton LP on Closing; and 

the parties shall otherwise apply for and pursue the Approvals as indicated in the 
Agreement with the full co-operation and support of each other Party. 
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13. The completion of the transactions contemplated by this letter are, unless 
otherwise waived in writing by the parties, subject to a number of conditions 
precedent, including the receipt of rulings from the Ministry of Finance in respect 
of the taxation of the Proposed Transactions under the Tax Statutes. 

14. After the Approvals Date, the following transactions shall occur: 

a. HONI will transfer to the Bruce-to-Milton LP the BtoM Project Assets in 
exchange for (i) the issuance of LP Units of the Bruce-to-Milton LP, at a 
price of one dollar ($1.00) per unit, subject to adjustment, and (ii) the LP 
Promissory Note. The LP Units will have an aggregate FMV equal to the 
excess of the aggregate FMV of the BtoM Project Assets over the 
principal amount of the LP Promissory Note. In any event, the principal 
amount of the LP Promissory Note will not exceed the aggregate Tax Cost 
of the BtoM Project Assets to HONI. In conjunction with the APA, HONI 
and the partners of the Bruce-to-Milton LP shall duly execute and file an 
election under subsection 97(2) of the ITA (as that provision applies for 
purposes of the Electricity Act) so that such transfer will occur on a tax 
deferred basis to HONI. In particular, the portion of the LP Promissory 
Note allocated to any particular asset or class of assets, and the elected 
amount for each particular asset or class of assets, will not exceed the 
Tax Cost of such asset or class of assets to HONI. 

The APA will contain a price adjustment clause providing for an 
adjustment to the purchase price, the consideration and/or the elected 
amount under the tax election in respect of the transfer in the event of a 
reassessment by the tax authorities or otherwise upon the agreement of 
HONI and the Bruce-to-Milton LP. If Honi transfers (rather than licenses) 
the LP Line Property Rights, Honi will transfer the beneficial interest and 
will hold legal title as nominee for and on behalf of the Bruce-to-Milton LP; 

b. Hydro One has incorporated Newco and subscribed for 100 common 
shares for $100. Newco will reside in Canada and will be exempt from the 
obligation to pay tax by virtue of paragraph 149(1)(d.2); 

c. HONI will borrow from a bank, on a daylight basis, or from Hydro One, 
cash under the Daylight Loan; 

d. HONI will contribute to GPco (i) the cash it received under the Daylight 
Loan and (ii) the LP Units received by HONI pursuant to the APA, (other 
than the Excluded LP Units), in exchange for (iii) additional common 
shares of GPco having an FMV equal to the excess of the Effective Hydro 
One Equity Amount over the FMV of the Excluded LP Units, and (iv) a 
promissory note from GPco in the principal amount equal to the BtM 
Project Asset Value less the Effective Hydro One Equity Amount, and 
bearing interest at same rate as the rate as applicable to the LP 
Promissory Note, less an interest rate spread, if any, to be determined by 
HONI and GPco, as it may be adjusted from time to time (the "GPco 
Promissory Note"), provided that, in any event, the principal amount of the 
GPco Promissory Note will not exceed the amount of the cash amount 
contributed by HONI to GPco. 
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HONI and GPco shall duly execute and file an election under subsection 
85(1) of the ITA (as that provision applies for purposes of the Electricity 
Act) so that such transfer of the LP Units will occur on a tax deferred basis 
to HONI. In particular, the elected amount for the LP Units will not exceed 
the adjusted cost base of those LP Units to HONI. The terms of HONI's 
contribution to GPco will contain a price adjustment clause providing for 
an adjustment to the subscription price, the consideration and/or the 
elected amount under the tax election in respect of the transfer to GPco in 
the event of a reassessment by the tax authorities or otherwise upon the 
agreement of HONI and GPco; 

e. GPco will transfer a cash amount to Bruce-to-Milton LP in the amount that 
was borrowed by HONI under the Daylight Loan and in return shall receive 
additional LP Units as well as a promissory note in the principal amount 
equal to the BtoM Project Asset Value minus the Effective Hydro One 
Equity Amount and bearing interest at a rate equal the same rate as 
applicable to the LP Promissory Note as may be adjusted from time to 
time (the "BtoM LP Promissory Note"). The principal amount of the BtoM 
LP Promissory Note will equal the principal amount of the GPco 
Promissory Note; 

f. HONI will cause HO LPco and GPco to enter into the LPA, and First 
Nations will cause SON LPco (as bare trustee for First Nations) to enter 
into the LPA, and SON LPco (as bare trustee for First Nations) will 
make a capital contribution to the Bruce-to-Milton LP in the amount equal 
to the SON Equity Contribution Amount and in return shall receive (as 
bare trustee for First Nations) such number of LP Units such that (i) the 
total number of LP Units held by SON LPco (as bare trustee for First 
Nations) will be equal to the total issued and outstanding LP Units 
multiplied by the SON Equity Ratio; (ii) the total number of LP Units 
held by GPco (including, for greater certainty, those issued under 
Section 3.4(c) of the Agreement) will be equal to the total issued and 
outstanding LP Units multiplied by the GPco Equity Ratio; and (iii) the 
total number of LP Units held by HO LPco (following the transfer 
described in Paragraph 14(k) below) will be equal to 0.1% of the total 
issued and outstanding LP Units. 

g. The Bruce-to-Milton LP will pay to HONI a cash amount equal to the 
principal amount of the LP Promissory Note in full satisfaction of the LP 
Promissory Note held by HONI in connection with the APA; 

h. The Bruce-to-Milton LP will pay such portion of the BtoM LP Promissory 
Note such that the principal amount of the BtoM LP Promissory Note will, 
after such payment, be equal to 60% of the BtoM Project Asset Value; 

i. GPco will utilize the funds received from the Bruce-to-Milton LP to pay a 
portion of the GPco Promissory Note; 

j. HONI will transfer all of its shares owned in HO LPco and GPco, the GPco 
Promissory Note and the LP Units that HONI owns to Newco and will 
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receive from Newco preferred shares ("Newco Preferred Shares") having 
a fair market value equal to the aggregate fair market value of the HO 
LPco shares, GPco shares, LP Units and GPco Promissory Note 
acquired by Newco. 

HONI and Newco will duly execute and file an election under subsection 
85(1) of the ITA (as that provision applies for purposes of the Electricity 
Act) so that such transfer of the HO LPco and GPco shares, the GPco 
Promissory Note and the LP Units will occur on a tax deferred basis to 
HONI. In particular, the elected amounts will not exceed the respective 
adjusted cost bases of the HO LPco shares, GPco shares, the GPco 
Promissory Note and the LP Units transferred to Newco. 

The terms of the Agreement of Purchase and Sale will contain an 
adjustment clause providing for an adjustment to the elected amount under 
the tax election in respect of the transfer to Newco in the event of a 
reassessment by the tax authorities or otherwise upon the agreement of 
HONI and Newco. In addition, the terms of the Newco Preferred 
Shares will provide for an adjustment to the redemption price of the 
Newco Preferred Shares in the event of a reassessment by the tax 
authorities or otherwise upon the agreement of HONI and Newco; 

k. Newco will transfer to HO LPco all of the LP Units it received from HONI 
as described in Paragraph 140) and will receive common shares of HO 
LPco having a fair market value equal to the fair market value of such LP 
Units; 

Newco and HO LPco will duly execute and file an election under 
subsection 85(1) of the ITA (which provision applies for purposes of the 
Electricity Act) so that such transfer of the LP Units will occur on a tax 
deferred basis to Newco. In particular, the elected amount will not exceed 
the adjusted cost base of the LP Units to Newco. The terms of the 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale will contain an adjustment clause 
providing for an adjustment to the elected amount under the tax election in 
respect of the transfer to HO LPco in the event of a reassessment by the 
tax authorities or otherwise upon the agreement of Newco and HO LPco; 

I. HONI will pay cash to Hydro One in an amount equal to the Redemption 
Value of the Newco Preferred Shares in the form of a taxable dividend 
(the "HONI Dividend") and/or as a repayment of debt owing by HONI to 
Hydro One. Alternatively, Hydro One may borrow all or a portion of the 
amount it requires to fund the payment described in Paragraph 14(m) 
from one or more third parties (the "Hydro One Debt"). The Hydro One 
Debt will not be convertible and will bear interest at a fixed rate that does 
not vary based on Hydro One's profits; 

m. Hydro One will transfer the entire amount of cash received from HONI 
and/or as proceeds from the Hydro One Debt to Newco and will receive, 

i. A note receivable ("Newco Note Receivable") having a fair market 
value, principal amount equal to, and terms identical to, the GPco 
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Promissory Note held by Newco, except that the interest rate may be 
lower than the interest rate under the GPco Promissory Note by an 
interest rate spread to be determined by Hydro One and Newco; and 

ii. Commonsharesinthecapitalof Newco ("Newco Common Shares") 
having a fair market value and tax basis equal to the aggregate 
fair market value of the H 0 LPco shares and the GPco shares 
held by Newco; 

n. Newco will redeem the Newco Preferred Shares held by HONI utilizing the 
cash obtained from the Hydro One investment as described in Paragraph 
14(m); 

o. HONI will utilize the funds received on the redemption of the Newco 
Preferred Shares and, if necessary, the amount received as partial 
repayment of the GPco Promissory Note to repay the Daylight Loan; 

p. If the First Nations have, under the financing described in Paragraph 
12(a), received an advance of funds from third party lenders prior to the 
grant of the Board Approvals Approvals, SON LPco (as bare trustee for 
the First Nations) will make the Interim Loan to HO LPco (or another 
corporation that is related to HO LPco, other than Hydro One) in an 
amount equal to the SON Equity Contribution Amount. On Closing, the 
applicable borrower will repay the Interim Loan and SON LPco (as bare 
trustee for the First Nations) will use the proceeds from that repayment to 
make the capital contribution to the Bruce-to-Milton LP described in 
Paragraph 14(f). 

Purpose of the Proposed Transactions 

The purpose of the Proposed Transactions is to allow the First Nations to invest in, and 
to earn income through the acquisition of an equity participation in the Bruce to Milton 
electricity transmission line, an important infrastructure project which traverses the 
traditional lands of the First Nations; establish the relationship between HONI and the 
First Nations with respect to the operation and ownership of the Bruce to Milton 
electricity transmission line; establish the appropriate regulatory debt to equity ratio; and 
to retain the taxable income allocated to HO LPco and GPco within the PILs tax regime. 

Parentco will participate, indirectly through Subco (and subsequently Newco), in the 
Partnership through a separate wholly-owned subsidiary, General Partner, in order to 
facilitate future compliance with regulatory requirements for the regulated entities. The 
Infrastructure is the first transmission asset that Parentco, Subco or Newco will own 
through a partnership vehicle with the Group. 

All of the transmission assets owned by Subco are solely owned by it. It will assist 
Subco in its regulatory compliance to account for and report on its own transmission 
operations on the basis that all of its assets are solely owned. 
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Additional Assumptions 

For the purposes of this letter, it is assumed that, at all relevant times: 

1. Each of Hydro One, HONI, HO LPco , GPco and Newco is subject to Plls 
pursuant to sections 89 and 90 of the Electricity Act; 

2. For the purposes of the ITA and Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario), as those 
statutes apply for the purpose of calculating Plls under the Electricity Act: 

a. All transactions described in the letter are part of a single series of 
transactions; 

b. The Bruce-to-Milton LP is a Canadian partnership; 

c. Each of Hydro One, HONI, HO LPco , GPco, Newco, SON LPco and the 
First Nations is resident in Canada; 

d. Each of Hydro One, HONI, HO LPco , GPco, Newco and SON LPco would 
be a taxable Canadian corporation but for section 149 of the ITA; 

e. Hydro One, HONI, HO LPco, GPco and Newco are related persons; 

f. The properties transferred in the transaction referred to in Paragraph 14(a) 
are capital property or eligible capital property of HONI; 

g. The properties transferred in each of the transactions referred to in 
Paragraphs 14(d), 14U) and 14(k) are eligible property under subsection 
85(1.1) of the ITA; 

h. The HONI Dividend, and any other dividends arising as a result of the 
contemplated transactions, are taxable dividends; 

i. Each of the BtoM LP Promissory Note and the LP Promissory Note create 
a legal obligation for the Bruce-to-Milton LP to pay interest at a 
commercial rate in exchange for the use of money; and 

j. The proceeds from the BtoM LP Promissory Note will be used to repay the 
LP Promissory Note. 

3. Neither Newco nor Subco is or will be, at any time during the Series of 
Transactions or Events that includes the Proposed Transaction, a Specified 
Financial Institution, a Restricted Financial Institution or a corporation described 
in any of paragraphs (a) to (f) of the definition of Financial Intermediary 
Corporation; 

4. The Newco shares are not the subject of: 

a. any undertaking that is a guarantee agreement; 

b. a Dividend Rental Arrangement; 
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c. any secured undertaking of the type described in paragraph 112(2.4)(a). 

5. The Newco shares were not issued for consideration that is or includes: 

a. an obligation of the type described in subparagraph 112(2.4)(b)(i), 
other than an obligation of a corporation that is related (otherwise 
than by reason of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b}} to 
Newco; or 

b. any right of the type described in subparagraph 112(2.4)(b)(ii). 

6. None of the Outstanding Promissory Notes are related to the acquisition of 
the Limited Partner's interest in the Partnership and each Promissory Note 
will be issued for commercial reasons and on commercial terms; 

7. In a report issued on December 20, 2006 (Report of the Board on Cost of 
Capital and 2nd Generation Incentive Regulation for Ontario's Electricity 
Distributors), the Board concluded that for ratemaking purposes, a single capital 
structure for all distributors is appropriate. The Board has determined that a 
split of 60% debt, 40% equity be used for all distributors. When approving or 
refusing to approve capital structures set out in applications by transmitters, the 
Board determines the capital structure on a case-by-case basis (OEB Report EB-
2009-0084 on the Cost of Capital for Ontario's Regulated Utilities, paragraph 4.3, 
page 50) but generally uses the deemed capital structure for distributors unless 
there is a compelling reason justifying a different capital structure. That is what 
justifies the fact that the Partnership is capitalized with 60% of debt and 40% of 
equity. 

Rulings Given 

The following rulings are given subject to the limitations and qualifications set out in 
Information Circular 70-6R5 issued by the CRA on May 17, 2002. The rulings given 
below are based on the Electricity Act and other relevant statutes in their present form 
and do not take into account any proposed amendments to the Electricity Act or other 
relevant statutes which, if enacted, could have an effect on the rulings provided herein. 
Any references in the rulings below to provisions of the IT A should be read as a 
reference to that provision, as it applies for purposes of the Electricity Act. 

Rulings are considered to be binding on the Ministry of Finance only in respect of the 
taxpayer to whom the ruling was given. Each ruling given below is based on the 
particular facts set out in this letter and on the law in force at the time the ruling is 
published and, therefore, will not be amended for subsequent changes in the law. 

It is understood that ruling request "D" and ruling request "K" have been withdrawn and 
as such rulings will not be given for these two requests. Also, ruling request "L" has 
been withdrawn and changed to a request for an interpretation which will be addressed 
in a separate letter. 
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Provided that the statements found in the Facts, Proposed Transactions, Purpose of the 
Proposed Transactions and Additional Assumptions are accurate and constitute a 
complete disclosure of all the relevant facts and proposed transactions and assuming 
that, pursuant to subsection 89(1) of Act 1, Parentco, Subco, Newco, General Partner 
and Limited Partner were not a person to which subsection 149(1) applies, the following 
rulings are given: 

A The First Nations will not be regarded as municipal corporations for purposes of 
Part VI of the Electricity Act. 

B. None of the First Nations, SON LPco or the Bruce-to-Milton LP will be 
regarded as a "municipal electricity utility" as defined in Section 88 of the 
Electricity Act. 

C. Provided that the Bruce-to-Milton LP is a Canadian Partnership immediately after 
the transfer described in Paragraph 14a of this letter and each property 
transferred is a Qualifying Property and provided further that Honi and all the 
other members of the Bruce-to-Milton LP jointly elect under subsection 97(2), in 
prescribed form and within the time limit specified in subsection 96(4), the 
provisions of subsection 97(2) will apply to the transfer by Honi of the BtoM 
Project Assets to the Bruce-to-Milton LP as described in Paragraph 14(a) of this 
letter. 

Subject to subsection 69(11) and paragraph 85(1)(b), provided that each 
property transferred is Eligible Property in respect of which shares have been 
issued in full or partial consideration therefor and that the appropriate elections 
are filed in the prescribed form and manner within the time limits specified in 
subsection 85(6), the provisions found in subsection 85(1) will apply to the 
transfers described in Paragraphs 14(d), 140) and 14(k) of this letter such that 
the Agreed Amount in respect of each such transfer will be deemed to be the 
transferor's proceeds of disposition of the particular property and the transferee's 
cost thereof. For greater certainty, paragraph 85(1)(e.2) will not apply to the 
transfers referred to herein. 

D. Request withdrawn. 

E. Provided that: 

(a) the Bruce-to-Milton LP has a legal obligation to pay interest on LP 
Promissory Note; 

(b) the LP Promissory Note represents an amount payable for property 
acquired for the purpose of gaining or producing income from the 
property or from a business (other than property the income from 
which would be exempt or property that is an interest in a life 
insurance policy); 

(c) the Bruce-to-Milton LP has a legal obligation to pay interest on the 
BtoM LP Promissory Note; 
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(d) the amount borrowed under the BtoM LP Promissory Note is used 
to repay the principal amount of the LP Promissory Note as 
described in Paragraph 14(g) of this letter; 

the Bruce-to-Milton LP will be entitled to deduct, pursuant to subsection 20(3) 
and paragraph 20(1)(c), the lesser of (i) the interest, paid in the year or payable 
in respect of the year (depending on the method regularly followed by the Bruce­
to-Milton LP in computing its income for the purposes of the Act) under the 
Bruce-to-Milton Promissory Note in computing its income for the purposes of the 
Act, or (ii) a reasonable amount in respect thereof. 

F. Provided that the payments made by the Bruce-to-Milton LP to HONI under the 
Operating Agreement are an outlay or expense made or incurred for the purpose 
of gaining or producing income from a business or property, paragraph 18(1 )(a) 
will not prevent the deduction of such outlays or expenses made or incurred by 
the Bruce-to-Milton LP. 

G. As a result of the redemption by Newco of the preferred shares held by HONI 
described in Paragraph 14n of this letter, Newco will be deemed to have paid a 
dividend to HONI pursuant to paragraph 84(3)(a), and HONI will be deemed to 
have a received a dividend pursuant to paragraph 84(3)(b) equal to the amount 
by which the Redemption Value of all the preferred shares of Newco held by 
HONI exceeds their PUC. 

Provided that Newco and HONI are Taxable Canadian Corporations for purposes 
of the ITA and the Electricity Act, the amount of the dividend deemed to have 
been paid by Newco and received by HONI as described in this Ruling G will: 

a. be included in HONI's income pursuant to subsection 82(1) and 
paragraph 12(1 )Q); 

b. be deductible in computing HONI's taxable income pursuant to 
subsection 112(1) in the taxation year in which the dividend is 
deemed to have been received and for greater certainty, the 
deduction of such dividend will not be denied by of subsection 
112(2.1), (2.2), (2.3) and (2.4); 

c. be excluded from the proceeds of disposition of the redeemed 
preferred shares that HONI held in Newco pursuant to paragraph (j) 
of the definition of "proceeds of disposition" in section 54; 

d. by virtue of subsection 112(3), reduce the loss, if any, in respect of 
the disposition of the preferred shares that HONI held in Newco; 

e. not give rise to tax under Part IV except to the extent that the payer 
corporation is entitled to a dividend refund for its taxation year in 
which it paid such dividend; and 

f. not be subject to tax under Part IV.1 or Part Vl.1. 
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H. Provided that there is no disposition or increase in interest described in any of 
subparagraphs 55(3)(a)(i) to (v) as part of the series of transactions or events 
that includes the Proposed Transactions, by virtue of paragraph 55(3)(a), the 
provisions of subsection 55(2) will not apply to the deemed dividend described in 
Ruling G and to the dividend described in Paragraph 14(1) of this letter. For 
greater certainty, the Proposed Transactions, in and themselves, will not be 
considered to result in any disposition of property or an increase in interest 
described in subparagraphs 55(3)(a)(i) to (v). 

I. Provided that Newco has a legal obligation to pay interest on the Newco Note 
Receivable, and to the extent the aggregate of the amount borrowed under the 
Newco Note Receivable does not exceed the Capital of the Newco preferred 
shares that are redeemed as described in Paragraph 14(n) of this letter, 
determined immediately before such redemption, and provided that the capital so 
redeemed was being used for purposes that would have qualified for interest 
deductibility, had that capital been borrowed money in computing its income for a 
taxation year, Newco will be entitled to deduct, pursuant to paragraph 20(1)(c), 
the lesser of (i) the interest on the amount used to redeem the preferred shares 
of Newco as described in Paragraph 14(n) of this letter paid in the year or 
payable in respect of the year (depending on the method regularly followed by· 
Newco in computing its income for the purposes of the Act) or (ii) a reasonable 
amount in respect thereof. 

J. Based on the CRA's administrative policy concerning certain amounts owing 
between non-arm's length parties, the Outstanding Promissory Notes will not, in 
and of themselves, result in the application of paragraph 96(2.2)(c) to reduce the 
at-risk amount of the HO LPco in respect of its interest in the Bruce-to-Milton LP. 

According to this administrative policy, paragraph 96(2.2)(c) generally does not 
apply to amounts owing by a limited partner (or by a person or partnership not 
dealing at arm's length with the limited partner) to a partnership (or to a person or 
partnership not dealing at arm's length with the partnership) to the extent that 
such amounts arose as a result of legitimate commercial transactions that are 
unrelated to the acquisition of the limited partner's interest in the partnership and 
to the extent that the terms of payment conform to normal commercial 
arrangements comparable to those between parties dealing at arm's length. 

K. Request withdrawn. 

L. Request withdrawn. 

Comments 

Nothing in this letter should be construed as implying that the Ministry of Finance has 
confirmed, reviewed or made any determination in respect of: 
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a. the determination of the fair market value, adjusted cost base or paid-up capital 
of any shares or other property referred to herein; 

b. the balance of the capital dividend account, refundable dividend tax on hand 
account or general rate income pool of any corporation; 

c. any Plls consequences relating to the facts and proposed transactions 
described herein other than those specifically described in the rulings given 
above. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, we are not confirming 
that any transaction that occurs following the proposed transactions will not be 
part of the series of transactions or events that include the receipt of the 
dividends referred to in Ruling H; 

d. any other tax consequences related to the Facts, Proposed Transactions, 
Purpose of the Proposed Transactions and Additional Assumptions Facts, or 
subsequent transactions, whether described in this letter or not, other than those 
specifically described in the rulings given above; or 

e. the characterization as capital or inventory of the assets owned by any of the 
entities listed herein. 

Nothing in this letter should be construed as a confirmation, express or implied, that, for 
the purpose of any of the rulings given above, any adjustment to the FMV of the 
properties transferred or the consideration received, whether pursuant to a price 
adjustment clause or otherwise, will be effective retroactively to the time of the transfer. 
Furthermore, none of the rulings given in this letter are intended to apply to or in the 
event of the operation of a price adjustment clause, since such adjustment will be due to 
circumstances that do not constitute proposed transactions. 

Yours truly, 

Paul Devnich 
Senior Manager 
Advisory Services and Program Policy Branch 
Ministry of Finance 
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Line 
No. Particulars 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

1
Total Operation, Maintenance & 
Administrative Expenses 7.7  1.8  1.2  1.2  2.5  1.5  

2
Depreciation & Amortization 
Expenses 0.3  6.8  6.8  6.8  6.8  6.8  

3 Capital Taxes 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  

4 Income Taxes 0.0  0.4  0.4  0.4  0.9  1.1  

5 Total Cost of Service 8.0  9.0  8.4  8.4  10.2  9.4  

($ Millions)

B2M LP

Cost of Service
Historical (2014), and Test (2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019) Years

Year Ending December 31
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Line 
No.

Deprn 
Rate

Provision 
($M)

Deprn 
Rate

Provision 
($M)

Deprn 
Rate

Provision 
($M)

Deprn 
Rate

Provision 
($M)

Deprn 
Rate

Provision 
($M)

Deprn 
Rate

Provision 
($M)

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k) (l)
Depreciation Expenses

1 Major Fixed Assets
2 Towers, Fixtures & Poles 1.27% 0.2 1.27% 3.6 1.27% 3.6 1.27% 3.6 1.27% 3.6 1.27% 3.6
3 OH Conductors & Devices 1.44% 0.1 1.44% 2.1 1.44% 2.1 1.44% 2.1 1.44% 2.1 1.44% 2.1
4 Land Rights 0.96% 0.0 0.96% 1.0 0.96% 1.0 0.96% 1.0 0.96% 1.0 0.96% 1.0
5 Roads & Trails 1.79% 0.0 1.79% 0.2 1.79% 0.2 1.79% 0.2 1.79% 0.2 1.79% 0.2
6 Depreciation on Fixed Assets 0.3 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

7 Less Capitalized Depreciation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8 Asset Removal Costs 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9 Total Depreciation Expenses 0.3 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

Amortization Expenses

10 Other Amortization 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11 Total Amortization Expenses 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

12 Total Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 0.3 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

13 Depreciation & Amortization for recovery 0.3 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

2019

Particulars

B2M LP

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
Historical (2014) and Test (2015 to 2019) Years

Year Ending December 31
($ Millions)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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2018, 2019) 4 

Attachment 3: Calculation of Utility Income Taxes (2014) 5 

Attachment 4: Calculation of Capital Cost Allowance (2014) 6 
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SUMMARY OF TAX EXPENSE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

B2M GP Inc 0.4            0.4            0.4            0.9            1.1            
Hydro One B2M LP Inc. 0.0            0.0            0.0            0.0            0.0            
SON FC -            -            -            -            -            
Total 0.4            0.4            0.4            0.9            1.1            

Line 
No. Particulars 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c ) (d) (e)
Determination of Taxable Income

1 Regulatory Net Income (before tax) 19.8  20.3  20.6  21.0  21.1  

2 Book to Tax Adjustments:
3   Depreciation and amortization 6.8  6.8  6.8  6.8  6.8  
4    Capital Cost Allowance (29.0)  (26.8)  (24.7)  (22.7)  (21.0)  
5 Total Adjustments (22.2)  (20.0)  (17.9)  (15.9)  (14.2)  

6 Regulatory Taxable Income/(Loss) before Loss Carry Forward
$ (2.4)  $ 0.4  $ 2.7  $ 5.1  $ 7.0  

Allocation of Taxable Income
7 B2M GP Inc (1.4)  0.4  2.0  3.7  5.0  
8 Hydro One B2M LP Inc. (0.0)  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  
9 SON FC (0.9)  0.0  0.8  1.5  2.0  
10 Total $ (2.3)  $ 0.5  $ 2.8  $ 5.2  $ 7.1  

Tax Rates

11 Federal Tax 15.00  % 15.00  % 15.00  % 15.00  % 15.00  %
12 Provincial Tax 11.50  % 11.50  % 11.50  % 11.50  % 11.50  %
13 Total Tax Rate 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  %

B2M LP

Year Ending December 31
($ Millions)

B2M LP

Calculation of Utility Income Taxes
Test Years (2015 to 2019)
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B2M GP Inc.

Line 
No. Particulars 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c ) (d) (e)
Determination of Income Taxes

1 Allocation of Taxable Income from B2M LP (1.4)  0.4  2.0  3.7  5.0  
2 Loss Carryforward 1.4  (0.4)  (2.0)  (0.4)  0.0  
3 Taxable Income after loss carryforward 0.0  0.0  0.0  3.3  5.0  
4 Tax Rate 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  %
5  Income Tax Expense $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.9  $ 1.3  

Loss Continuity Schedule
6 Closing Losses Carryforward (1.4)  (2.8)  (2.4)  (0.4)   -   
7 Losses (Incurred)/Utilized during the year (1.4)  0.4  2.0  0.4   -   
8 Closing Losses Carryforward (2.8)  (2.4)  (0.4)   -    -   

Determination of Corporate Minimum Tax

9 Allocation of Accounting Income from B2M LP 13.1  13.5  13.7  14.1  14.3  
10 Corporate Minimum Tax Rate 2.70  % 2.70  % 2.70  % 2.70  % 2.70  %
11 Corporate Minimum Tax Potentially Applicable 0.4  0.4  0.4  0.4  0.4  
12 Ontario Income Tax 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.4  0.6  
13 Corporate Minimum Tax Payable $ 0.4  $ 0.4  $ 0.4  $ 0.0  $ (0.2)  

14 Opening CMT Credit Carryforward 0.0  0.4  0.7  1.1  1.1  
15 CMT Credit Incurred/(utilized) 0.4  0.4  0.4  0.0  (0.2)  
16 Closing CMT Credit Carryforward 0.4  0.7  1.1  1.1  0.9  

17 Total Taxes Expense for B2M GP Inc. $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 0.9 $ 1.1

Hydro One B2M LP Inc.

Line 
No. Particulars 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c ) (d) (e)
Determination of Income Taxes

1 Allocation of Taxable Income from B2M LP (0.002)  0.001  0.003  0.006  0.008  
2 Loss Carryforward 0.002  (0.001)  (0.002)  0.000  0.000  
3 Taxable Income after loss carryforward 0.000  0.000  0.001  0.006  0.008  
4 Tax Rate 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  % 26.50  %
5 Sub Total 0.000  0.000  0.000  0.001  0.002  
6 Additional Taxes due to Negative ACB 0.003  0.003  0.003  0.002  0.002  
7  Income Tax Expense $ 0.003 0.003 0.003 0.004 0.004

Loss Continuity Schedule
8 Closing Losses Carryforward 0.000  (0.002)  (0.002)  0.000  0.000  
9 Losses (Incurred)/Utilized during the year (0.002)  0.001  0.002  0.000  0.000  
10 Closing Losses Carryforward (0.002)  (0.002)  0.000  0.000  0.000  

Determination of Corporate Minimum Tax

11 Allocation of Accounting Income from B2M LP 0.020  0.021  0.021  0.021  0.022  
12 Corporate Minimum Tax Rate 2.70  % 2.70  % 2.70  % 2.70  % 2.70  %
13 Corporate Minimum Tax Potentially Applicable 0.001  0.001  0.001  0.001  0.001  
14 Ontario Income Tax 0.001  0.001  0.001  0.002  0.002  
15 Corporate Minimum Tax Payable $ 0.000 $ 0.000 $ 0.000 $ 0.000 $ 0.000

16 Total Taxes Expense for Hydro One B2M LP Inc $ 0.003 $ 0.003 $ 0.003 $ 0.004 $ 0.004
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SON FC

Line 
No. Particulars 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c ) (d) (e)
Determination of Income Taxes

1 Allocation of Taxable Income from B2M LP (0.9)  0.0  0.8  1.5  2.0  
2 Tax Rate 0.00  % 0.00  % 0.00  % 0.00  % 0.00  %
3  Income Tax Expense $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  

Determination of Corporate Minimum Tax

4 Allocation of Accounting Income from B2M LP 6.6  6.8  6.9  6.9  6.8  
5 Corporate Minimum Tax Rate 0.00  % 0.00  % 0.00  % 0.00  % 0.00  %
6 Corporate Minimum Tax Payable $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  $ 0.0  

7 Total Taxes Expense for SON FC $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0
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2015 Net
CCA Class Additions CCA

1 3.2               0.0 3.2               0.0 3.2               4% 0.1               3.1               
47 301.6           0.0 301.6           0.0 301.6           8% 24.1             277.4           

UCC 304.8           0.0 304.8           0.0 304.8           24.3             280.5           

CEC Continuity 68.1 0.0 68.1 0.0 68.1 7% 4.8               63.3

TOTAL CCA AND ECE 29.0           

2016 Net
CCA Class Additions CCA

1 3.1               0.0 3.1               0.0 3.1               4% 0.1               2.9               
47 277.4           0.0 277.4           0.0 277.4           8% 22.2             255.2           

UCC 280.5           0.0 280.5           0.0 280.5           22.3             258.2           

CEC Continuity 63.3 0.0 63.3 0.0 63.3 0.1 4.4 58.9

TOTAL CCA AND ECE 26.8           

2017 Net
CCA Class Additions CCA

1 2.9               0.0 2.9               0.0 2.9               4% 0.1               2.8               
47 255.2           0.0 255.2           0.0 255.2           8% 20.4             234.8           

UCC 258.2           0.0 258.2           0.0 258.2           20.5             237.7           

CEC Continuity 58.9 0.0 58.9 0.0 58.9 0.1 4.1 54.8

TOTAL CCA AND ECE 24.7           

Closing UCC

Year Ending December 31
($ Millions)

B2M LP

Calculation of Capital Cost allowance (CCA)
Test Years (2015 to 2019)

Opening 
UCC

UCC pre-1/2 
yr

50% net 
additions UCC for CCA CCA Rate

Closing UCC

Opening 
UCC

UCC pre-1/2 
yr

50% net 
additions UCC for CCA CCA Rate Closing UCC

Opening 
UCC

UCC pre-1/2 
yr

50% net 
additions UCC for CCA CCA Rate
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2018 Net

CCA Class Additions CCA
1 2.8               0.0 2.8               0.0 2.8               4% 0.1               2.7               

47 234.8           0.0 234.8           0.0 234.8           8% 18.8             216.0           
UCC 237.7           0.0 237.7           0.0 237.7           18.9             218.8           

CEC Continuity 54.8 0.0 54.8 0.0 54.8 0.1 3.8 50.9

TOTAL CCA AND ECE 22.7           

2019 Net
CCA Class Additions CCA

1 2.7               0.0 2.7               0.0 2.7               4% 0.1               2.6               
47 216.0           0.0 216.0           0.0 216.0           8% 17.3             198.8           

UCC 218.8           0.0 218.8           0.0 218.8           17.4             201.4           

CEC Continuity 50.9 0.0 50.9 0.0 50.9 0.1 3.6 47.4

TOTAL CCA AND ECE 21.0           

Closing UCC

Opening 
UCC

UCC pre-1/2 
yr

50% net 
additions UCC for CCA CCA Rate Closing UCC

Opening 
UCC

UCC pre-1/2 
yr

50% net 
additions UCC for CCA CCA Rate
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Tax Expense (Estimates as Tax Return not finalized) Ownership
2014 Percentage

B2M GP Inc -              65.71%
Hydro One B2M LP Inc. -              0.10%
SON FC -              34.19%
Total -              100%

Line 
No. Particulars 2014

Determination of Taxable Income

1 Net Income before Tax (6.96)         

2 Book to Tax Adjustments:
3   Depreciation and amortization 0.29          
4    Capital Cost Allowance (31.48)       
5   Non deductible consulting fees 5.60          
6   Other 0.08          
7 Total Adjustments (25.52)       

8 Taxable Income/(Loss) before Loss Carryfoward (32.48)       

9 Allocation of Taxable Income
10 B2M GP Inc. (22.06)       
11 Hydro One B2M LP Inc. (0.03)         
12 SON FC (10.39)       
13 Total (32.48)       

B2M LP

B2MLP
Calculation of Utility income Tax

2014 Historical Year
Year Ending December 31

($ Millions)
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Line 
No. Particulars 2014

Determination of Income Taxes

1 Allocation of Taxable Income from B2M LP (22.06)       
2 Loss Carryforward 22.06        
3 Taxable Income after loss carryforward -            
4 Tax Rate 26.5%
5 Income Tax Expense -            

Loss Continuity Schedule
6 Opening Loss Carryforward -            
7 Losses (Incurred)/Utilized during the year (22.06)       
8 Closing Loss Carryforward (22.06)       

9 Included in Rates (1.37)         
10 Excluded from rates (20.69)       (1)

Note:
(1) The loss carryforward related to the capital cost allowance is not to be included
in rates.  This is because, the capital cost allowance deductions have already been included in
the 2014 TX rates through its 2012 rate application.

Determination of Corporate Minimum Tax

11 Corporate Minimum Tax Payable -            (2)

Note:
(2)  No corporate minimum tax applicable for B2M GP Inc. for 2014 as there is no accounting income

12 Total Taxes Expense for B2M GP Inc. -          
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Line 
No. Particulars 2014

Determination of Income Taxes

1 Allocation of Taxable Income from Hydro One B2M LP (0.034)       
2 Loss Carryforward 0.034        
3 Taxable Income after loss carryforward -            
4 Tax Rate 26.5%
5 Sub Total -            
6 Additional Taxes due to Negative ACB -            
7 Income Tax Expense -            

Loss Continuity Schedule
8 Closing Losses Carryforward -            
9 Losses (Incurred)/Utilized during the year (0.034)       

10 Closing Losses Carryforward (0.034)       

Determination of Corporate Minimum Tax

11 Corporate Minimum Tax Payable -            (3)

Note:
(3)  No corporate minimum tax applicable for Hydro One B2M LP Inc. for 2014 as there is no accounting income

12 Total Taxes Expense for Hydro One B2M LP Inc. -          

SON FC

Line 
No. Particulars 2014

Determination of Income Taxes

1 Allocation of Taxable Income from Hydro One B2M LP (10.388)     
2 Tax Rate 0.0%
3 Sub Total -            

4 Income Tax Expense -          
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2014 Net
CCA Class Additions Transfers CCA

1 0.0 0.0 3.3               3.3               0.0 4% 0.0 0.1               3.2               
47 0.0 0.04 327.8           327.8           0.02 8% 0.1                      26.2             301.6

UCC 0.0 0.04             331.1         331.1         0.02           26.4           304.8

CEC Continuity 0.0 4.1 69.1 73.2 -   7% 0.1                     5.1 68.1

TOTAL CCA AND ECE 31.5           

Closing UCC

B2M LP

Calculation of Capital Cost allowance (CCA)
Historical Years (2014)

Year Ending December 31
($ Millions)

Opening 
UCC

UCC pre-1/2 
yr

50% net 
additions UCC for CCA CCA Rate



Updated: 2015-06-29  
EB-2015-0026 
Exhibit C2 
Tab 3 
Schedule 2 
Page 1 of 1 
 

2014 INCOME TAX RETURN1 

 2 

Attachment 1:   Federal and Ontario Income Tax Return  3 
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RATE BASE1 

1. INTRODUCTION 2 

This Exhibit provides the forecast and description of each component of B2M LP’s rate 3 

base for the 2015 to 2019 test years.  The composition of B2M LP’s assets is described in 4 

Exhibit A, Tab 5, Schedule 1. 5 

 6 

The rate base underlying the revenue requirement for the test years includes a forecast of 7 

net utility plant, calculated on a mid-year average basis, plus a working capital allowance.  8 

Net Plant includes gross plant in-service minus accumulated depreciation.  Working 9 

capital includes an allowance for cash working capital and materials and supplies 10 

inventory.   11 

 12 

2. UTILITY RATE BASE 13 

B2M LP’s utility rate base for the transmission assets for the test years is filed in Exhibit 14 

D2, Tab 1, Schedule 1.  The calculation of average balances to derive net utility plant for 15 

the historical and test years is provided at Exhibit D2, Tab 2, Schedules 1 and 2.  16 

 17 

B2M LP’s forecast average rate base for the test years 2015 to 2019 is shown in Table 1.  18 

 19 

  20 
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Table 1: 1 

Average Transmission Rate Base  2 

($ Millions) 3 

 4 

There are no capital expenditures and thus no in-service additions planned during the test 5 

years.  Therefore, the gross plant balance reflects no additions to net plant in-service over 6 

the test years. Further details are included in Exhibit D1, Tab 2, Schedule 1. 7 

 8 

Hydro One commissioned Navigant to perform a Lead Lag study on the working capital 9 

requirements for B2M LP.  The study found that the flows substantially offset each other 10 

and as a result the requirement for cash working capital is approximately zero.  Details of 11 

the working capital allowance are included in Exhibit D1, Tab 1, Schedule 2. 12 

Description 

Historic 
Year 

Test Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Gross Plant       

Transmission Corridor 

Licence 
123.2 123.2 123.2 123.2 123.2 123.2 

Towers and Fixtures 281.4 281.4 281.4 281.4 281.4 281.4 

Conductors and Devices 143.1 143.1 143.1 143.1 143.1 143.1 

Total Gross Plant 547.7 547.7 547.7 547.7 547.7 547.7 

Accumulated Depreciation (21.4) (24.9) (31.7) (38.5) (45.3) (52.1) 

Net Plant in Service 526.3 522.8 516.0 509.2 502.4 495.6 

Working Capital 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Rate Base 526.3 522.8 516.0 509.2 502.4 495.6 
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WORKING CAPITAL1 

The working capital requirements of the B2M Limited Partnership are discussed in the 2 

report created by Navigant found as Attachment 1 to this exhibit. 3 

 4 

The external expert evidence statement is also included as Attachment 2. 5 
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A DETERMINATION OF THE WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS1 

 2 

Attachment 1:  Navigant Working Capital Requirements Study of the B2M Limited Partnership 3 

Attachment 2:  External Expert Evidence Document 4 



 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 
 

333 Bay Street 
Suite 1250 
Toronto, ON M5H 2R2 
416.300.0627 
ralph.zarumba@navigant.com 
andy.tam@navigant.com 
 

To:  Hydro One, Incorporated 
 

From:  Ralph Zarumba, Andy Tam 
 

Date:  September 23, 2013 
 

Re:  Working Capital Requirements of the B2M Limited Partnership
   
Working capital is the amount of funds that are required to finance the day‐to‐day operations of a 
regulated utility and are included as part of a rate base for ratemaking purposes. A lead‐lag study is the 
most accurate basis for the determination of working capital and is the accepted methodology of the 
Ontario Energy Board for Hydro One Networks Inc.’s (“HONI”) Distribution and Transmission rate 
applications. 
 
Navigant was engaged to provide an assessment of the working capital requirements of the Bruce to 
Milton Limited Partnership (“B2MLP”), a partnership between HONI and the Saugeen‐Ojibway Nation 
(“SON”). This partnership will allow for the transfer of most of the line assets from the Bruce to Milton 
Transmission Reinforcement Project from Hydro One Transmission to the partnership.  
 
Based upon discussions with HONI staff, the following data regarding the revenues and expenses of the 
B2MLP can be ascertained: 

 Revenues from the IESO will flow directly to the partnership, with the same behaviour as the 
HONI Transmission revenues; 

 Revenues from the IESO are expected to be between $40M and $50M per year; 
 Expenses of the B2MLP consist largely of those incurred under an Operations and 

Management (“OM”) Agreement between HONI and B2MLP. This agreement will capture 
close to 100% of the expenses related to the day‐to‐day operations of the B2MLP;  

 OM&A expenses as a result of the OM Agreement are expected to be approximately $3M per 
year. B2MLP will be invoiced under the OM Agreement on a monthly basis, however the 
timing of the invoicing has yet to be determined; 

 HONI will also provide non‐operating services to B2MLP through a Service Level Agreement 
(“SLA”); 

 SLA costs are estimated to be $250,000 per year, with monthly invoicing schedules similar to 
the OM Agreement; and, 

 The transfer of funds between the B2MLP and HONI will be through journal entries and wire 
transfers, which allow HONI to receive payments on the same day that B2MLP provides 
payments. 

 
For the purpose of determining the working capital requirements of the B2MLP, the dollar amounts and 
the timing of revenues and expenses were analyzed and modeled after the HONI Transmission Working 
Capital Study. As the invoice scheduling from HONI to B2MLP has yet to be determined, it is 
Navigant’s opinion that the monthly invoice from HONI to B2MLP under the OM Agreement should be 
synchronized with the timing at which revenues from the IESO are received by the B2MLP; that is, the 
payment dates from the IESO for any given month of services should coincide with payment dates to 
HONI from B2MLP. Since the majority of expenses B2MLP incurs are under the OM Agreement, this 
mechanism will effectively allow for the B2MLP to have a net zero working capital requirement.  
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Page 2 
 

 

Please see attached schedules for an estimation of the described scenario of a net zero working capital 
requirement for B2MLP. Table 1 shows the working capital requirement calculations, whereas Table 2 
and Table 3 show the Revenue Lag and Expense Lead days for the B2MLP respectively. Note that the 
‘Payment Received From IESO’ Dates (F) in Table 2 are synchronized with the ‘Payment Dates’ (D) in 
Table 3, which effectively renders a net zero working capital requirement.
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Table 1 – Summary of B2MLP Working Capital Requirement 

Description 
Revenue Lag 

Days 
Expense Lead 

Days 
Net Lag Days 

Working 
Capital Factor 

Expenses 
Working 
Capital 

Requirement 

A  B C D E  F G

OM Agreement  35.63 35.63 0.00 0%  $3,000,000 $‐

Total  $3,000,000 $‐

Working Capital as a 
Percent of OM&A incl. 
Cost of Power 

         
0.00% 

 
Table 2 – B2MLP IESO Revenues 

Month 
Period 
Beginning 

Period Ending  Invoice Date 
Payment 
Amount 

Payment 
Received From 
IESO 

Service Lead 
Time Days 

Payment 
Lead Time 
Days 

Total Lead 
Time Days 

Weighting 
Factor 

Weighted 
Lead Time 

A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  I  J  K 

Jan‐14  1/1/2014  1/31/2014  2/14/2014 $3,666,667 2/21/2014 15.50  21.00 36.50 8.33% 3.04

Feb‐14  2/1/2014  2/28/2014  3/14/2014  $3,666,667  3/20/2014  14.00  20.00  34.00  8.33%  2.83 

Mar‐14  3/1/2014  3/31/2014  4/17/2014  $3,666,667  4/23/2014  15.50  23.00  38.50  8.33%  3.21 

Apr‐14  4/1/2014  4/30/2014  5/14/2014  $3,666,667  5/18/2014  15.00  18.00  33.00  8.33%  2.75 

May‐14  5/1/2014  5/31/2014  6/14/2014  $3,666,667  6/20/2014  15.50  20.00  35.50  8.33%  2.96 

Jun‐14  6/1/2014  6/30/2014  7/16/2014  $3,666,667  7/20/2014  15.00  20.00  35.00  8.33%  2.92 

Jul‐14  7/1/2014  7/31/2014  8/15/2014  $3,666,667  8/21/2014  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Aug‐14  8/1/2014  8/31/2014  9/17/2014  $3,666,667  9/21/2014  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Sep‐14  9/1/2014  9/30/2014  10/15/2014  $3,666,667  10/19/2014  15.00  19.00  34.00  8.33%  2.83 

Oct‐14  10/1/2014  10/31/2014  11/15/2014  $3,666,667  11/21/2014  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Nov‐14  11/1/2014  11/30/2014  12/14/2014  $3,666,667  12/20/2014  15.00  20.00  35.00  8.33%  2.92 

Dec‐14  12/1/2014  12/31/2014  1/15/2015  $3,666,667  1/21/2015  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Total  $44,000,000  100.00%  35.63 
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Table 3 – B2MLP Expenses 

Month 
Period 

Beginning 
Period Ending  Payment Date 

Payment 
Amount 

Service Lead 
Time 

Payment 
Lead Time 

Total Lead 
Time 

Weighting 
Factor 

Weighted Lead 
Time 

A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  I  J 

Jan‐14  1/1/2014  1/31/2014  2/21/2014  $250,000  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Feb‐14  2/1/2014  2/28/2014  3/20/2014  $250,000  14.00  20.00  34.00  8.33%  2.83 

Mar‐14  3/1/2014  3/31/2014  4/23/2014  $250,000  15.50  23.00  38.50  8.33%  3.21 

Apr‐14  4/1/2014  4/30/2014  5/18/2014  $250,000  15.00  18.00  33.00  8.33%  2.75 

May‐14  5/1/2014  5/31/2014  6/20/2014  $250,000  15.50  20.00  35.50  8.33%  2.96 

Jun‐14  6/1/2014  6/30/2014  7/20/2014  $250,000  15.00  20.00  35.00  8.33%  2.92 

Jul‐14  7/1/2014  7/31/2014  8/21/2014  $250,000  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Aug‐14  8/1/2014  8/31/2014  9/21/2014  $250,000  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Sep‐14  9/1/2014  9/30/2014  10/19/2014  $250,000  15.00  19.00  34.00  8.33%  2.83 

Oct‐14  10/1/2014  10/31/2014  11/21/2014  $250,000  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Nov‐14  11/1/2014  11/30/2014  12/20/2014  $250,000  15.00  20.00  35.00  8.33%  2.92 

Dec‐14  12/1/2014  12/31/2014  1/21/2015  $250,000  15.50  21.00  36.50  8.33%  3.04 

Total  $3,000,000  100.00%  35.63 
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Template for External Expert Rule 13A Sign Off Document 

Note that the consultant may choose to provide a reference to where in the study 
report the relevant information is provided rather than repeat it in its entirety in 
the sign off document. 
 
Title of Report:  
A Determination of the Working Capital Requirements of the Bruce to Milton 
Limited Partnership 
 
Consultant:  
Ralph Zarumba 
Navigant Consulting, Ltd 
333 Bay Street, Suite 1250, Toronto, ON, M5H 2R2 
 
Qualifications: 
Mr. Zarumba is a Director in Navigant’s Energy Practice specializing in regulatory 
matters.  With 30 years of experience performed a variety of regulatory analyses, 
trained regulatory commission staff, performed revenue requirement analyses, 
provided cost of service and pricing design studies and has testified as an expert 
witness in multiple legal jurisdictions in several jurisdictions in North America.  
Mr. Zarumba holds a BS and MA in Economics. 
 
Instructions Provided: 
The instructions provided to the expert in relation to the proceeding and, where 
applicable, to each issue in the proceeding to which the expert’s evidence 
relates. 
 

 A review of Hydro One’s current lead/lag methodology with an update 
to lead-lag days using more current historical data.  

 A comparison of Hydro One’ s current methodology with best 
practices of other utilities for computing n et cash working cap ital 
requirements. 

 Substantiation and validation of t he financial and lead/lag data us ed 
in the study. 

 Recommendation and implementation of improvements to the current 
methodology to meet the future requirements of the Company, its 
subsidiaries and other stakeholders such as the OEB. 

 Preparation of a writt en report of the study methodology, results for 
each of Bruce to Milton Limit ed Partnership recommendations  
suitable for submission to the OEB to support Hydro One’s work ing 
capital proposal in its forthcoming Rates proceedings.  

 Prepare responses to Interrogator ies from Interveners during r ate 
applications relating to the proposed Working Capital methodology. 
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 Be available to testify to the proposed methodology during future rate 
applications. 

 A final report, reflecting the cu rrent Business Plan and covering both 
the Bruce to Milton Limited Partnersh ip, to be submitted in a Cost of 
Service application. 

 In support of the successful Proponent’s work, Hydro One’s 
management will respond to all requests for basic information and/or 
supporting documentation. 

 
 
Basis of Evidence: 
The specific information upon which the expert’s evidence is based, including a 
description of any factual assumptions made and research conducted, and a list 
of the documents relied on by the expert in preparing the evidence. 
 
To develop an understanding of Hydro One’s operations, interviews with 
personnel within Accounts Payable, Customer Service, Wholesale Market 
Operations, Human Resources, Payroll, Treasury, and Tax Departments were 
conducted. Hydro One subsequently provided sample data for Navigant to base 
their lead-lag assumptions on. Development of the data set entailed gathering 
raw data from the utility’s General Accounting, Accounts Payable, Customer 
Service, Payroll, and Tax Systems. Once the raw data had been gathered from 
the multiple in-house systems, sampling and data validation was performed to 
the extent necessary and appropriate. Standard statistical sampling techniques 
were used, and validation generally took the form of comparing actual invoices or 
bills with data from the utility’s systems to ensure accuracy.  
 
Other inputs provided by Hydro One include 2013 and 2014 forecasted OM&A, 
removal costs, environmental costs, interest expense and tax costs, as well as 
revenue projections. Included with these forecasts was analysis outlining the 
amounts of HST that the above cost components attract. 
 
Context of Evidence: 
In the case of evidence that is provided in response to another expert’s evidence, 
a summary of the points of agreement and disagreement with the other expert’s 
evidence. If the evidence is provided as per OEB direction to Hydro One in a 
prior Decision, this should be restated here and it should be confirmed that this 
evidence was not provided in response to another expert’s evidence. 
 

2



This evidence is not provided in response to another expert’s evidence. In 2006, 
Hydro One Transmission commissioned Navigant Consulting Inc. (Navigant) to 
carry out a lead-lag study, the results of which were accepted by the Board in its 
EB-2006-0501 Decision with Reasons, dated August 16, 2007.  The accepted 
methodology has been reviewed and updated by Navigant and accepted by the 
Board as part of subsequent Transmission and Distribution rate filings EB-2008-
0272, EB-2009-0096, EB-2010-0002 and EB-2012-0031. To remain consistent 
with the Board’s approved methodology, a similar review and update process has 
been done as part of this filing. 
 
Confirmation: 
The expert has been made aware of and agrees to accept the responsibilities 
that are or may be imposed on the expert as set out in Rule 13A. 

 
 
 
 
 

Name of Expert: Ralph Zarumba 
Date: 03/24/2015 
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SUMMARY OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND IN-SERVICE ADDITIONS1 

The asset owned by B2M LP is a relatively new vintage.  Approximately 90% of the line 2 

is less than three years old and the rest is approximately thirty years old. The asset that 3 

was constructed is a 500 kV double-circuit lattice tower line which is an extremely 4 

durable asset in normal circumstances and therefore, capital spending of a planned nature 5 

is not forecast over the five year horizon of this application. As a result, there are no in-6 

service additions forecast in gross plant over the test years.   7 

 8 

Due to the risk of major storm damage or other events requiring capital spending, B2M 9 

LP is proposing the creation of a variance account for unplanned capital spending.  10 

Details of the variance account request are included at Exhibit F1, Tab 1, Schedule 1. 11 
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Line 
No. Particulars 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Electric Utility Plant

1 Gross plant at cost $ 547.7  $ 547.7  $ 547.7  547.7  $ 547.7  $ 547.7  
2 Less: accumulated depreciation (21.4)  (24.9)  (31.7)  (38.5)  (45.3)  (52.1)  

3 Net plant for rate base 526.3  522.8  516.0  509.2  502.4  495.6  

4 Construction work in progress 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  

5 Average net utility plant $ 526.3  $ 522.8  $ 516.0  $ 509.2  $ 502.4  $ 495.6  

Working Capital

6 Cash working capital 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  
7 Materials and Supplies Inventory 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  

8 Total working capital 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  

9 Total rate base $ 526.3  $ 522.8  $ 516.0  $ 509.2  $ 502.4  $ 495.6  

($ Millions)

B2M LP

Statement of Average Utility Rate Base
Test Years (2015 to 2019)  
Year Ending December 31



Filed:  2015-03-30
EB-2015-0026

Exhibit D2
Tab 2

Schedule 1
Page 1 of 1

Line No. Year
 Opening 
Balance  Additions Retirements  Sales 

 Transfers 
In/Out 

 Closing 
Balance 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

1 2014 547.7          0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  547.7          

2 2015 547.7          0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  547.7          

3 2016 547.7          0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  547.7          

4 2017 547.7          0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  547.7          

5 2018 547.7          0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  547.7          

6 2019 547.7          0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  547.7          

Year Ending December 31
Total - Gross Balances

($ Millions)

B2M LP

Continuity of Property, Plant and Equipment
Historical (2014) & Test (2015 to 2019) Years
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Line No. Year
 Opening 
Balance Provision  Retirements  Sales 

Transfers 
In/Out 

 Closing 
Balance  Average 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g)
Historic

1 2014 21.3       0.3  0.0  0.0  0.0  21.5      21.4

Test

2 2015 21.5       6.8  0.0  0.0  0.0  28.3      24.9

3 2016 28.3       6.8  0.0  0.0  0.0  35.1      31.7

4 2017 35.1       6.8  0.0  0.0  0.0  41.9      38.5

5 2018 41.9       6.8  0.0  0.0  0.0  48.7      45.3

6 2019 48.7       6.8  0.0  0.0  0.0  55.5      52.1

($ Millions)

B2M LP

Continuity of Property, Plant and Equipment - Accumulated Depreciation
Historical (2014) & Test (2015 to 2019) Years

Year Ending December 31
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Line 
No. Particulars 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)

1 Cash Working Capital $ 0.0  $ 0.0  0.0  $ 0.0  0.0  

2 Materials and Supplies 0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  

3 Total $ 0.0  $ 0.0  0.0  $ 0.0  0.0  

Test Years (2015 to 2019)
($ Millions)

B2M LP

Statement of Working Capital
Annual Average
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT 1 

 2 

1.0  SUMMARY OF REVENUE REQUIREMENT 3 

 4 

B2M LP has followed standard regulatory practice in the calculation of revenue 5 

requirement as follows: 6 

 7 

Table 1 8 

Revenue Requirement 9 

($ Millions) 10 

Components 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Reference 

OM&A 1.8 1.2 1.2 2.5 1.5 
Exhibit C1, Tab 2, 

Schedule 1 

Depreciation 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8 
Exhibit C2, Tab 2, 

Schedule 1 

Income Taxes 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.9 1.1 
Exhibit C2, Tab 3, 

Schedule 1 

Cost of Capital 29.8 25.6 26.1 26.1 25.9 
Exhibit B1, Tab 1, 

Schedule 1 

Start-Up and Development 
Costs Recovery* 

0.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 
Exhibit E1, Tab 1, 

Schedule 2 

Total Revenue 
Requirement 

38.7 35.9 36.5 38.2 37.3   

*$7.7 million of Start-Up and Development costs incurred prior to the test years are proposed to be 11 

recovered at a rate of $1.925 million per year between 2016 to 2019. 12 

 13 

The resultant revenue requirements for 2015 to 2019 are the amounts required by B2M 14 

LP to maintain system reliability needs at the lowest practical cost.   15 

 16 

  17 
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3.0 REVENUE REQUIREMENT – YEAR OVER YEAR COMPARISON 1 

 2 

Table 2 below compares, the year over year comparisons of the proposed Revenue 3 

Requirement by element for all test years. 4 

 5 

Table 2 6 

Comparison of Revenue Requirements  7 

($ Millions) 8 

Components 2016 vs. 
2015 

2017 vs. 
2016 

2018 vs. 
2017 

2019 vs. 
2018 

OM&A (0.6) 0.1 1.2 (0.9) 
Depreciation  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Income Taxes 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.3 
Cost of Capital (4.2) 0.6 0.0 (0.3) 
Start-Up and Development Costs Recovery 1.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Total Revenue Requirement (2.9) 0.6 1.7 (0.9) 

 9 

Comparison of Year 2016 to Year 2015 10 

 11 

The decrease in 2016 revenue requirement is primarily due to a lower debt forecast and 12 

lower OM&A requirements, offset partially by the commencement of the incremental 13 

recovery of the Start-Up and Development costs. 14 

 15 

Comparison of Year 2017 to Year 2016 16 

 17 

The increase in 2017 revenue requirement is driven by the higher short-term debt and 18 

equity rate forecast. 19 

  20 
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Comparison of Year 2018 to Year 2017 1 

 2 

The increase in 2018 revenue requirement is primarily due to increased OM&A 3 

requirements for vegetation management and higher income taxes. 4 

 5 

Comparison of Year 2019 to Year 2018 6 

 7 

The decrease in 2019 revenue requirement is primarily due to decreased OM&A 8 

requirements following the vegetation management undertaken in 2018.   9 
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START-UP AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION  3 

 4 

In the formation of the new B2M Limited Partnership costs were incurred by the partners 5 

to form and develop the organizational structure established for B2M LP. This schedule 6 

provides an overview of the start-up and development costs and a breakdown of the costs 7 

in detail. 8 

 9 

2.0  START-UP AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS 10 

 11 

B2M LP has a unique structure that was designed consistent with Government policy to 12 

allow for the equity participation of two First Nations affected by the Bruce to Milton 13 

Project.  This structure achieves the objectives of allowing major new infrastructure to be 14 

developed on a timely basis and, at the same time, providing an at-risk investment 15 

opportunity to the two First Nations through SON FC.  The completion of the project on 16 

schedule avoided significant interest costs that would have been added to the total cost of 17 

the project if it had been delayed by First Nation opposition.  As with all capital projects 18 

the construction work in progress (“CWIP”) costs are allowed to earn a regulated return, 19 

the allowance for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”).  This allowed return is 20 

added to the capital cost each year until the project is placed in service.  Given the total 21 

cost of the Bruce to Milton Project, a delay of any significant time would have resulted in 22 

an additional capital cost much larger than the start-up costs shown below.  Over the long 23 

term, this structure also provides a benefit to ratepayers through the reduced effective tax 24 

rate of the transmitter given the non-taxable status of the two First Nations.  B2M LP 25 

respectfully submits that if ratepayers are the beneficiary of the savings that result due to 26 

this transaction, then it is only appropriate that recovery of the costs to setup the 27 

transaction be recovered in rates.  28 
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The startup and development costs relate to the following: 1 

 2 

• Advice on formulation of the partnership structure; 3 

• Legal fees to assist in the negotiation and draft the requisite agreements; 4 

• Tax advice to determine an optimal tax structure and to obtain the tax rulings from 5 

federal and provincial tax authorities; 6 

• Advice and fees to procure partnership financing; 7 

• Regulatory counsel to represent the applicants before regulatory bodies and provide 8 

advice on appropriate corporate setup; and  9 

• Other administrative support for filings and related matters. 10 

 11 

B2M LP’s start-up and development expenses are $7.7 million, a breakdown of those 12 

costs are provided in Table 1 below. 13 

Table 1 14 

Total Start-Up and Development Costs 15 

($ Million) 16 

Description  

Legal Costs for SON 4.3 

Legal Costs for Hydro One 1.8 

Inergi Setup Costs 0.6 

Hydro One Initial Costs 1.0 

Total Start-up Costs 7.7 

 17 

As described in Exhibit E1, Tab1, Schedule 1, B2M LP is proposing to recover these 18 

costs over a four year period commencing in 2016 at a rate of $1.925 million per year in 19 

order to minimize the impact to rate payers. 20 
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Test Test Test Test Test 
Line 
No. Particulars 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
Cost of Service

1    Operating, maintenance & administrative $ 1.8  $ 1.2  $ 1.2  $ 2.5  $ 1.5  
2    Depreciation & amortization 6.8  6.8  6.8  6.8  6.8  
3    Income taxes 0.4  0.4  0.4  0.9  1.1  

  
4 Cost of service excluding return $ 9.0  $ 8.4  $ 8.4  $ 10.2  $ 9.4  

5 Start-Up and Development Costs Recovery 0.0  1.9  1.9  1.9  1.9  
6 Return on capital 29.8  25.6  26.1  26.1  25.9  

7 Total revenue requirement $ 38.7  $ 35.9  $ 36.5  $ 38.2  $ 37.3  

B2M LP

Calculation of Revenue Requirement
Year Ending December 31

($ Millions)
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REGULATORY ASSET ACCOUNTS REQUESTED 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

  4 

This Exhibit requests approval to establish three deferral accounts for B2M LP as 5 

follows: 6 

 7 

• Unplanned Capital Spending Account 8 

• Tax Rate Changes Account 9 

• 2015 Revenue Requirement Reconciliation Account 10 

 11 

The need for these accounts and the accounting and control process are described in 12 

further detail in the remainder of this exhibit. 13 

 14 

2.0 DESCRIPTION OF REGULATORY ACCOUNTS REQUESTED 15 

 16 

2.1  Unplanned Capital Spending Account  17 

 18 

This account will allow B2M LP to recover the amount of unplanned capital spending 19 

that may take place due to unexpected events that are materially impactive to the 20 

operation of the Company and which are outside of the Company’s control.    21 

 22 

As outlined in Exhibit D1, Tab 2, Schedule 1; B2M LP and its service provider (Hydro 23 

One Networks Inc.) expect that the assets will not need capital refurbishment within the 24 

2015 to 2019 period given the characteristics and demographics of the assets.  However, 25 

although rare with 500 kV circuits, unforeseen events may take place that cause the need 26 

for material capital spending to take place.   27 
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Hydro One Transmission plans for such random events and due to the very large portfolio 1 

of assets that it manages, Hydro One Transmission is generally able to accommodate 2 

such unplanned spending within approved plans.  B2M LP, as an owner/operator of a 3 

single pair of transmission circuits, does not benefit from such system diversity.  Given 4 

its spending plan, B2M LP has no opportunity to accommodate material, unplanned 5 

spending related to unforeseen events.  As a result, B2M LP proposes to collect such 6 

costs, should they occur, in a deferral account for disposition and recovery at a future 7 

date in accordance with Board direction.   8 

 9 

B2M LP is proposing these material unforeseen events will include such items as: 10 

 11 

• New government directives or legislation, 12 

• Material changes to codes or standards, or 13 

• Material unforeseen weather events. 14 

 15 

B2M LP submits that an appropriate materiality threshold for these costs is 0.5% of test 16 

year revenue requirement; which is in accordance with the materiality thresholds in 17 

Chapter 2, Section 2.3.4 of the Board’s Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission 18 

Rate Applications. 19 

 20 

2.2 Tax Rate Changes Account  21 

 22 

This account will track the tax impact to B2M LP of:  23 

 24 

• Differences that result from a legislative or regulatory change to the tax rates or rules 25 

compared to costs approved by the Board as part of 2015 to 2019 Transmission Rates; 26 

and 27 
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• Differences that result from a change in, or a disclosure of, a new assessment or 1 

administrative policy that is published in the public tax administration or 2 

interpretation bulletins by relevant federal or provincial tax authorities. 3 

 4 

2.3 2015 Revenue Requirement Reconciliation Account  5 

 6 

In proceeding EB-2014-0330, the OEB issued a Decision for B2M LP on December 11, 7 

2014, approving an Interim rate based on a 2015 total revenue requirement of $40.6 8 

million.  In this application, B2M LP has determined the 2015 revenue requirement to be 9 

$38.7 million.   10 

 11 

B2M LP is requesting approval to establish a variance account to record the difference 12 

between the final approved 2015 rate, to be determined as a result of this proceeding, and 13 

the actual revenues received.  This variance is currently calculated to be a surplus of $1.8 14 

million.  B2M LP proposes to dispose of this account through the 2016 UTRs as 15 

discussed in Exhibit G1, Tab 2, Schedule 1.  16 

 17 

3.0 ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL PROCESS 18 

 19 

The accounts requested above will be managed in the similar manner as existing Hydro 20 

One Transmission variance and deferral accounts.  They will be updated monthly and 21 

interest applied to the monthly opening principal balance in this account according to the 22 

Board-approved rate.  Balances will be reported to the Board as part of the quarterly 23 

reporting process.  The outstanding balances, whether in a debit or credit position, will be 24 

submitted for approval to the Board as part of a future B2M LP filing.   25 
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COST ALLOCATION AND RATE DESIGN 1 

1. COST ALLOCATION 2 

All assets associated with B2M LP are classified as Network assets consistent with the 3 

cost allocation methodology approved by the Board for Hydro One Networks 4 

Transmission in proceeding EB-2012-0031.  Accordingly, all of the revenue requirement 5 

associated with B2M’s transmission assets will be allocated to the Network pool. 6 

 7 

The B2M LP Network revenue requirement for the purpose of setting uniform 8 

transmission rates effective on the first day of each test year is $38.7 million for 2015, 9 

$35.9 million for 2016, $36.5 million for 2017, $38.2 million for 2018 and $37.3 million 10 

for 2019 as determined per Exhibit E2, Tab 1, Schedule 1.  11 

 12 

2. CHARGE DETERMINANTS 13 

There are no customer delivery points supplied directly from the B2M LP assets, and as 14 

such the B2M LP Network charge determinant for the purpose of setting Uniform 15 

Transmission Rates is zero. 16 
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OVERVIEW OF UNIFORM TRANSMISSION SYSTEM RATES 1 

 2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 3 

 4 

Transmission rates in Ontario have been established on a uniform basis for all transmitters in 5 

Ontario since April 30, 2002 as per the Board’s Decision in Proceeding RP-2001-6 

0034/RP-2001-0035/RP-2001-0036/RP-1999-0044.  The current Uniform Transmission Rates 7 

(UTR) Schedules, which were effective on January 1, 2015 as part of the Board’s Order under 8 

EB-2014-0357 issued January 8, 2015, are filed at Exhibit G2, Tab 1, Schedule 1.  Exhibit G2, 9 

Tab 1, Schedule 2 shows the revenue requirement and charge determinants details used to derive 10 

the currently approved 2015 UTRs.  11 

 12 

Since rates are established on a uniform basis, B2M LP’s requested revenue requirement is a 13 

contributor to the total revenue requirement to be collected from the provincial UTR. The 14 

revenue requirement for all the other transmitters in the province approved to participate in the 15 

UTRs must be added to that of B2M LP in order to calculate the total transmission revenue 16 

requirement to be collected via the UTR.1 17 

 18 

The total revenue requirement from all transmitters must be allocated to the Network, Line 19 

Connection and Transformation Connection rate pools in order to establish uniform rates by 20 

pool.  The revenue requirement for B2M LP will be allocated to the Network rate pool, as 21 

discussed in Exhibit G1, Tab 1, Schedule 1. The revenue requirement by rate pool for the other 22 

transmitters is based on the proportions established by Hydro One Transmission’s Cost 23 

Allocation process. Once the revenue requirement by rate pool has been established, rates are 24 

determined by applying the Provincial charge determinants for each pool to the total revenue for 25 

                                                 

 
1 The other four transmitters currently included in the UTRs are Hydro One Networks Transmission, Great Lakes 
Power Transmission Inc., Canadian Niagara Power Inc., and Five Nations Energy Inc. 
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each pool. The Provincial charge determinants are the sum of all charge determinants, by rate 1 

pool, approved by the Board for each of the transmitters participating in the UTR. 2 

 3 

B2M LP proposes that the $1.8 million surplus difference between the actual B2M LP revenue 4 

collected in the current 2015 UTR rates approved by the Board on an interim basis of $40.5 5 

million, and the proposed $38.7 million 2015 revenue requirement as per this application, be 6 

included in the 2016 B2M LP revenues to be returned via the 2016 UTRs.  This amount would be 7 

tracked in the 2015 Revenue Requirement Reconciliation Account described in Exhibit F1, Tab 8 

1, Schedule 1. After reflecting the return of the $1.8 million 2015 surplus, the revenue 9 

requirement for purposes of establishing 2016 UTR rates will be $34.0 million as shown at 10 

Exhibit G2, Tab 2, Schedule 2. 11 

  12 

The proposed 2016 Uniform Transmission Rates schedules are provided in Exhibit G2, Tab 2, 13 

Schedule 1 and the revenue requirement and charge determinants details used to calculate the 14 

2016 UTRs are provided in Exhibit G2, Tab 2, Schedule 2.  The proposed 2016 UTR calculation 15 

includes the currently approved values for Great Lakes Power Transmission, Canadian Niagara 16 

Power and Five Nations Energy.  17 

 18 

2.0 RATE IMPACTS 19 

 20 

The changes in the Network pool rates and revenue requirement proposed in this application will 21 

have the following minimal impact on the monthly bill for a typical residential customer; $0.00 22 

for 2015, -$0.04 for 2016, $0.01 for 2017, $0.01 for 2018 and -$0.01 for 2019.  23 
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CURRENT 2015 UNIFORM TRANSMISSION RATE SCHEDULES1 

 2 

 3 
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2015 COST ALLOCATION AND RATE POOL DETAILS 1 

 2 
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PROPOSED 2016 UNIFORM TRANSMISSION RATE SCHEDULES 
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TRANSMISSION RATE SCHEDULES 
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
(A) APPLICABILITY The rate schedules contained 
herein pertain to the transmission service applicable to: 
•The provision of Provincial Transmission Service 
(PTS) to the Transmission Customers who are defined 
as the entities that withdraw electricity directly from the 
transmission system in the province of Ontario. •The 
provision of Export Transmission Service (ETS) to 
electricity market participants that export electricity to 
points outside Ontario utilizing the transmission system 
in the province of Ontario. The Rate Schedule ETS 
applies to the wholesale market participants who utilize 
the Export Service in accordance with the Market Rules 
of the Ontario Electricity Market, referred to hereafter 
as Market Rules. These rate schedules do not apply to 
the distribution services provided by any distributors in 
Ontario, nor to the purchase of energy, hourly uplift, 
ancillary services or any other charges that may be 
applicable in electricity markets administered by the 
Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) of 
Ontario. 

 
(B) TRANSMISSION SYSTEM CODE The 
transmission service provided under these rate schedules 
is in accordance with the Transmission System Code 
(Code) issued by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The 
Code sets out the requirements, standards, terms and 
conditions of the transmitter’s obligation to offer to 
connect to, and maintain the operation of, the 
transmission system. The Code also sets out the 
requirements, standards, terms and conditions under 
which a Transmission Customer may connect to, and 
remain connected to, the transmission system. The 
Code stipulates that a transmitter shall connect new 
customers, and continue to offer transmission services 
to existing customers, subject to a Connection 
Agreement between the customer and a transmitter. 

 
(C) TRANSMISSION DELIVERY POINT The 
Transmission Delivery Point is defined as the 
transformation station, owned by a transmission 
company or by the Transmission Customer, which steps 
down the voltage from above 50 kV to below 50 kV and 
which connects the customer to the transmission system. 
The demand registered by two or more meters at any 
one delivery point shall be aggregated for the purpose of 
assessing transmission charges at that delivery point if 
the corresponding distribution feeders from that delivery 
point, or the plants taking power from that delivery 
point, are owned by the same entity within the meaning 
of Ontario’s Business Corporations Act. The billing 
demand supplied from the transmission system shall be 
adjusted for losses, as appropriate, to the Transmission 
Point of Settlement, which shall be the high voltage side 
of the transformer that steps down the voltage from 
above 50 kV to below 50 kV. 
 
(D) TRANSMISSION SERVICE POOLS The 
transmission facilities owned by the licenced 
transmission companies are categorized into three 
functional pools. The transmission lines that are used 
for the common benefit of all customers are categorized 
as Network Lines and the corresponding terminating 
facilities are Network Stations. These facilities make up 
the Network Pool. The transformation station facilities 
that step down the voltage from above 50 kV to below 
50 kV are categorized as the Transformation Connection 
Pool. Other electrical facilities (i.e. that are neither 
Network nor Transformation) are categorized as the 
Line Connection Pool. All PTS customers incur charges 
based on the Network Service Rate (PTS-N) of Rate 
Schedule PTS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2016 

BOARD ORDER: 
EB-2015-0XXX 

REPLACING BOARD 
ORDER: 
EB-2014-0357 
January 8, 2015 
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TRANSMISSION RATE SCHEDULES 
 

The PTS customers that utilize transformation connection arising from the Rate Schedule PTS shall satisfy the 
assets owned by a licenced transmission company also Wholesale Metering requirements and associated 
incur charges based on the Transformation Connection  obligations specified in Chapter 6 of the Market 
Service Rate (PTS-T). The customer demand supplied  Rules, including the appendices therein, whether or 
from a transmission delivery point will not incur not the subject meter installation is required for 
transformation connection service charges if a customer settlement purposes in the IESO-administered energy 
fully owns all transformation connection assets associated market. A meter installation required for the 
with that transmission delivery point. The PTS customers settlement of charges in the IESO-administered that 
utilize lines owned by a licenced transmission  energy market may be used for the settlement of 
company to connect to Network Station(s) also incur transmission service charges. The Transmission 
charges based on the Line Connection Service Rate (PTS- Customer shall provide to the IESO data required to 
L). The customer demand supplied from a transmission maintain the information for the Registered 
delivery point will not incur line connection service Wholesale Meters and the Metering Registry 
charges if a customer fully owns all line connection assets pertaining to the metering installations with respect to 
connecting that delivery point to a Network Station.  which the Transmission Customers have an obligation 
Similarly, the customer demand will not incur line to pay transmission charges in accordance with Rate 
connection service charges for demand at a transmission Schedule PTS. The Metering Registry for metering 
delivery point located at a Network Station. installations required for the calculation of 

transmission charges shall be maintained in 
(E) MARKET RULES The IESO will provide accordance with Chapter 6 of the Market Rules. The 
transmission service utilizing the facilities owned by the Transmission Customers, or Transmission Customer 
licenced transmission companies in Ontario in accordance  Agents if designated by the Transmission Customers, 
with the Market Rules. The Market Rules and appropriate associated with each Transmission Delivery Point will 
Market Manuals define the procedures and processes  be identified as Metered Market Participants within 
under which the transmission service is provided in real or  the IESO’s Metering Registry. The metering data 
operating time (on an hourly basis) as well as service  recorded in the Metering Registry shall be used as the 
billing and settlement processes for transmission service  basis for the calculation of transmission charges on 
charges based on rate schedules contained herein. the settlement statement for the Transmission 

Customers identified as the Metered Market 
(F) METERING REQUIREMENTS In accordance with Participants for each Transmission Delivery Point. the 
Market Rules and the Transmission System Code, the  The Metering Registry for metering installations 
transmission service charges payable by Transmission  required for calculation of transmission charges shall 
Customers shall be collected by the IESO. The IESO will  also indicate whether or not the demand associated 
utilize Registered Wholesale Meters and a Metering with specific Transmission Delivery Point(s) to which 
Registry in order to calculate the monthly transmission a Transmission Customer is connected attracts Line 
service charges payable by the Transmission Customers. and/or Transformation Connection Service Charges. 
Every Transmission Customer shall ensure that each This information shall be consistent with the 
metering installation in respect of which the customer has Connection Agreement between the Transmission 
an obligation to pay transmission service charges  Customer and the licenced Transmission Company 

that connects the customer to the IESO-Controlled 
Grid. 

 
(G) EMBEDDED GENERATION The 
Transmission Customers shall ensure conformance of 
Registered Wholesale Meters in accordance with 
Chapter 6 of Market Rules, including 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2016 

BOARD ORDER: 
EB-2015-0XXX 

REPLACING BOARD 
ORDER: 
EB-2014-0357 
January 8, 2015 
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TRANSMISSION RATE SCHEDULES 
 

Metering Registry obligations, with respect to metering the same metering installation is also used to satisfy 
installations for embedded generation that is located the requirement for energy transactions in the IESO- 
behind the metering installation that measures the net  administered market. •The Transmission Customer 
demand taken from the transmission system if (a) the  shall provide the Metering Registry information for 
required approvals for such generation are obtained after  the metering installation at the embedded connection 
October 30, 1998; and (b) the generator unit rating is 2  point, including all embedded generation and load 
MW or higher for renewable generation and 1 MW or  connected to that point, in accordance with the 
higher for non-renewable generation; and (c) the requirements described in Section (F) above so that 
Transmission Delivery Point through which the generator the IESO can calculate the monthly transmission 
is connected to the transmission system attracts Line or service charges payable by the Transmission 
Transformation Connection Service charges. The term Customer. 
renewable generation refers to a facility that generates 
electricity from the following sources: wind, solar, 
Biomass, Bio-oil, Bio-gas, landfill gas, or water. 
Accordingly, the distributors that are Transmission 
Customers shall ensure that connection agreements 
between them and the generators, load customers, and 
embedded distributors connected to their distribution 
system have provisions requiring the Transmission 
Customer to satisfy the requirements for Registered 
Wholesale Meters and Metering Registry for such 
embedded generation even if the subject embedded 
generator(s) do not participate in the IESO-administered 
energy markets. 

 
(H) EMBEDDED CONNECTION POINT In 
accordance with Chapter 6 of the Market Rules, the IESO 
may permit a Metered Market Participant, as defined in 
the Market Rules, to register a metering installation that is 
located at the embedded connection point for the purpose 
of recording transactions in the IESO-administered 
markets. (The Market Rules define an embedded 
connection point as a point of connection between load or 
generation facility and distribution system). In special 
situations, a metering installation at the embedded 
connection point that is used to settle energy market 
charges may also be used to settle transmission service 
charges, if there is no metering installation at the point of 
connection of a distribution feeder to the Transmission 
Delivery Point. In above situations: •The Transmission 
Customer may utilize the metering installation at the 
embedded connection point, including all embedded 
generation and load connected to that point, to satisfy the 
requirements described in Section (F) above provided that 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
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APPLICABILITY: 
The Provincial Transmission Service (PTS) is applicable to all Transmission Customers 
in Ontario who own facilities that are directly connected to the transmission system in 
Ontario and that withdraw electricity from this system. 

Monthly Rate ($ per kW) 
Network Service Rate (PTS-N): 3.75 
$ Per kW of Network Billing Demand1,2

 

 
Line Connection Service Rate (PTS-L): 0.89 
$ Per kW of Line Connection Billing Demand1,3

 

 
Transformation Connection Service Rate (PTS-T): 2.07 
$ Per kW of Transformation Connection Billing Demand1,3,4

 

 
The rates quoted above shall be subject to adjustments with the approval of the Ontario 
Energy Board. 

 
Notes: 
1 The demand (MW) for the purpose of this rate schedule is measured as the energy consumed during the clock hour, 
on a “Per Transmission Delivery Point” basis. The billing demand supplied from the transmission system shall be 
adjusted for losses, as appropriate, to the Transmission Point of Settlement, which shall be the high voltage side of the 
transformer that steps down the voltage from above 50 kV to below 50 kV at the Transmission Delivery Point. 

 
2. The Network Service Billing Demand is defined as the higher of (a) customer coincident peak demand (MW) in the 
hour of the month when the total hourly demand of all PTS customers is highest for the month, and (b) 85 % of the 
customer peak demand in any hour during the peak period 7 AM to 7 PM (local time) on weekdays, excluding the 
holidays as defined by IESO. The peak period hours will be between 0700 hours to 1900 hours Eastern Standard Time 
during winter (i.e. during standard time) and 0600 hours to 1800 hours Eastern Standard Time during summer (i.e. 
during daylight savings time), in conformance with the meter time standard used by the IMO settlement systems. 

 
3. The Billing Demand for Line and Transformation Connection Services is defined as the Non-Coincident Peak 
demand (MW) in any hour of the month. The customer demand in any hour is the sum of (a) the loss-adjusted demand 
supplied from the transmission system plus (b) the demand that is supplied by embedded generation for which the 
required government approvals are obtained after October 30, 1998 and which have installed capacity of 2MW or more 
for renewable generation and 1 MW or higher for non-renewable generation. The term renewable generation refers to a 
facility that generates electricity from the following sources: wind, solar, Biomass, Bio-oil, Bio-gas, landfill gas, or 
water. The demand supplied by embedded generation will not be adjusted for losses. 

 
4. The Transformation Connection rate includes recovery for OEB approved Low Voltage Switchgear compensation 
for Toronto Hydro Electric System Limited and Hydro Ottawa Limited. 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 
The attached Terms and Conditions pertaining to the Transmission Rate Schedules, the 
relevant provisions of the Transmission System Code, in particular the Connection 
Agreement as per Appendix 1 of the Transmission System Code, and the Market Rules for 
the Ontario Electricity Market shall apply, as contemplated therein, to services provided 
under this Rate Schedule. 
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APPLICABILITY: 
The Export Transmission Service is applicable for the use of the transmission system in 
Ontario to deliver electrical energy to locations external to the Province of Ontario, 
irrespective of whether this energy is supplied from generating sources within or outside 
Ontario. 

Hourly Rate 
Export Transmission Service Rate (ETS): $1.85 / MWh 

 
The ETS rate shall be applied to the export transactions in the Interchange Schedule Data as 
per the Market Rules for Ontario’s Electricity Market. The ETS rate shall be subject to 
adjustments with the approval of the Ontario Energy Board. 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 
The attached Terms and Conditions pertaining to the Transmission Rate Schedules, the 
relevant provisions of the Transmission System Code and the Market Rules for the Ontario 
Electricity Market shall apply, as contemplated therein, to service provided under this Rate 
Schedule. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2016 

BOARD ORDER: 
EB-2015-0XXX 

REPLACING BOARD 
ORDER: 
EB-2014-0357 
January 8, 2015 
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Network
Line 

Connection
Transformation 

Connection
Total

FNEI $3,702,971 $880,189 $1,743,929 $6,327,089

CNPI $2,699,463 $641,657 $1,271,323 $4,612,443

GLPT $23,989,943 $5,702,362 $11,298,156 $40,990,460

H1N $887,070,038 $210,854,776 $417,769,031 $1,515,693,844

B2MLP $34,047,314 $0 $0 $34,047,314

All Transmitters $951,509,730 $218,078,983 $432,082,438 $1,601,671,150

Network
Line 

Connection
Transformation 

Connection
 

FNEI 187.120 213.460 76.190

CNPI 583.420 668.600 668.600

GLPT 3,445.341 2,461.434 455.652

H1N 249,552.000 241,956.000 207,936.000

B2MLP 0.000 0.000 0.000

All Transmitters 253,767.881 245,299.494 209,136.442

Network
Line 

Connection
Transformation 

Connection

Uniform Transmission Rates 
($/kW-Month)

3.75 0.89 2.07

FNEI Allocation Factor 0.00389 0.00404 0.00404

CNPI Allocation Factor 0.00284 0.00294 0.00294

GLPT Allocation Factor 0.02521 0.02615 0.02615

H1N Allocation Factor 0.93228 0.96687 0.96687

B2MLP Allocation Factor 0.03578 0.00000 0.00000

Total of Allocation Factors 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000

Note 6: Calculated data in shaded cells.

Transmitter
Revenue Requirement ($)

Transmitter

Total Annual Charge Determinants (MW)

Transmitter

Uniform Rates and Revenue Allocators

Note 1: FNEI Rates Revenue Requirement and Charge Determinants per Board Decision and Order on EB-
2009-0387 dated December 9, 2010.
Note 2: CNPI Rates Revenue Requirement and Charge Determinants per Board Decision on RP-2001-0034 
dated December 11, 2001. Set as Interim on December 18, 2014 under EB-2014-0204.
Note 3: GLPT Rates Revenue Requirement and Charge Determinants per Board Decision on Settlement 
Agreement for EB-2014-0238 Decision and Order dated December 18, 2014.
Note 4: H1N Rates Revenue Requirement per Board Decision on Settlement Agreement for EB-2014-0140 
dated December 4, 2014.  Rate Order approved January 8, 2015.
Note 5: B2MLP  2016 Revenue Requirement per Exhibit E2, Tab 1, Schedule 1.

Proposed 2016 Allocation and Rate Pool Details

Uniform Transmission Rates and Revenue Disbursement Allocators
(for Period January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016)
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